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AUDITORS® REVIEW REPORT ON INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors of Tiirkive Smai Kalkinma Bankast AS:
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated statement of financial position of Tiirkiye Sinai Kalkinma
Bankasi AS. (the “Bank™) as at 30 September 2015 and the unconsolidated income statement, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes in shareholders’equity and
unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the nine-month period then ended and summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. The Bank Management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of such interim financial information in accordance with “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents™ published on the Official Gazette numbered 26333 on |
Movember 2006, and other regulations on accounting records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency and circulars and interpretations published by Banking Repulation and Supervision Authority,
(together referred to as "BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation’) and Turkish Accounting Standard 34
“Interim Financial Reporting” except for the matters regulated by BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation,
Our responsibility is 1o express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of fimited review

We conducted our review in accordance with Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, *Review of Interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters,
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim financial information is substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Auditing Standards. Consequently, a review of interim
financial information does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim
unconsolidated financial information is not presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Tiirkive Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi AS as of 30 September 2015 and the result of its operations and cash flows for
the nine-month period then ended in accordance with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation and Turkish
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” except for the matters regulated by BRSA Accounting and
Reporting Legislation.
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Istanbul, Turkey

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English

As explained in Note 1 in Section Three, the accompanying interim unconsolidated financial information are not
intended to present the financial position and results of operations in accordance with the accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Turkey.
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mambser furna affilated with KPRMG intemational Cooparative, a Swiss antity



SiB
Gt

THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF
TURKIYE SINATI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

The unconsolidated financial report for the nine months includes the following sections in accordance with “Communiqué on
the Financial Statements and Related Explanation and Notes that will be made Publicly Announced™ as sanctioned by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency:

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK

EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORRESPONDING ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE RELATED PERIOD
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE OF THE BANK

EXPLANATORY DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OTHER EXPLANATIONS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements and the explanatory footnotes and disclosures for the nine months,
unless otherwise indicated, are prepared in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TRY™), in accordance with the Communiqué on
Bank's Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporling
Standards, refated communiqués and the Bank’s records, and have been independently reviewed and presented as attached.

28 Ociober 2015

-
Adnan BALI Ozean TURKAKIN Omer ERYILMAZ Mustafa GOKTAS
Chairman of Executive Vice President Head of Financial
Board of Directors ectors In Charge of Financial Control Department
anager Reporting
- l|| |
. l A e
Kemal Serdar i l.]ygarkal' kﬁLﬂN
Member of Audit Committec Member of Audit Committee

Contact information of the personnel in charge for addressing questions about this finaneial report:

Name-Surname / Title : Ayse Nazlica / Head of Budget Planning and Investor Relations
Telephone Number  :{212) 334 5] 94
E-Mail Address : nazlicaa@skb.com.tr

Tiirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.5.
Meclisi Mebusan Cad. 81 Findikh 34427 istanbul Tel: (212) 334 50 50 Faks: (212) 334 52 34 Ticaret Sicil No: 42527
www.tskb.com.tr
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TURKIYE SINALI KALKINMA BANKASI A5,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30) SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amoutnrs are exprezsed 0 thousands of Turkish Lira (TLY unless athorvise stated.

SECTION ONE
GENERAL INFORMATION

L

IL

The Bank’s incorporation date, beginning status, changes in the existing statos

Tirkive Smmai Kalkmma Bankasi A5, {(“The Bank™} was established in accordance with the
deeision of Prestdent of (he Republic of Tuwikey numbered 3/11203 on 12 May 1950, This
decision was declared by T.R. Office of Prime Ministry Procedures Directorate Decision
Management on 12 Mas 1950,

Mccording to the classification set out in the Banking Taw No: 5411, the status of the Bank is
“Development and Investment Tank™ The Eank does not have the license of “Accepting

Dieposit”. Since the establishment date of the Bank, there i3 no change in its “Development and
Tnvestiment Bank™ statos.

Explanatinns regarding the Bank®s sharcholding structure, shareholders holding dircctly or
indirectly, collectively or individuszlly, the managing and controlling power and ¢hanges in
current year, if any aod ¢xplanastions on the controlling group of the Bank

Turkiye {s Bankasi A_S. has the authority of managing and controlling power of the Bank directly
ot indirectly, alone or together with other shareholders. Shareholders of the Bank are as follows:

Current Period Share Shareholding Paidin  Unpaid
Name Surname/Commerciai Fitle Capital Rate (%)  Capitat  Capital
T. is Bankas1 A.5. Group 475003 50,00 875003 -
T. Valullar Bankas T.AG. 1445606 38 146606 -
Under Custody al Werkezi Kay it Kurelugu
{Cther Institutions and Individuals) 728.391 41,62  T28.3% -
Total 1750000 100,00 1750.000 -
Prior Period Share Sharveholding Paldin  Unpaid
Name Surname/Commercial Title Capital Rate {%) Capital Capital
T. is Bankas1 A.5. Group 730002 50,00 750002 -
T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A G, 125 662 833 125662 -
Under Custody at Merkeal Kayit Kurnlusu
(Other Institutions and Individuals) G24.336 41,62 624336 -
Taotal ____L500.000 100,00 1.500.000) -

v —r=

Bank shares arc traded in Istanbul Stock Exchange (“BIST™} since 26 December 1986, The
Bank’s 50% ol the shares beiongs to Is Bank Group and 39,6% of these shares are in free floating
and traded in BIST National Warker with “TSKB" ticker.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
MOTES TO THE TFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 20158

(Amounts arg expresoed n phoesands of Torkish Lira {TL) unicss othorwvise stated. )

SECTION ONE {Continued)
GENERAL INFORMATION {Continued)

III. Explanations regarding the chairman and the members of board of directors, audit
comtniftee, feneral manager aond assistant general manapgers and their shares and
responsibilities in the Bank

The Chairman and The Members of Board of Directers:

Mante Surname Title {1}
Adnan Bali Clugirrman of the Board of Dircclors
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mcmber of the
Kemal Serdar Digli Andic Commiltes
Buchanetin Aktag | Memberofthe Board of Divectors __.________;
talil Avdogan Member of the Board of Directors
Murat Bilgig wember of the Board of Dircclors B
Yavuz Cancvi(2) Member of the Board of Directors
Ertan Burdhanattin €antar manber of the Board of Dircctors
Ve SolakOgin | Memborof the Bourd of Dircsiors and Audit Committos
Ebru Ozsuca hewnber of the Board of Directors
Eipean Tirdakia Mcinber {)flhﬂ Roard of Tircceocs and Genn-ra] Miﬂnagu.r
Kamil ¥rimaz | Member of the Board of Diveetors

General Manager and Vice Presidents

Meme Spraame Title f Area of Respansibliility
Crecan Tirkakia | General Manager )
Scnior Vice President - Tochnical Scrvices and Finan;;:{al o

A Orhan Begksk insiitutions ]
Burak Akgiic o "-’lcf: PTLSldtﬂt - C‘urpurutt. '\-151 kL[lI‘IL and Froject Finance

. Vlce Pr-:mdent - Firancial Conlml BIJ.f.]gE[ ]"Ianm;'u.g.;r;d_m_m_
Camer Ervilinaz Investor Relations
_{;iggf__;_q-_._iq_cj__ e Vice President — Treasury and Human Resources -
Ufuk Hala ';{ﬁ;;d T _Eice President — Loans
B, Gitkhan Canakpmar o Yice Prl.mdr.nF - |.I'IfDTI'I'IEI.IIl.'.|i'I Tu:hnolugy and Gptmuun T
Ece Briri o 1'--"1-:.:&: PEESIdl;‘.‘:r;[: E.Il:tt,rpnw Architecture o T
Hakan Aygen L Wige President - Cﬂrpurain:_l'mﬂnc; amdl ELO[I.EJ_:IEEBMECh
Aziz Ferit Erastan (3 WVice President — intemal Systems T

(F) The shaves af above divecions i e Bk are gpocdolic.

12 Pavie Cawer! was efccred ve Hooed Momber pisnond fo Qepcenl Sssenedly Sl on 28 AMaech 2005, e ar o penigoonon of Surmag Fileers ja
mecereefrres witle tre Soard af Birecrars resodution en 26 March 2005, 9 Aprif 201 i ewathe diete i arder Ta stoed vecad gesition ai’ Yavaz Canevi,

[3) Jr Flee Borerd of Dirverurs raveting helel aue 3 September 2005, Jciz Feril Eraghar war appobaten bo Fice FPrepident of fderanl Spseems as of
Chorpber MLE, Aziz Ferit Ereping fng staried fog dady o 13 October 2045 affer completivar of the fegaf precedinnes stared in Sanking Lar.

According to the regpulations on auditing 1n Articles 397-4046 of the Turkish Commercial Code
avmbered 5102, Akis Baginsiz Denctim ve Serbest Muhasebeci ve Mali Milsavwlik A5, has

been elected as the independent auditer for the year 2015 in the General Assembly Meeting held
on 26 March 20135,



TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2(15

(Amounts are crpressed in thowsands of Turkish Lica {TL) enlcas otherpase stated.}

SECTION ONE {Continucd)
GENERAL INFORMATION {Continued)

IV,

Informaticn about the persons and institutions that bave qualified shares in the Bank

T. is Bankasi A.S. {is Bank) Group owns the qualified shares thal control the Bank’s capital
divectly or indirectly.

Current Period Share Shareholding FPaidin  Unpaid
Name Surname/Commercial Title Capital Rate (%) Capital  Capital
T. Is Bankasi1 A.S. Group £75.003 50,06 875.003 -
T. Valoflar Rankas: T A O, 146 606 3,38 146606 -
Under Custody al Merkezt Kayil Kunuiusu

{Other Institutions and Individuals) 728.30 41,62 728.391 -
Total 1.75¢.000 100,06 1.750.000 -
Prior Period Share Sharcholding Paidin  Unpaid

Wante Surname/Commercial Title Crpita] Rate %) Capitel Capital

T. I5 Bankas) A S. Group 750.002 50,00 750.002 -
T. Vakiflar Bankas)1 T.A.0O. 125 662 8,38 125.662 -
Under Custody at Merkezi Kayit Korulugu

{Cber Institutions and Individuals) 624.336 41,62 624,336 -
Total 1500000 100,00 1.504.000 -

Summary on the Baok's functions and areas of activity

Tirkive Smai Kalkinma Bankast A5 (“the Bank™) is the fust private development and
inveshment bank which was established by the Council of Ministers resolution murnber of 3/11203
established in 1950 with the support of World Bank, T.R. Governnnent, T.R. Central Bank and
cormmercial banks. As per the articles of association published in the Gificdal Gazeite on 2 June
1950, the aim of the Bank is to support all private sector investments but mostly industrial sectars,
1o help domestic and foreign capital owners 1o finance the new firms and 1o help the improvement
ol Turkish capital markets. The Bank is succeeding s aims by [Bnancing, consulting, giving
iechnical support and Gnancial inlermediary services, The Bank, which operates as a non-deposi
accepling bank, played a maor rols on manulacluring and nance sectors in every phase of the
economic development of Tuikey, The Bank started its joumey in 1950 finzacing the private
sector inveslimenls in Twkey and today it provides loans and project finance with the goal of
sustainable development to corporations in different fields, As a leader in meeting the long term
financing needs of the private sector, the Bank alzo continues to offer solutions with respect 10 the
newest neads and client demiands.

The Bank has opened two branches in Jzmir and Ankara in April 2006 to enbance marketing and
valuation operations.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.5.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are expresaed in thousands of Turkich Lirs (TLY unless otherwise stated )

SECTION ONE (Centinued}
GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued}

YL

Differences between the Communiqué on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
of Banks and Turkish Acceunting Standards and short explznation ahout the institution
subjeet fo [ine-by-line methed or proportionsl consolidation and institutions which are
deducted from equity or not included in these three methods

Bhie 1o differences between the Conuwnuniqué on Preparation of Conselidated Financial
Statements of Banks and Turkish Account Standards {TAS), the non-financial subsidiaries and
associates, TSKEB Gayrimenkul Degerleme A G, Terme Meal Sanayi ve Ticaret A S, and Ege
Tatm Uriinleri Lisansh: Depoculuk A.S. are not consolidated since they are mot in scope of
financial institutions according to related Communigué,

The Bank and its financial institetions, Yaurnm Finansman Menkul Degerler A5, TSKB
Gayrimenknl Yatirim Ortaklify A5, are included in the zccompanying consolidated financial
statements line by line consolidation method; I Finansal Kiralama A.$., Is Girigim Sermayesi
Yatiun Ortakiifn A5, and {§ Fakioring A.S. are included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements by cquity methad.

Financial ipstitutions included in the consolidatton are determined m accordaice with
*“Conununiqus on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Banks” published in the
Official Gazelte dated 8 November 2006 numbered 26340, The Bank has no partnership share on
banks and financial institutions, with shareholding of more than 14% and deducied from capital.

Yatumm Finansman Vlenkul Degerler ALS. :

Yatirin Finansman Menkul Deferler A5, ("YFASY) was established in 15 Qctober 1976, The
Comypany's purpise is 16 perform capital market operations specified in the Company's articles of
associanon in accordance with the CME and the relaed legislation, The Company was merged
with TSKB Menkul Deflerler A3, on 29 December 2006, The share of Tirkive Sinai Kalkinma
Bankasi A5, 15 95,78%. The company’s headquaders is located at Istanbul/ Turkey.

TSKB Gayrimenlul Yatirim Oriakligt A8,

TSKE Gayrimenkul Yatirmn Ortakhfn AS. {“TSKB GYO™) was established on 3 Febroary 2006.
Core business of the Company is real estate trust to construct and develop a portlolio of properties
and make investment to capital market instrumcnts linked to properties. The share of Tidkive
Smai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S. is 59,00%. The company’s headquarters is located at Istanbul/Turkey.

I3 Finanszl Kiralama A.S. :

Is Finansal Kiralama A.S. (“I5 Finansal Kiralama”) was cstablished on § February 1988, The
company ltas been perfonming its operations in aceordance with the Finangial Leasing, Faclonng and
Financing Companies Law No 6361, The purpose of the Company is performing demestic and
foreign financial leasing activites and all kind of rental {leasing) transactions within the framework
of legislation. The share of Turkiye Sinai Kalkimuma Bankasi AS. 1s 28,56% and the share of
Turkiye Is Bankas1 A.$. is 27,79%. The company’s headquarters is located at Istanbul/ Turkey,

Is Falitoring A.S. !

is Fakioring A.S. (“Is Faktoring™), was incorporated in Turkey on 4 July 1993 and it has been
perforning s operations in accordance with the Financial Leasing, Facloring and Financing
Companies Law No: 6361. The Company’s main operation is domestic and export factoring
transactions. The Company is a Turkiye Is Bankas: A.S. Group entity and the parent is Is Finansal
Kiralama A5 with 78,23% sharcholding. The direct share of Tirkive Smai Kalkinima Bankass
AR 15 21,75%. The company’s headquarters iz located at Istanbul/Turkey.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A5,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD I JANUARY-3) SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounis are expressed in thousands of Turkish Tira (TLY unless otherwise stated))

SECTION ONE {Continued}
GEMERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Y1

¥II.

Differences between the Communiqué on Preparation of Consolidated Finaneial Statements
of Banks and Turkisk Accounting Standards and short cxplanation about the institufion
stbject to line-by-line method or proportionzl consolidation and instifutions which are
deducted from equity or not included in these three methods (continned)

Is Girisim Sermavesi Yatinm QOrtaklig A.S. :

Is Girigim Sermayesi Yatirnm Ortakhdi A S (“Is Girisim™) started its venture capital operations by the
decision of Capalal Markel Board dated 5 Cotober 2000, The principal activity of the Company is to
perform long-terin inveshments 10 venture capital compames mainly established or (0 be established
in Turkey, have development potential and require resource. The share of Tiirkive Sinai Kalkinma

Bankasi A.S. is 16,67% in which the share of s Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. is 29,81%. The
company’'s headquarters is located at Istanbul/Turkey,

The existing or potential, actual or legal obstacle oo the transfer of sharchalder’s equity
between the Bank and its subsidiaries or the reimbursement of lizbilities

There is oo existing or potential, actual or legal obstacle to the reimbursement of liabilitics
between the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Bank charge or pay cost of the serviees according 1o
the service agreemcmts done between the Bank and its subsidiaries. Dividend distribution from
shareholders’ equity is made according to related legai regulations.

Written policies of the Bank related to compliance to publicly disclosed obligations of the
Bank and assessment of accuracy, frequency and compliance of mentioned disclosures

The Bank Dvsclosure Folicy updated by the mecling of the Board of Thirectors has entered into
force on 28 February 2014, Compliance to publicly disclosed obligations, frequency of public
disclosures and tools and methods vsed for public disclosures are explained in the disclosure
poiicy of the Bank  accessible  fron the  Bank's  corporate website,



TURKIYE SINALI KALKINMA BANKASI A.5.
UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET {(STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 20115
{Awounls are expressed i thonsands of Tuckish Tira (T1) unless otherwise stated,
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n. FimapQlal ASSETS AT FA. THROUGH PROFET AND LSS {Met) 12] 59,027 292,841 2368 15444 56491 LB
20 Trding Mannal weis 92T R4 et et ) 154410 56491 T8
AN | Public scetiw dohr seemritncs 26.MD - 26,040 - - -
202 Sharg camilicales - - . . R R
b Cromwvanive fanamcial asers kebd or radung I LET Wz EdL 135425 1544 S6AT 1A
14 Other nwagkeelahle socariters - - - - - -
L} Fingngaal asss at Gair vabug throuph prafin and bpss - -
b | Fublée scezcs bl secarinies -
L3 4 Share carliEcales -
23 Qulier nksielble seawrines -
114 Lians - - - - - -
1% EANES i MG 53,790 53,000 12452 [ Ll Rl 12218
. AIONEY MARKET FLACEMENTS 1114490 - 13Mad4R 4.M3 . 1H MY
.1 Intadban: money mackal plrseipcits B - . - -
4. Is13abwl Stock Excliompe nsonzy aasker plactieenrs 111640 L1064 [LIERI k| 1043103
4.3 Rt civact [Fom reveise roprmedise Jypctimealt - - . - - -
. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVATLAHEE FOR SALE (Ned) [d} 000,069 HILETE 2Pk Md 256550 S5 3S14AT
F3 ] EMare ooTilstdies 15616 10,753 6919 26.E0T B 240y 337
52 Tubles scctur dell accedtics | i d SIT6?T 251,530 LELE ] X000 SOTL 06T
33 Cuher maekelalle secwrities 0489 13,212 350,701 455 457 Ayl Ak 156
¥i. LOANE AND RECEIVABLES &1 2ATNATE R9RE S LLRTRIRR I.515. 171 S457A40 10 0ED A0
&1 Lnars znd recenmbles 121007 LB bbb 2P0 512 235072 T455448 (0020010
Gl Lanaeas a0 the okl growp of she Bank e 136,147 AW K31 Bl LY 126.THE 457919
612 Tublrg tovei deke seamiies . . . - - -
Gl3 Ciher JOEIALY NLTEG X YA 2OBEO05F O EA2TIE 10523 40m
G0 v perFauning boains. 58403 L.757 Sar ik 14,397 T 15434
6.3 Enccific provisions -] {58,003} (LTS (50900 (14507} LI [16.430)
Vi, FACTORNSG RECEIVALRLES - - - - - .
VEIE HEED T MATURFTY INVESTMINTS N1 (r] fivl 134 164.8m5 RE240)S
5.1 Tahlic sactor debd socwilivs H9l,039 16,5/ 52035 -
t.2 Qiiher marasable secwrities - - - - -
X INVESTRMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (et [Ty [FER|IT] tbd A0 161,008 - 161038
ol Acopanted Epe uneler aquily medligd - - - - .
02 Lneonsohdaied ossociases [EZR i 194404 161.035 1G] 3
g3l Finascis! invauliecnis 142 240 14T R4 154,453 15451
] vees-limnncial imvesinenls 1 535 1.35% 1.555 - | 555
X. INVESTRIENTS 1N SEBSIDIARIES (el 1] e | L 3sd 134 Hd - 134,203
[1iN] L'ncansolhidaled fennncial subsidianas 124 %75 124,975 133.52% 133.815
[T Uneonsolidaied mois-fimenasal sabsidiarics M TN 79 ¥
xb EXTITIES USDER COMMOX OONTREOL (FORST VENT. ) [(Ned) ] . - - - -
1N} Cangflidaled wndsr squidy ingthed - -
1.z Lneonzsolidaied - -
L2 Minascial subsidézries - -
T son-finanesl sebsidiars -
NE LEASE RECEIVABLES INor) [ . - - -
[N ] Finamce Bease rogeivablos 0% [ [ ET a7
12} Cpormimy leoss recewabdes - - - -
123 Qiker - - - .
24 Ungamed inppang | - ) {I05} (L) & in
NHE. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS FIIR IICTGENG FURPOSES (L) IRAIR JE.EXR - -
151 Fair walee hedpe 3E 428 33,628
132 Cazh (onw hidge - -
133 1ealze of net mivesticent en lareaps wperalions - - - .
-4 L1 TAMGIELE ASSETS [Nel) (1) ATAT: - 47473 | LT3 | {14}
al, TN TANGIBLE ASSETS (Mol (15 T 7 L] o
L5.1 Cromlwill - - - .
15.2 Chiser T T [ i
XV TNYESTMINT PROTERTY dser) (] - - - - -
AViIE TaM ASSET (117} 26,352 - 16,389 424 - (R3]
171 Carment LaY 33521 - - . - -
7.2 Crefernad dux assel 6,35 - 14,369 14 i} 14.03g
AVIH, AMETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTENHED OFERATIONS (Mot) (16} - - - -
15.1 Acseaqs held fow sal: - -
152 Asoais pf discontinued aperaiians - - - - - .
wiX, CFRIEER ASSETS 11k 51521 1 3x2 Ireasa 30357 44T b

FOTAL AYEETS G3TIIRF MLXI3503 MBSIHME  GCOGSTE G490 id1  157MLTLS

The accompenying aotes are 2 integral perd of these uncensolidited financial statements,
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TURKIYFE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S,

UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TE) unless atherwise stared. )

Ravirmed A edited
Cwrrent Period rior Peried
J0 Beplember 2035 3 Decemirer 2014
TIADYEETIES gig Bl TE FC Tl:lﬂ_#l T F Tadal
E. DEFPESIES {1t . - . - -
1.1 [enosily Grgm Bisk Grown of the Bank - - - - - -
1.2 Daliev - - - . . -
n NERIVATIVE FiNvANCEAL LIATILEFIES IEELD FOR TRADNG {2} R <1 1306 154022 3370 L) G Bl
ik ELMDS BORROWED {1} IREEE 13465092 13,5347 3.U48 D BTE.S5 TAT0618
. MONEY MARKET BALANCES 19E9.362 JT 421 1.5 683 1.5¥3 650 Laxs 26299
4.1 [ntevhiant: ancney marksd Bakings - - - - - .
4.2 Fsrenbwl ok Exchionpe neansy inaskt 13%ings - - - - - -
£3 Furals pravided ender repurchase sprecmenls 1.O19.30T aT4z0 1.24i5, 653 1.92T 650 AX0E15 21624594
v, MARKETABLE SECURFFIRS IFELED (Nel) {3} - Lsn 1ass.sa0 - BI13.H24 A13424
3 Bitls - - - - f -
51 Aasel hecked socurdlics - - - - .
i3 Bz B [ k11 I ] - 513619 R334
¥ BORROWER FUNDY 3rr £%.THL 92404 GX3 33458 3o.0E1
G.1 Bacrowver lands 42T 03,152 5, ikt 23 X345 0.1
33 Quliers - - - - f -
VI SUNDRY CRLCDHTORS 1752 Ja.Hg 1235400 pLiN 11.35% HESET
VHL  OTHER LVAMEETIES {4} - - - - - -
M. FAUTORING PATABLES - - . - - -
X LEASY PAYANLES {5) - - - - - -
(LY} Finenae kxse parvabios - - - - - -
102 Opaidmy; lease pawables - . - . - -
L% Qiher - - - - - -
12 Dederred fwmneg bease sxpenses| - § - - - - - -
xE. DERFYATIVE FENAMNCTAL LIAREFRES TR HEDGENG
FLRIOSER i) - - - - . -
1.1 Fair valwz hedge - - . . - -
1.2 Cash fow Bodze - - - - - -
1.3 Hadys: of nek EnvesLnesnt in Toreipn pperacians - - - - - -
EY11N FRIANSHINS )] LAL ]| . Ak L ] - 21540
[EA Geneml boan loss provisions 135,973 - 1354973 125,01 - 125,194
1.2 Resindciarizag proviseoies - - - - - -
12,1 Reserve far employee henzlls 27 - 247 7,735 - 7.71%
124 Imsarenes nechnical ressraes (i} - - - - - -
2.5 Qe prironsstind Ak SHE - EAk. 548 330 - L3000
HEHE  TAXN LIABRITY 13h 48T - BT X6, 230 - 36258
151 Currenn cax lizkiliny HLETH - AT 239 - TG, 230
132 Dferncid tux liabalny - - - - - -
REV, FAVADLES RELATER TQ ASSETS HELD FOR SaALE AND
BISCONTINUED DPERATIONS [NET) ] . . . . - -
L1 Heeld for sa’s - - - - - .
a2 Disaouliinerd operaiang - - - . -
AW SUDURDINATED LOANE [ . 152 33) 152383 . 106,005 118,065
Al SHAREHOLDERY EQLITY 1.3ERAE5 (L8431 2327443 LTI H.91T TIREQ5%
16.1 1aidhan 2xpiaal [in 1750000k - L. 750K 15000000 - b S0,
102 Capival reserves {66432) {1.F42] {G8.27d} 1405 ML 112310
16,20 Elure predaunt - - - - . -
rax3  Bhasc canechlation pobing . . - - - -
14,21  Alarkednble xecunilics walue iincrease fund [ 109,744 [ 5431 [1OLSEk 5.4 Hax [T A
1624  Tangible wsseas revohimion diffzranoes 5 Tl - k] b ] . o, 320
1825 Indunpeble nzsels revalealton difitronces - - - -
1626 [nwgsdmeny propery revalualipn dulfgrences
1627 Honus shaer odaived Groen sasoomacs, subsidiares and poanly coniralled
enkitiex [lairl Yend.p
1625  MHedzing fends (Llfeciive prion}
1629 ucurnalacod valwaissn diflferenees frone o2ens hiebd Ror sale and fnon
disconlinued nperalions - - - - - -
162 Cuber capila] restrves 363 - M3 74 - Ry 5
16.3 Feofit reserves 153,505 - 353,303 MiG,491 - 36,501
10350 Lepal reserves 242 - LA 173.32% - 1733240
1633 Sraimiry 1cherrcs T5AREl - Tl T5EL - 15041
1933  Fstzondinery reseres T30 - B2, 4611 - 5bGED
1634 Onistd profin reservcs s ] - -kl ] eI - 100}
165 Mofit ¢r |t kil ) . roig 168,13 - HRLITS
laehd Prior wenrs encoinsTosses - - - - . -
16,43 Camear yess istoanefloss HEMY - a9 3593174 - e 2T
PO TAL LIABILATIES AND EQUITY J 710098 S 12X.BXD 20851915 J AR T5E 3R 20RADE) E.'.I'J]ﬂ.?l_'i-

The sccompanying notes 2re an intepral part of thiest wnconsolidated financral siatentenis.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A5,
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounls are expressed in Bhowzands of Turkizh Dirs (1LY enless otherwise stawed. )

ftevicwed Auliced
Curecnt Perigl Frinr Poris?
M Sepiember 23 A itecernber 2014
Note
kel TL FC Tatal TL FC Toral
A BFEE BAEANCE SHEET COLITEMEN T Azilt
CONTINGENCIES (1+11+1T1h 1491047 20904 507 TEEET A4S 2.078.049 LA 0 13492470
1 GUABAKTEDS AXD COLLATERALY [L]] 44} 265 L&A1 L1000 41047 LOZL1I2 (B RLLY
Ll Lewers of gaamanles 423,265 310431 1.2325497 SL3T 55128 b Rig]
111 Guarsses subn:d o Maic Trsakor L - - - - - -
11D Cuaraseees given for foreizn irade pperziora - - - . - -
13 Ouder ltors of gusmnles 1=1.265 AM.G32 1.233.557 AELFHT 515.12% $C6.072
12 Bt aoeplanies - 180413 Tt % - - -
I Xl Empeor leilen of arceplance - L ANE 160113 - . -
122 by kak octapece - - - - -
1 Leners of credit - £50.931 G5 V53 B 445047 AL 027
111 Chcunacrlay Wdias of o - 63753 EL R X] - 4037 <3097
113 Quker icicas of cradin - - - - - -
1A Prefinanciny given @ gearanicc - - - - - -
13 Endouiteianl; - - - - - -
151 Encomseemesds bo le Coeaarad Bank of Tolcy . . . - B -
132 Qg oelkscmos - - - - - -
14 Bercurilics isaee purchiaz puzmnles - - - A - -
[ Faciend.p guarsrine - - - - - -
1% liker payresiecs - - - - . -
L2 QiE<r coiliomls - - - - . -
18 CONIMITRIENT S in 108,223 L IFLEH 4115359 393,187 2360182 AR
hy | liwevocable commilmonds LELIR.N Y 447347 L1 R 15597 117506 153913
210 Foovsnd asac? puitBlse and 1192 Lanmindn a5 LG 37,807 335 12 57l HLIT 51655
112 Ferwasd deposil penciuase and sakes commames's - - - A - -
243 Sherecepital comamil menl G asectutes and subs klrarics - - - - - -
I0,4 LOAR gRARICE CRIBRRELAL - - - - HLEG 5910
215 Sacwrilics underwTilig comAilmcaly - - - - . -
0D UMty 0 repe Gepasil reqio cineass - - - - - .
11 Paymess comeninmen Jar checs - - - A - -
215 Tas o urd linlilaes [roa cagian Lo=mneniees - - - - - .
10 femrdameemas for crec card evpeedinae Bmias - - - . - -
LLIE Cosmumiimecds [er promaless reled wrh il cads md binkisg
Flhhiss - - - . - -
1101 DReccivables from shor 2t commiineis - - - - - -
212 Payubder Moozl f2% ol menls - - - - - .
1503 Dhier imevaceble comniareels 3977 150 310 .17 I L] EL Bk
Lt Mesocubl’s comamilmenl> LR H 3.159.85% 15574 3Tm 2131540 250434
IR Hevgeabie loxs £raocing cosniineoas HGs NIASRESG 1.557 473 37773 i i 2]
I3 Olier reveritle S mySmenls - - - - - -
1Tk DERIVATIVE FLGANCIAL FOfDIIURIE TS 13 LEJLLER 16,621,904 19463,457 LERATER FRFEY L) 2376 B35
Al Dlerivarin e dineacial ensinamems lor Ealzag pemposes - o 360000 LR U] . - -
I11 Fuirvales bedpc - 1.340.000 450000 - - .
313 sk Raw hedpe - - - - - -
143 thedacof nol vvodmart in fuacign spoaion. - - - - - -
iz FRehl for Inad=sy srarseniong ERELR L) 11,751 54 14,603,837 12578 [ARERIL) 0376 B55
3rl  Ferwad foscige curmoncy bay-acll lnansacicas b5 139415 153763 kA0 15497 R
3111 Forvsd ecipn currondy Wsskses-bay 1L .53% 165 14,763 5 T 23545
A 11D Fonwad loacigm currerdy srenszcLiara sl 3755 &0, 201 73475 |.515% 1417 ht B 0d
122 Bwzpirzasxlions eclaicd 1o Fo aad inlarod aalc 163522 1k IE= 637 11,793 20 B 1] 1265 L6150
3321 Porgen curmercy swapa-bay L E TN 1aHAg2 X L] 25 L13%47% 1.310.517
31227 Forengn cumeccy svapasell 03304z L5251 255401 1171 GED M2 LB2ATY
3523 TAIGTEM ridg 4 aps-by 23,162 3 rhaasy 3 T4l 23488 156792 2556430
A Iererewm rae swaps-sell 13184 3 M41357 Lintd4 2 EES T LA K] 3456240
113 Foregn turcncy, wiocd G d Setadics Sl LIET U 1130557 23527349 G4 0 407,352 L-i%6.93]
3250 Fremen (urmercy gpinas-tay ERIE5 L= N | 1.374.050 a3 xl 400 343 TS5
31237 Forsgn cumcncy optiams-sdl 530,206 91391 12753 XL 401 60 L]
3133 Taieroi rae opsons-buy - - - - - -
32 Xd Enierom role optionssscll - . - - - -
3135 Srcuritios vptione-bay - - - - - N
3 L6 Recurilics oprinns-sei - - - - - -
124 Fonesgn curmency fulencs - - - - ' -
3,0 Foren curescy Tuicret-bay - - - - - .
3 24.12 Foreqn carmency Tulammnsai] - . . - - -
355 Ralero rae fetvies - - - - - -
3250 Enicrem eae feaeaes-tey - - - - - -
3252 Fnlcrod raie [Hure -l - - - - -
jrhe Dnex - RER R BLATL) - 46T 1677
B, CUSTODY AND PLEDCED SECLHEITIES IV 1V LY} 30379 650 [ELRYEE 1] [E.LRE R ] L ERE.44E 118 5 8 LY (35NN E]
o, ITEMS I[ELD IX CUGTORY EIINIR 93,165 A1 REM 1.3H3TE IE6 AT XA11.158
.l Cuslomars’ cecusitins held . . . . - -
4.2 Envsienord wocurilic Ted @ ceticds 5.3 1 5 LG 101,963 LS kg 1570403
4% Crocksreceived for collemios - - - - - -
CE | Commezcial palos roesy ol Jo7 cobeelion - - - - . -
w ¥ CHigr ngse 5 recein gd Bor callocvion - - - - - -
d& Asses recait od for pablic olleieg . A A . - -
27 Uik Pt Sdof custddy - - - - - .
4.5 Cetiadiane 1 EE2 010 - 1100 LT35501 - 1.753.513
. FLEDGED ITEMS 1520193 ERAELELD 10E0H A2 14.018.3%5 S0V 305 P AR
3l workerabte secaritee; AEHL R pR Rl B QSR »TEY 4152 853
32 Cuarsicenals 27564 1347529 1.835.003 17157 LETLGD 1.05% 147
1% Cainmslity - - - - - .
ia ‘Warnanly A . A . - -
35 Rl csizic 3531187 25.0-M.267 M35 3531587 10291 23530
4 Chier piedond ilenw [FRIER 5] 6. 767.351 2D [XRRERE, 17,71 1 ML 595
LN Fledped voms-toposgiony - - - - - -
v, ACCEPTED H¥ILLS UF EXUCNARGE ANH COLEAVTERALS 10222010 S9954E .24 3.638 I 13,57 AT A0 172 SHILLTSE
TOTAE OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (A+T) 1.0 40% 170960513 B2 180 AEA0VEENT 1ih. 140550 146,216 58T

The secompanytigy oobes are an inkegral pert of these unconsetidated financial statcmends.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKAST A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30) SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amoents are cxpreased in thowsands of Turkish Lira (TLY unless othenwise stated,)

ot

Beviewed
Current Perled
1 Faruary 2015 -

Roviewed
Frlor Perlad
I Janeary 2014 -

Ref. 3 Seprember 2015 30 September 2004

Revlcwed
Curirent Perlod
I July 2015 -

Roviewed
Frior Ierlcd
1 duly 2074 -

X Sepramber 20015 3 Scpiember 2014

E INTEREST ENCOME [} 9.2 50 55,798 299,363 197.831
11 lalewsst pn Bums A 5 HTAT (BT 123017
1.2 Lrierest recewed froqe reservs daposas 56 . Jm -
113 lriewe st recerced froan bamks T.O50 513 235 95
14 Intercst reeeived Eom imincy inmbcl ploecincnts 55015 12415 31,97} £.351
1.3 IRlerest roceived Cromy inarkutzble szcuritic s poaiolon 34 T D467 0 EERIT R
1.5.1 Tinancéal asssis held for fmding 1b5T 7 &3 |11
1,5.2  Finengial assas ot frir valiee theangh profit and boss - - - -
L33 Avaalabke-for-sale Tnanaal xsseas 120035 TG | 5 £3.341 3B
L33  lavesutens held-io-mawray ol [ - 21462 -
1.4 Finanee dease intiane L a5 - 14
1.7 Oiker infenest Dicair: Tk} ) 55 I
18 TNTEREST EXPENSES (2} [LENA ) [l ) {125.23M [62.752)
2.1 Inderast om dopanils - - - -
2.2 I zr v Tunids bommowed 129.312) 175 507) [51.25E) [24.125)
rA Indcresl o mincy marked basawein gd {136.753) {07.032) [d6,2LE) (33554
14 Titdares! Gin S=cunders issucd [0, D5 - [HL637 .
2.5 [Niker intonesd B e 3] {4Th ['Hy H
Hi, HET INTEREST IHCOOAMEE - H) F6.121 FI5TI2 15113 ERT XS
. NET FEES AND COM M ESSIONE INCORME £.05% .06 2527 1434
4] Feus oedh eospnessions reccaved 544 7.2 4217 LT
410 irs-cash bxirs £.550 a.T16 4 0 2390
412 difcer .M 1126 e lv
d.2 Fees ardl caimimessions paid 11759 [Thiap 16H {245)
424 Mos-nazh bpams 5 e i n
422 nilser {1754y (734 {045) {244]
V. IHYIDEND [MCOME 11 33EMe 1351% . 1434
VI, WET TRADENG INCOME ) L0 K210 {400 {1.6%7]
4.1 Becuitics bzafing painsd [Passush 2959 {1,247} {3210 {25
62 Brerivzve fimangial instumends painglosses {1540 01 (460 13546 (50 X31]
i Foareizn wiclange panaTosss inark 17,755 55049 (X5 195} L]
wil, CRNE R QPFERATENG I NOOME (K] 40718 IRAT? 4%l b 1]
vil. TOTAL OFERATING INCOAE (RO IV ¥V SeIna Rt B2 150 RS 147-116
1¥.  PHOVISLON FOT LOAN LOSSES AXD (TIIER RECEIVABRLES {-) {5 (31,515 (46,407 AT 5661
X OTIER GPERATENG EXPENEES (4 ] M) (3029 123415} {42468
X, SET GPERATENG IO EN EAOSSY [VHE-TR-X) 6104 25 THI 106491 {1141
X, AMOUNT BN EXCESE RECORDED A5 GALK AFTER MIERGER - f . -
X, PHOFIT M LOS5) O BEGEITY METIIOD
X CRAEN S {LAOSSY ON NET RIONETARY POSPERION
xXv. PROFITHECSE) FROM COXNTINVER GRERATIONS DEFGRE TANES

[REE DX B LYY {E) 16103 A3 102 MEA9) 1 1.3
XV TAN PROVISION FOR CONTIN DED OFERATICNS (4} " A IS {7118 (341063 {2L.297]
161 Provestisn for civmenl imcumie laxcs 136, 7040 [ 3841,0] FLENESD) {7%.654)
161 Provesion for d=femed [axes 134 247) Wi [E2L) 7337
XV, NET PROFITAEGSE FROM CONTISVED OMERATIONS [RVEXVIL {11 2920149 INTEA HI.3E5 34,318
XWIH, 1xCOME O DISCENTENUED OFERATIONS - - - .
131 Tcore on ysseis held Gy sabe
152 I on sulc of assoeiaics, fulsidiarees and peantly controdled endeies §Rodn venL.) -
113 Incagme o gther desconlinued opemlions -
MIN LESS PG BISCONTINUED OPFERATIONS ¢-) -
1 Laoss from nssess hebd for sale -
1.2 Loss an sabe of staoenaies, subsidiories snd jodnLly conrrodled crisscy {Pacnn vonr)
"3 Lot fioin oifcr distonimuzd op aduons
XN PHOFIT M LOSSON PISCONTENUED QPERATIONS REFORE TAXES

[MAIE-X1X%} -
XXI TAX PROVINSION FOR DESCONTFNELD OFERATIONS(E) -
i | Provisens Tod Ciemenl incuane Inscs
.2 Privvisonn For o e taves - -
Nl MET PROGFITEQSS FROM HECONTINUED BPFERATIONS [NXENND - -
Xxdll. NET PROFITIEQSE {XVIT+N XIE 1113 2L T HH " HI.JH5 A

Famiwngs ! flmsses) per shors 0wl TL) 0,167 145 0,07 Q|

The secompattying Aotes dre & inlege] part of these unconsolidated financial stotements.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASL ALS.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 3 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {10 unless othorwise stated.}

FROFIT AND LOSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER SHARERGLDER'S EQUITY

Reviewed

Current Prrind
IJzrnuary 2045-
31 Seplember 2HS

RBevlcwed

Frlor Perlod

1 January 20014-
i} Beplembicr 2004

ADBETIONS TO MARKETARLE SECURITIES REVALEIATION EHFFERENCES FOR

AVAFEABRLE FOR SAELE FINANCEAL ASSE'TS 1195.686) 71745
1N TAMGIBELE ASSETS REVALUATION DIWTERENCES J2.012 -
HI,  TNTANGEBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DITTERENCES - -
1V,  TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES FOR TRANSACTIONS 1IN FOREIGN CERRENCIES -
Y. GAINILOES O DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR CAKEE FEOW

HEDGES (Effectve Poctian of Baie Value Drfferoncig) -
¥I. GAINEESS O DEARYVATIVE FENANCIAL ASSEES HELL FOR HEDGES (F NET

IRVESTMENT IS FOREIGX QPLRATIONS {effective portion) -
Vil, EFFECTS OF CHANGES N ACCOUNT NG FOLICIES AND CORHECTIONS OF

ERRORS -
¥ili. OTHER MROFIT/LDES ITEME ACCOUNRTED FOTR UNDER SHAREIGLDERS

EQUITY ASPER TAS (30,263} 152106
iX, DEFERRED TAX OF VAEUATIGN DIFVERENCLS 45714 {14.307)
x NET PROFIT/EOSE ACCOUNTED FOR BIRECTLY UNDER SHAREHOLDERE"

EQULTY (E+HIE+, +1XY 1172.499) B2
X1, EURRENT YEAR PROFIT/LOSS 2919 IBT.0EA
Tl N cleanpes in o value of securitivs {Reoycked v ProhivLoss) XA i
1.2 Rechassifeaion of and teeyeling dervalives sccounicd Gir 232 iy hedge purpasus 1 Dz

Ll -
113 Becpcling ledy of ngd investneznls in Rergipn operatiens Lo Incame Slalemend - -
14 Oer 284324 TET.O0
Xil. CTOFEAE PROFEFEOSS ACCOUNTED FOR TUE CERRENT PERIGD (KLX1) 119,820 317.076

The nceompatyintg moles are & integrzl parct ol these unconsolideted roncial sEatemonts
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIPATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMEER 2015

(Armeunts are expressed in thowsands of Turkish Lica (TL) wnlcss othenwise stated. )

Howlonwed Roviewed
Currend Poviad Prinr Parind
Nt Bel. 30 Septemboos 24035 30 Scplamber 2014

A EASH FLOWS FROM BANKENG QFERATICNS

1.1 Cperating profit briore changes inoopernting assels and lxbiktles 954,265 195,642
1.1 Inlercst regeived 243451 237054
1.1.2  Inlercst paid {215.4471) (162303
113 Dividends roccived 3% 9, L
1,14 Fees and ciannsigsiams cect ived 4 7dd 7947
115 Oier inzome LR EERL
116 Coleclions fram previowsly wikten off bans 35 g
L1.T  FPawneznls 1o personre | amd sereees sappliers {5030 ) 44594}
L1.%  Taxes poid {5 S (115,344}
1% fuhes i IHR9TT 12,256
1.2 T hanpges in operaling asiely andd Lialilities [ZT3.611) | 156.074)
1.2 1 Mel{increase}deoreases im fimmcia| assels {26039 [{EALES)
1.2.2  Wet{increasc} foorcase in firancial assels al fir catue throwgl profit or foss - -
123 Wel{increase} dzerzase in dit From banks ord other fnanzial insiiodions - .
124 Neufinercasz} doorease in bogns {1.008.53%5) {La9k a1}

123 Na{ueerease} doorease i oLlker astels a7, 000 (142, 5646}
1248  Melincreaws fileemmase) in bink depasag -

12,7 Nelincrass (decneased i gler cdegasils - -
L2E  Melinereass (decreazed in funds bomowed 259,500 512

124 Nelaereste fdecreaze) inonalured payatles - -
L2 00 N erenae felecaense) inoulker lisbilaics {n [T B3Y.802
i Ml onsle provided byf{used in) banking operntions HEG654 [REEA T

LN CASH FLOWSE FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

EER Mt casd provicled beyf{wied in] invesling aclivitivs 397.4632) TIT
21 Cashopad lor pur leasy oF gnlilivs wader comman conlrgel. assacizies and subsidiarées - {1C0)
1.2 Caslvoblained frem sakz of cotilécs under comman condnel. 3ssaciales ard subsidiarics - -
13 Fisvd ossel puraliaees (12439} (3 5h)
Tq Fized ngser anles B ik 35
1.5 Casle pacd Tor purchase of fmancial age=y avmlible Gor sty {494, 547} (1034519
26 Cashoblained rpan salz of finaccial agsels asilable for soby 710037 1.045 563
2.7 Cashopadd Tor purelkase of invesiirenl sccurilees (350515} -
28 Catlv obiained from salz of invesiment seaurilies - -
14 Oilezrs n 3} {14

£, CASE FEENYS FROMNE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
i Metenrh prosdded by foscd Ind finnnedng ellvitles E47.168 {72500
il Cacly oblained from Twibds bomowed and secunizs ssaed QFT.450

11 Casle vt fonr copayinzar af fuiels hoavewed ol 2ecurities issu =l -
33 Capiwal increose

34 Dividends paid {B0.262) {12551
13 Paymenis [ad Gnance leases - -
14 Oiclezr

1V, EHect of chappe in ereign exchange rzle on onsh and ezrh cquivalents {1} 467 1140
. oot bmerease £ {deercased Inocash and cash equbvalends 938637 75112
Wi Cach and cash cquivdienis a1 begientng of e peniot FE1.102 85,561
WIE,  frash and cash eguivalenls ai end of 1ty pecgd 1,199,759 . 160,873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ihese unconsolidated fieaccial siatenteats,
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM FERIOD 1 JANTARY-50 SEPTEMBER 2015
(Anmounts ave expressed in thowzands of Turirish Lira (TLY unless atherwise stated )

SECTION THREE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L

Ia

1.b

{8

Basis of Fresentation
Presentation of financial statements:

As prescribed in the Article 37 of the Banking Act Wo. 5411, the Bank prepares its financial
stateanenls and wnderlying docunmients in accordance with the “Regulation on the Procedures and
Principles for Accounting Practices and Retention of Docnments by Banks” and other
regulations, explanations and circulars on accounting and financial reporting principles
announced by the Banking Regulation and Superviston Agency {“BRSA™) and Turksh
Accounting Standards (“TASY) published by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing
Standards Authorny (“POA™) excopl for BRSA regulations, TAS consists of Turkish Accounting
Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and related appendices and interpretations.

Amounts i the unconsalidated financial statements, the underlying explanations and disclosurcs
are exnpressed in Thousands of Turkish Lira unless othenwise stated.

Additioaal paragraph for convenience translation to English

The differences betweaen accounting principles, as described in the preceding paragraphs, and the
accounting principles generally accepted in countries, in which the accompanying financial
stalemments are to be distribuled, and Intlematonal Financial Reporiing Standards (“IFRS™}), may
have sigmificant influence on the accompanying fimancial statements. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statcments arc not inteaded (0 prescent the financial postion and results of

pperations in accordance with the accounting principles penerally accepted in such countrics and
iFRE.

The valuation principles wsed in the preparation of the firancial statements

The accountmg rules and the valuatton principles used in the preparation of the financial
stateinents were inplemented as stated in the Turkish Accounting Standards and related
repulations, explanations and circulars on accounting and financial reporting principles
announced by the BRSA, These accounting policies and valeation principles are explained in the
below notes throwgh 11 to XXI1

The peconnting pelicies for the correct understanding of the financial statements

The fullowing accounting policies that applied according to BRSA regulations and TAS for the
conect understanding of the financial statements and valuation principles used in preparation of
the financial statements are presented in more detail below.

Explanations on nsage sérategy of financial assets and foreign currency fransactions

The main sources of the [unds of the Bank have variable interest rates. The financial balances are
ronitored frequently and fixed and ficating interest rate placements are undertaken according to
the retum on the aliermative financial instruments, The macro goals related to balance sheet
anicunts are s¢t during budgeting process and positicos are taken accordingly.

Due o the fact that the great majority of the loans extended by the Bank have a fexibility of
retlecting changes in the market interest rates to the customers, the interest rate risk is kept at
mintmum level. Moregver, the highly profitable Eurobond and the foreign currency govemmient
indebiness securities portfolio have (he allnbate of climinating (he risks of interesi rate volatility.

The fixed rate Eurobond issued by the Bank and a portion of fixed rate funds bomowed are
subject to fair value hedge accounting. The Bank enters into interest rate swap agreements in
order to hedge the change in fair values of us fixed rate financial liabilitics. The changes in the
fair value of the hedged fixed rate financial liabilitics and hedging intcrest rate swaps arg
recogaised under the statement of profit/loss.
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY 30 SEFTEMBER 2015
{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lirs (TE) unless othenvige stated.

SECTION THREE (Continued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

IL.

Explanations on usage strategy of financial assets and foreign currency iransactions
{rontinned)

in the beginming and later period of the hedging transaction, the aforementioned hedging
transactions sre expected to offset changes occurred in the relevant period of the hedging
transaction and hedged risk {attributable to hedging risk) and effectiveness tests are performed in
this regard.

The Bank performs effectiveness test at the beginning of the hedge accounting period and at cach
reporting period. The effectiveness tests are carried out using the “Dollar off-set madel™ and the
hedge accounting iz applied as long as the 108 results are belween the ranee of 80%-125% of
effectiveness.

The hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is exercised, sold or
0o loager effective. When discontinuing fair value hedge accounting, the cunwlative fair valoe
changes in canying value of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk arc amortised and
recognized in income statement over the life of the hedped item from that date of the hedge
accounting 15 discontinued.

The Bank liguidity s regularly monitored. borcover, the need of liquidity in forciom currencies is
sateguarded by currency swaps.

Cormamerciai placements are managed with high retum and low risk assels considering the
intemational and domestic economic expectations, market conditions, creditors’ cxpectations and
their tendencies, interest-liquidity and other simdlar factors. Prudence principle is adopted in the
placement decisions. The long lerm placements are made under project finance. A credit policy 1s
implemented such a way that harmonizing the profitability of the projects, the collateral and the
value add introduced by the Bank.

The movements of Forcign exchange rates in the markel, mtersst rates and prices are monitored
instantancously. While taking positions, the Bank’s uiique operating and control limits arve
walched clleclively besides sialutory limits. Limit overs are not allowed.

The Bank’s strategy of hedging interest rate and foreign currency risks arising from f{ixed and
variable interest rate funds and foreign currency available for sale securities:

A great majority of forcign cwrrency available [or sale securilics are [inanced with forcign
curreney resources. Accordingly, the anticipated possible depreciation of local currency apaingt
ather curmrencics is climinated. A foreigm curmency basket is fonaulated in tennos of the indicated
[oreign cumency to climinalc the sk exposure of changes in cross curency parity.

Interest rate risk is mitigated by constituting 2 balanced asset corposition in epmpliance with the
striciure of fixed and floating rate of funding resources.

The hedzing strategies for other forcipn cxchange risk cxposures:

A stable foreign exchange position strategy is implemented and to be secured from cross currency
tisk, the cument foreign exchange position is monitored by considering a currency basket in
specific foreign currencies,

The foreign exchange gains and lossces on loreign cummency \ransactions are accounted for in the
perind of the transaction. Forcign cxchange assels and liabilities are translated to Turkish Lira
using foreign exchange bid rate as of (he repoding date, and (he resulling gains and losses are
recorded in foreign cxchange gaius or losses,
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.8.
NWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBEI 2615

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Tuckish Lira (TLY unless othenvits slaled )

SECTION THREE {Continucd}
ACCOIINTING POLICIES {Contioued}

III.

IV,

Explanaticns on forward and option contracts and derivative instruments

‘The Bank is exposed to financial risk which depend on changes in foreign exchange ratcs and
intcrest rates due to activities and as part of banking activites uses derivative instruments to
manage financial risk thal especiaily associated with fluctuations in foreign exchange and interest
rate. bainly derivative instroments used by the Bank are foreign currency forwards, swaps and
option agreements.

The derivative [inancial instnunents are accounted for at their fair values as of the date of the
agrecments cnicred inle and subsequently wvalued at fmir value'The dervaties insinunents
including both cconomic hedges and derivatives specified as hedging items are classified as either
“trading purposes” or “hedging purposes” as per the Turkish Accounting Standart (“TAS 3%
“Financial Instruniecnts; Recogmition and Measurentent”,

When a derivative financial imstrument, is originally designed as a hedee by the Bank, the
relationshin between the Bank's tmancial risk from hedged e and the hedging instrament, the
risk management objectives and strategy of hedging lransaction and the rncthods that will be used
in the measurement of effectivencss, deserbe in writlen, The bank, at the beginming of the
atorementioned engagement and duning the onpoing process, cvaluates whether the hedging
instnumenis are effective on changes in the fair valucs or aclual results of hedeing are within the
range of 80% - 125%,

Explanations on interest income and cxpenses

Interest income and expenses are recogmzed in the income slalement for all interest bearing
ingtruments on an zecrual basis using the elfective imterest method {the rate that equalizes the
future cash flows of financial asscts and liabdlities to the curment net bock value).

In accordance with the related cegulation, realized and unrealized imterest accruals of the non-
performing loans are reversed and inlerest income relaled to these loans are recorded as inlerest
income only when coilected.

Explanaticns on fees and commission income and expenses

Feus and comunissions received from cash loans, that are not an intcgral pant of the effective
interesk vate, and fees for various banking services are recorded as income when collected. Fees
and commissions paid for the funds bormmowed, which are not integral parts of 1he effective inlerest
rate of the funds borrowed, are recorded as expense on the date of the payment. The fees and
comunission income and expenses obtained from cash and non-cash loans are recorded vnder
income and expense accounts in the related period by discounting with effective interest method
according to matching principle. The commission income of non-cash loans are reflected in
accounts by accrual basis.
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

MOTES TOQ THE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEFTENVMBER 2015
{Amounts are expressed in tiouzands of Turkish L (T LY unless albervige sialed. )

SECTION THREE {Continucd)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued}

VI

Explanations on financial assets

Financial instruments comprise financial asscls, financial liabilities and derivative instromends.
TFinancial instruments constitute the both of the Bank’s trading activities and operations. Risks
related with these mstruments constitutes majority of total risks. Financial instruments affect
liguidity, market, and ecredit risks on the Bank’s balance sheet in all respects. The Bank trades
these instruments on behalt of 115 customers and on 15 own behalf,

Basically, (nancial assels create the majority of the commercial activities and operations of the
Bank. These instrumenis cipose, affect and dinunish the liquidity, credit and interest risks in the
financial statements.

All regular way purchases and saies of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date 1.¢. the
date that the asset is delivered to or by the Bank. Seftlernent date accounting requires (a) accounting
of the asset when acqnired by the institation, and (b} disposing of the asset out of the balance sheet
on the date serled by the institotion; and accounting of gain or loss on disposal. In case of
application of settlement date accounting, the entity accounts for the changes that oceur in the fair
valuc of the asset in the poriod between comrnercial transaction dale and scltlement date as in the
assets that the enticy settles,

Fegular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time framc generally established by regulation or convention in the warkel
place. Changes in fair value of asscts 1o be reccived during thc period between the trade date and
the settlement date are accounted for in the same way as \he acquired assets.

Fair value differences are nol accounted for asscis prescnled al cost or amortized cost; gain or
loss of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are reflected in the incoine statement,
gain or loss of available for sale assets are accournied for uader the shareholders’ equity,

The methods and assumptions used in delermining the reasonable estimated values of all of the
fimancial instraments are cxplained below.

Cash, Banks and Gther Financial Institotions:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in vault and foreign currency cash. Foreign currency
cash and foreign currency deposits are reflected to balance sheet in TL which is translated in
accordance with prevalent exchange rate on reporting date. The book valucs of these assets
approximate to their fair valucs.

Matketabie Securilies.
The Bank classifies its marletable securities it 3 groups:

Financial assets at fair valoe through profit and loss: These transactions are classified n two
categories. (i) Trading securities tor the purposes of short tenn profit taking through sale or
buying back in a near foture. (it} The finencial assets classified at the inception as financial assets
at fair value throvgh profit or loss by the Bank, The Bank uses such classificalion above when
permitied or for the purposes of providing a more proper disclosure.
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER. 2015

(Amounts are expressed i thousands of Tudash Lira (TEY unless othenyise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Continued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

V1.

Explanations on financial assets (continued)

In this catepory, trading scouritics ars initially recognized at cost and measured at fair value on
the financial statements. Fair values of securibes that are traded in an active market are
determnined based on quoted prices or current market prices.

(Gains or losscs resulting from such valuation are recorded in the profit and loss acoounts. As per
the explanations of the Uniform Code of Accounts (UCA), any positive difference between the
historical cost and amoertized cost of financial assets are booked under the “Intercst Income™
aceount, and in case the fair value of the asset is over the amortized cost, the positive difference is
booked under the “Gatns on Securities Trading” account. IF the Fair value is under the amortized
cast, the pegative difference is booked under the “Losscs on Secuntics Trading” account, Any
profit or toss resulting from the disposal of those asscls before their maturnity date is recognized
within the framework of the same principles.

Available for sale financial assets are initially recognized al cost including the transaction costs.
The interest income related to securities with fixed and variable interest under available for gale
financial assets are recorded in interest income. After the initial recognition, available for sals
securities are measured at fair value and 1he unvealized gainfloss originating from the differcnce
belween the amortized cost and the fair value is recorded in “Marketable Secorities Value
increase Fund” under the equity. All unquoted available for sale stocks are recorded by
eonsidering impairment, since respective fair values canmot be reliably measured. Al the disposal
of availabie for sale financial assets, value increases/decreases that are recorded in the secunties
value increase fund under equity are transferred 10 incomie statemoent,

Lnvestments held 1o maturity include securities with fixed or determinable payuienis and fixed
maturily where there s an intention of holding till matarity and the relevant conditions for
fulfilment of such intention, incleding the funding ability. This portfolio excludes loans and
receivables. After initial recognition held to maturily investmcnts are measured al amortized cost
by using intemal rate of return Jess impaimment losses, if any. Interest inconte carned from held-
to-maturity investments is recognized as interest income on income statement.

The Bank considered expected inflation index of future cash fows prevailing at the repotting date
while calculating internal rate of return of the CFI mdexed marketable sccuntics, The effect of this
apphcation is accounicd as hmlercst received from inarketable securities in the unconsolidated
[Inancial stalements,

Explanations on investments in asscciates and subsidiaries:

Investments in associates and sobsidiarics are recomnized at fair value within the scope of the
“Turkish Accounting Standard Mo 39: Financial Insiruments: Recognilion and Weasaremeont™
{TAS 39} Investments in subsidiarics, whose [air valuc canncl be measured reliably are followed
al their cosl of acquisition and these assets are shown in the financial statements with their cost of
values alter the deduclion of impairment provisions, if any.
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD L JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015
{Aunounts are expressed in thowsands of Tuekich Liva (VLY unless otherwise stated )

SECTION THREE (Continued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continned)

VI

¥IL.

Explanaticns on {inancial assets {continued)
Loans;
Loans are financial agsets which have fixed payment 1erms and are ool 1raded.

Loans are initially recognized at cost and measured at amortized cost by using effective interest
rate. The duties, charges and olher ¢xpenses paid for the collaterals obtained against loans are
accepted as pan of transaction costs and reflected to customers.

Turkish Lira (“TL™) cash loans are composed of foreign currency indexed loans and working
caital loans; {oreigm curreney (“FC} cash loans are composed of nvestraent loans, export
financing loans and working capital loans.

Foreign currency indexed loans are converted into TL from the foreign currency rate as of the
spenmg dale and [ollowed in TL accounts. Repayments are measured with the foreign currency
rate at the payment date, the [oreign cwrency zains and losses are reflected to (he income
statement.

Provision is set for the loats that may be doubtfol and the amount is charged in the current period
income statement as well as ther classification to non-perfomiing loans as per the related
regolations. The collections made relaicd 10 loans mmeluding those oo non-performing loans for
which provision 15 made in the currend period are recorded m “Provision for Loans and Gther
Receivables (mncluding reccived {romn Loans and receivables with doubtful collectabilityy” and
“Imterest Reccived {rom Noo-perfomming Loans™ account,

Releases of loan loss provisions are recorded by reversing the provisions bocked during the year
and the collections made related to loan losses previously accounted for are recorded to
codlections related 1o the prior period expenses.

Explanations on impairment on fitancial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank evaluales the carrying amounts of its financial assel or a group of
fmancial assets to determine whether there is an objective indication that those asscls have
suffered an impairment loss. I any such indication exists, the Bank datermines the related
impainment.

A fnancial asset or a financial asscl group incurs impairment less only if there is an objective
evidence related o the occurrcnes of one or more than one event {“loss event™) after the first
recognition of (it asset; and such loss event (or events) causes, an impairment as a result of the
effect on the rehable estimate of Hhie expected foture cash flows of the related financial asset and
asset group, Imespective of high probability the expected losses for future events are not
recognized.

Loans are classified and followed in line with the provisions of the “Regulation on Ideatification
of Loans and Other Receivables and Provisioning against Them”, published on the Official
Gazette Mo: 26333 dated 1 November 2006, Specifie provision is allocated for the total amount of
loans and other veceivabies, which is deemed non-performing, without being restricted by the
i legal requirements stated in the relaled regulation, and such specific provisions are
recopnized in the meome stateraenl. The provistons, which are released within the same year, are
crodited (o the “Provision Expenscs™ account and the released pacts of the provisions from the
provious years are transferred 10 and recogmized in the “Other Operating Income” account.
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SECTION THREE {Continued}
ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

VIL

VIIL

IX.

Explanations on impairment on financial assets {continued)

Other than specilic provisions, the Bank provides general provision for loans and other
receivabies classified 1 accordance with the Regulation on Identification of and Provision against
Mon-Performing Loans and Gther Recervables,

Subscquent 1o the change in the repulation on “Change in the Methods and Principles for the
Determination of Loans and Other Receivables to be Reserved for and Allocation of Reserves”
published in the Official Gazette No. 27947 dated 28 May 2011; in case of the extension of the
payment plan of the loans which are follpwed under loans and receivables, the gencral loan loss
provision ratio for standard and for the first group loans and reecivables should nol be less than 5
times of the general provision ratto and for the sccond proup loans and reccivables should not be
less than 2,5 times of the general provision ratic,

As a consequencs of the regulation published in Official Gazette MNo. 28789 dated & October 2013
amending the “Change n the Methods and Principles for the Delennination of Loans and Other
Receivables to be Reserved for and Allocation of Reserves™, for the banks, of which the consumer
loans wxcwed twenly five percent of total loans, general provision ratio is four porcent for
consumer loang which are followed under standard leans and reccivables except housing loans;
and is eipght percent for the loans under close monitoring except housing ipans. Sincc the
consuiner loans of the Bank are composed of personnel loans as of 30 Septendber 2015 and do not
exceed the ratios mentioned above, additional gencral loan loss provision has nol been calculated.
As mentioned in the regulations op the same date, the bainks could apply general loan loss
provision raties of zero percent for cash and non-cash export loans which are followed as standard
loans; and of frve per mille and one per mulle For cash and non-cash loans, respectively, for small
and redium size enterprises. The Bank has started to caleulate general loan loss provision thereby
using the ratios after publishment date of the regulations.

Explanations on offsetting of financial asscts and ligbilities

Financial assets and habilities are offset when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off,
and when the Bank has the intention of collecting or paying the net amousnt of related assets and
liabilities or when the Bank has the right 10 oflsct the assels and labililies simultaneously.
Oiherwise, there 15 not any offsetiing transaction aboul Anancial asseis and liabilites,

Explanations on sales and repurchase sgreements and lending of sccurities

Funds provided under repurchase agreements are accounied under “Funds Provided under
Fepurchase Agreements-TL” and “Funds Provided ovnder Repuichase Agreements-FC™
accounts.

The repurehase agreements of the Bank are bazed on the Furcbonds and government bonds issned
by Republic of Turkey Undersecretariat of T'reasury. Marketable securities subject to repurchass
apresinents are ciassified under fair value profit or loss avadlable for sale ar held to matority
financial asset with paraliel to classifications of financial instruments. The income and expenses
from these transactions are reflected to the inlerest income and interest expense accounts in the
income statemient. Receivables from reverse repurchase agreesnents are recorded in “Reccivables
froann Reverse Repurchaze Agresments™ aceount in the balanee shaet.
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SECTION THREE (Continued)
ACCOTINTING POLICIES {Continned)

X.

XL

Explanations on assets held for sale and discontinued sperations

Assets held for sale are mmeasured at the lower of the asscts’ carmying amount and fair valec less
costs to sell. Held for sale assels are notb amortized and presented separatcly in the financial
statements. In order 1o classify an assat as held for sale, only when the sale is highly probable,
cxperienced quite often and the asset {or disposal group) is available for imumnediate sale in its
present condilion, Asscls held for sale are measured at the lower of the assels’ camying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Held for sale agsets are not arnortized and presented separately in
the financial statements. In order to classify an asset as held for sale, only when the sale is highly
probable, capericnced quile ollen and the assel (or dispasal group) s available for immediate sale
1) its present condition. Management must be conynitted to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recogmition as a completed sale. Highly saleable condition requires a plan by (he
management regarding the sale of the assel (o be disposed (or ¢lse (he group of asscis), together
with an active progratn for determination of buyers as well as for the completion of the plan, Also
the asset {or else the group of assets} shall be actively marketed in conformity with its fair value.
On the other hand, (he sale is expected 10 be journalized as a compleled sale within one year after
the classification date; and the necessary transactions and procedures to complete the plan should
democnstrate the fact that the possibility of making significant changes or cancelling the plan is
low, Vanous circumstances and conditions could exiend the complelion pentod of the sale more
than one year. If such delay arizes from any events and conditions beyond the control of the entity
and if there is sufficient evidence that the entity has an ongoing disposal plan for thesc assels,
such asscts {or ¢lse group of asscls) are comtineed 16 be classilicd as asscts held for sale {or else
aronp of assets.

A discontinued operation is 2 division that is either disposed or held for sale. Ecsulls of
discontinved operations are mcluded separately in the income stateaent,

Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill aristng on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represcnts the
cxeess of the cost of acquisition over the subsidiary or Jointly controlled interast in the net fair
value ol the identifable asscts, habilities and conlingent liabilitics of the subsidiary or jointly
controlicd cntily recogmized at the date of acquisition, Goodwill is initially recosmized as an assel
al cost and is subscquently mceasured at cost less any sccumulated impaimucnt 1osses. For the
purpese of impairmend testing, goodwill is ailocated te each of the cash-generating units expecled
te benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-gensrating units to which goodwill has
been allocated arg tested for impainnent anoually, or more frequently when there is an indicalion
that the umit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of agy goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a sulsequent period. On disposal of 2 subsidiary or a jointly controlicd
entity, the attributable amoun of gopdwill is included in the determination of the profit or 1oss on
dispasal.

As of reporting date, The Bank has no goodwill on the vnconsclidated financial statements.

Intangible assets that are acquired prior 10 1 Januwary 2005 are caried at restated hislorieal cost as
of 31 Deccember 2004; and those acquired subsequently are carried at cost less accumvlated
amortization, and any impairment. Intangible assets are depreciated over their expected vschul
lives. Depreciation method and period are reviewed periodically at the end of each year,
intangible assets are mainly composed of rights and they are depreciated principally on a straight-
line basis hetween 1-15 years.
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SECTION THREE {Confinued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contioued)

XII.

XHI,

XIv.

Explanations on tangible assets

Tangibie assets rather than real estate, purchased before | January 2003, are accounted {or at their
restated costs as of 31 December 2004 and (ke asscts purchased in the [ollowing periods are
accounted for at acquisition cost less accumulaled depreciation and reserve for impainment. Gain
ar loss resulting from disposals of the tangble assets s rellecied 1o the meome stalement as the
dilference between the ool procceds and net book value, Nomaal muinténance and repair
cxpenditures are cecognized as expense.

As of the third quarter of the cument year, the Bank changed its accoumting policy and adopted
revaluation method for land and buildings under seope of TAS 16. The vseful life of real cstates
arc mentioned in expertise reports. In case of the cost of tangilie aszets are pver the net realizable
value of the assets, within the framewaork of “Tmpaimnent of Assets” (TAS 36), the value of the
asset is reduced to its “net realizable valoe” and the impairment is recognised m ¢xpense
sccounts. The positive difference Detween the net book valve of real estate property and the
expertise values which are determined by the independent expert companies are recogniscd under
sharehglders’ equity. Related valuation maodels such as cost model, macket value and discounted
cash flow projections approaches are used m valuation of real cstates.

There is no pledge, mortgage or any other lien on tangible assets. TangilHe assets are depreciated
wilh stratght-ling method and their wselul lives are delennined in accordancs with the Turkish
Accounting Standards. Deprociation rates and cstimaled uselul lives of langible assets are as
foliows.

Tangible Assets Expeeted Uselud Lives £Y ears) Depreciation Rate £%)
Cabores 150 225
Vehicles 5 § 20
Other Tangible Assets 1-50 2-100

Explanations on leasing transactions
The Bank as Lessor

Amounis due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Bank’s net investmeni in the leases. The lease payments are allocated as principle and interest.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting pericds so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Bank's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases,

The Bank as Lessee

Assets held under finance leasces are recognized as assets of the Bank at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present valve of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheat a5 a finance lease obligation,
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obiigation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of (he liability. Finance charges
are incheded in profit or loss in accordance with the Bank's general policy on bormowing costs.
Tangible assets acquired by financial lcascs are amartized based oo the uselul lives of the asscts.

Explanzafions on provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a presem oblipation dus 1o a past evend, it is probable that
an cutflow of resources cmbodying coonomic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and
a rcliable estimate can be made of thie amount of the obligation. If aforesaid criterias did not form,
the Bank discloses the issues menlicned in nokes to financial statements. Provisions are
determined by using {he Bank's best expectation of expenses in fulfiiling the obligation, and
discounted 10 present value if material.
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SECTION THREE (Continued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

XIV.

XV,

Explanations on provisions 2nd contingent liahilities (continued)

Explanations on contingent assets

Contingent assets consist of unplanned or other wnexpected events that usually cause a possible
inflew of economic benefits to the Bank. Since recognition of the contingent assels in the financial
statements wonld resvelt in the accounung of an income, which may never be generaled, the related
assets are not included in the financial statements; on the other hand, if the inflow of the economic
benelits of these asscts (o the Bank is probable, an explanation is made therecn in the foctnotes of
the financial statements. Nevertheless, the developments related to the contingent asscls are
constanlly evalualed and in case the inflow of the economic benefit to the Bank is almost certain,
the related asset and the respective income are recognised in the financial statements of the period
inn which the change ooourred,

Explanaiions on liabilities regarding employee benefits

Under Turkish law and union agresments, lumy sum payments are made to omployees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Bagk. In retivement and involumarily leaving, the Bank records the
present value of the defined benefit obligation. There is no indemnity obligations related to the
cmplovees who are canployed with contrast of limited duratton exceeding 12 month period.
Actuarial gains and losses are accounted under Sharehoider's Tquity since 1 Jamvary 2013 in
accordance with the Reviged TAS 19,

Employees of the Bank ave miembers of “Tlirkive Sinai Kalkimna Bankasi Anonim Sirketi Memur
ve Miistabdemleri Yardin ve Emekii Vakh” and “Tirkive Smat Kalkinma Bankasi A S,
Mensuplan Munzam Sosyal Givenlik ve Yardwnlagma Vakfi? (*the Pension Fund™). Technical
{inancial statements of those funds are subject 1o audit in accondance with the Lisurance Law and
provisions of “Regulations on Aciuaries” issued based on the related law by an actvary registersd
in the Actuarcial Registoy.

Paragraph 1 of the provisional Ariicle 23 of the Banking Act (“Banking Act™ No: 5411
published in the Official Gazetie No: 25983 ont 1 Movember 2005 requires the transfer of banking
funds to the Social Security Institution within 3 years as of the enactment date of the Banking
Act. Under the Banking Act, in order 1o account for obligations, acluanal calculations will be
made censidering the income and expenses of those funds by a cotmission consisting of
representatives from various institutions. Such calculated oblipation shall be settled in equal
instaliments in maxinm 1§ years. Monetheless, the related Arxticle of the Banking Law was
annulled by the Constitutional Court’s decision No: E. 2005/3% and K. 200733 dated 22 March
2007 that were published in the Otficial Gazetie Mo, 26479 on 31 March 2007 as of the release of
the related decision, and the execution of this arficle was cancelled as of its publication of the
decision and the utiderlying reasoning for the cancellation of the related atticle was published in
the Official Gazette No: 26731 on 15 December 2007.

After the publication of the reasoning of the cancellation decision of the Constitational Court,
articles related with the transfer of banks pension fund participants to Social Security Institution
based on Social Security Law oumbered 3754 were accepted by the Grand National Assembly of
Turkey on 17 April 2008 and published in the Official Garette No: 26870 on & May 2008,

Present vaiue for the liabilities of the transferees as of the transfer date would be calowlated by a
commission ithat involves representattves of Social Security Institution, Mimstry of Tinance,
Turkish Treasury, State Planning Organization, BRSA, SDTF, banks and banks’ pension fund
nstitutions and technical interest rate, used in achiarial account, would be 9 B0%,. If salaries and
benefits paid by the pension fund of banks and income and cxpenses of the pension funds in
respect of the insurance branches, stated in the Law, exceeds the salares and benefis paid wnder
the regplations of Social Security Instilwlion, such dilferences would be considered while
caleulating the present value for the liabilitics of the transferees and the transfers are completed
withinn 3 ycars beginning {rom 1 January 2008,
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SECTION THREE (Continued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(Continued}

XV,

XVL

Explacations on liabilities regarding employee benefits (continued})

Acecording to the provisional Asticle 20 of 73th article of Law Mo, 5734 dated 17 April 2008, has
become effective on B May 2008 and was published in the Official Gazette Mo: 26870, transfer of
Penston Funds o Social Security Institution in three years lias been anticipated. Related resoluiion
of the Council of Ministers related 1o four-year extension was published in the Official Gazette
Mo: 28227 dated 8 March 2012 1 has been resolved that the transfer process has been extended
two year willh Council of Ministers’ Decres, has become effective on 9 April 2011 and was
published in the Official Gazette Mo, 27900, The transfor had 10 be completed until 8 May 2013,
Accordingly, it has been resolved that, one more year extension with Council of Minister Decrec
MNo:2013/467, has become effective on 3 May 2013 and was published in the Official Gazette
N 280360 and transfer need to be completed uniil 8 May 2014, However, it has been decided to
exiend the time related to wansfer by the decision of Council of Minister published in the Official
Gazette No. 28987 dated 30 Aprl 2014 for one more year due to noi to realize the transfer
process. In accordance with the Health and Safety Law which became effective on 4 Apnl 2015
and published in the Cfficial Gazette No: 29335 and dated 23 April 2015 and together with some
amendments and siaiulory decree, Council of Ministers authorized for the determination of
transier date 10 the Social Security institution and there is no decision taken by the Cabinet with
regards to issue at the date of financial statements.

Unmet soctal benefits and payraents of (the pension [und paricipants and other employees that
receive monthly income although they are within the scope of the related seulement deeds would
b met by pension funds and the institutions employ these participants afier the transfer of pension
funds to the Social Securily Institution.

The present value of the liabilities, subject 1o the transfer to the Social Security Institution, of the
Fension Fund as of 31 December 2014 has been calculated by an independemt actuary in
accordance with the actuarial assumplions in the Law and as per acluarial repont dated 22 January
2013, as of 31 December 2014, there is no technical or actual shortage requiring provision.

In addition, the Bank's management anticipates that any lialility that may come cut during the
transfor penod and alter, in the comexl expressed above, would be financed by the assets of the
Pension Fund and would not cause any extra burden on the Bank.

Explanations on taxation
The income tax charge is composed of the sum of current (ax and deferred tax.

The corrent {ax liability is caleulated over taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in (he income stalement becavse it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible and it firther exclodes items that are never taxable or deductible. Liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assef or liability 15 recognized on differences between the camying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of laxable profit, and currcntly enacted tax rates are used to detennmine defermred tax on income.
Drefeired tax liabilitics are generaily recognized for all taxable temporary differences and defemred
tax asscls are recogmized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxabie profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differcnces can be
utilized.
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SECTION THREE (Continued}
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinucd)

XV¥L Explanaficons on taxation (continued)

Deferred tax asset is not aliocated over the amount of general provisions and provisions for
possible losses in accordance with the circolar of BRSA dated & December 2004 no.
BRSADTZM.2/13/1-a-3.

Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recogniticn of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profi.

The camrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred tax is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measvred at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply m the
perigd in which the liability 15 settled or the asset realized and reflected in the income statement
as cxpenge or income. Morcover, i the deferred 1ax is related witl items direetly recorded under
the cquity in the same or differenl penied, defermed tax is also associated directy with equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are alse offsct,

According to the second paragraph of the Aricle 53 of the Banking Acl No 5411 dated 19
October 2005, all specific reserves for loans and other reccivables are considered as deductible
expense for detenuining corporate tax base.

Transfer pricing

Transfer pricing is regulated through arficle 13 of Corporate Tax Law titled “Transfer Pricing
through camouflage of eamings”. Detailed information for the practice regarding the subject is
found in the “General Communiqué Regarding Camouflage of Gamings Through Transfor
Pricing”. According to the aforemcentioned regulaticns, in the case of making purchase or sales of
goods or services with relevant porsons/corporations at a price that is detennined against “ann’s
length principle”, the gain is considered to be distributed implicitly throngh transter pricing and
such distribution of gains is not subject to deductions in teans of corporate tax.

XVIL Additional explanations on borrowings

The Bank borrows funds from domestic and foreign institutions borrowing from money rarket
and issues marketable socurities in domestic and foreign markets when needed.

Borrowings are recognized at inital eost on (ransaction dale and carricd al amorlized cost using
cifcctrve interest mcthod, In (he accompanying finaocial statcanents, foreign cummency deln
instruemcits are valued using foretgm exchange vates of the Bank as of the pertod end and interest
cxpense amounis of related pericd ansing from bommowings are reflected in the financial
statements,

All ather borFowing costs are recorded to the income statement at the period they are incurred.
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SECTION THREE (Ceontinued)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

NVIIL Explanaeions on share certificates issued

XIX.

XX.

XXL

in the meeting of the General Assembly held on 26 March 2015, it has been resolved that, paid-in
capital of the Bank will be increased from TL 1.500.000 1o TL 1.750.000 by adding TI. 25{(.000.
In respect of the resclution of the General Assembly, TL 234 000 of this increase will be
mcorporated from the profil of the year 2014, TL 16000 of this increase will be incorporated
from extraordinary reserves provided for gain on subsidiary and real estate based on asticle of
CTL-3(1}/e. The increase in paid-in capital was approved by the BRSA on 15 May 2013,

In (he mecting of the General Asscmbly held on 27 March 2014, it has been resolved that, paid-
in capital of the Bank will be increased from TL 1.300.000 to TL 1.500.000 by TL 200.000. In
respect of the resplution of the General Assembly, this increase will be incerporated from the
profil ¢f the year 2013, The increase in paid-in capital was approved by the BRSA on 16 April
2014 and has been published in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette No: 8373 on 21 May 2014

Explanations on acceptances

Acceptances arc realized simultaneously with the payment dates of the customers and they arc
presented as commitrents in the off-balance sheet accounts.

Explanations on government incentives

The Bank does not use govemment incentives,
Explanations on segment reporting

In accordance wilh ils massion, the Bank mainly operates in investmeint and corporate banking
SEpments.

Corporate Marketing Management and Project Finance Manageniont operations are ingluded in
the comorate banking operations. The ecovporate banking is serving financial solutions and
hanking services for its medium and larpe-scale corporate customers. Among the services given
to corporate customers are; investment credits, project financing, TI and foreign cxchange
operating loans, letters of credit and letters of guarantees.

The activitics of investment banking ave; the operations of Treasury, Corporate Finance. Under
the investmenl banking activities, poitfolio management for corporate and individual costomers,
marketable securities intermediary activities, cash flow managenient and all types of cotporate
finance services is provided.

25



TURKIYE SINAL KALKINMA BANKASIL A.S.
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

(Amoonts are expressed in thowsands of Teekish Liva (TLY unless othenyise stated.}

SECTION THREE (Continued}
ACCQOUNTING POLICIES {Continucd)

XXI.

XXIL

Explanations e segment reporting {continned}

The sesmental allocation of the Bank's net profit, total assets and

total lisbilities are shown

below,
. Corporate Investient
Curzent Period i Bunking Bunking Cither j Tatal
Net Interest income i 243,240 202,331 -4 446,121
_iMut Fees and Cummission Incoms i 2,600 {458} __@i}__]____ 8050
Other Income 113 - 71089 | 74322
Other Expense {90.781) | {21.523) (55.664) | (167.468)
Peofit Belfoce Tax 161891 | 140,808 14.245 | 361,034
Tax Provision - - - {65.015)
Net Profit b 292.019
. Curporite Invesiment
Current Period Banlino Eankinz Diher . Total
Scgmont Asscts . Jazmosza | seseme| | 3sasigl 20583160
Inveshmont in Assncm!es a'nd SUh%IdIarIEw - - 200 758 G0 I5E
Totn Assets 5 14 270322 3.959.3 IQ_L (623,277 20852918
| Segrent Liabilities L6604 497 1550 404 | 169270 18.525 275
Sharcholders’ Equity - - 2327643 2.327.643
Total Linbilities ‘ o 16604487 | 1.551.499 2596021 20852018
Corporate [nvestnent 7
FPriar Period () Banking Baniang Cther Totz!
ot interest lacome 250693 63014 ! - 413,72
Mot Fees and Commission locone 0.758 44% - 06
Ahher Income 25,782 13523 34.405 iﬁ L ?3 B0 |
OtherEapense . .| @l e ] sl (3saig)
Profit Before Tax 233.80% 1154 D69 {39480y | 350 21493
Tax Prowvizion : | (71.328)
Net Profit 287.064
- Carporate ' m Investnaent
Prior Peciod {**) Exnking ! Banling Other Total
_SUsnem Assels . 10.280.620 4,321,846 Lo 103005 | 15405470
Invrestrciit in Aﬁsnmal{:s and Submdlarlcs - n 295242 205241
Total Assets 10.950.620 | 4.321.396 398.247 | 15700713
| Sepment Liabilinies e _10.856.683 | 2219230 | 33678 | ___]_3_425_‘&.
Sharchalders” Equity .. - 2 288085 2 2RE 085
Total LizhBitics 10.856.683 2.219.230 | 2.624.8300 | 15706713

™ fachedes infarmation of 3 Seprenber 2074
4 feepfudes ffnration of 35 Meecmfier 2014,

Explanaticns on ¢iher matters

None,
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FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are exprassed in thousands of Turkizsh Lira (TEY unless atherwise stabed.)

SECTION FOUR

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND EISK

MANAGEMENT
I.

Explanations related to the unconsolidated capital adequacy standard ratic

Bince 1 July 2012, capital adequacy standard ratip iz caleulated in accordance with the
Comrunigué on “Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adeguacy of Banks™, which was
published on 28 June 2012 in the Official Gazette numbered 28337, In this context, credit and
market risk are calcuialed based on the Standardised Approach and the operational sk is
cateulated based on the Basic Indicator Approach. In the calenlation process of credit nsk, leans
are classificd in the related risk weight by taking into account the risk portfolio types, ralings and
credit visk mitigation techaigues. The Bank uses “comprehensive approach” for irading book
itens in the credit mitigation process.

As of 30 Seplember 2015, the Bank's capilal adequacy ratic in accordance with the Comamuniqué
on “Measurcment and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks™ is 13 48%.

Iniformation related to the unconsolidated capital adequuey standard ratio

Current Period

.. Bisk Weinhts {*)

The Bonk

%

20%

50%%

5%

18G%

The Amount Sabject to Crodit Rish

]
3.115.503 }

1.57%.338

4.077. 795

14,506,173 |

200%

Risk Typeos

Contingent and non-contingent claims
onseyercigng ..
Continzent and nen-contingent claims
on regional governments and local
athonties

1
L dnsana

4

i
4
i

LIRS

Contingent and nen-contingent claims
on administrative units and non-
commereial enlerpeises

Contingent and nen-contingeat claims

on multilateral development baks - L

Contingent and non-contingent claims
un internalienal organizalions

Contingent and pon-contingent claims
an banks and capital market
inpennediary

1,546,559

15220

Conngenl and non-contingent chaims
| 0N COMOTANCS e
Conttazenl and non-contingent claims
included in the regoiatory retail
_porfolics

o nn 2349

Contagenl and non-contingent claims
secured by peal catate propanty

LO15235 ¢

13.061.537

1.004.859 |

Pasl duc loans

$19.867 i

Higher-risk catezovies defined by the
board

 Scouritiss secuwred by mortgage

 SccuTilizilion expusuTes

Short-term claims an banks wnd
intermediary institutions L
Undeitakings for collective investmants
in wpnglerable securities

Ciher £laions

Y

apsm|

) The Bamk s ng crealit vigh reloved o fi, 2500 and 12507 vigk weight,
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015
(Amoums arc expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TLY unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FOUR {Continued}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)
L

Explanations related to the nneensalidated capital adequacy standard ratio (continued}

Information related to the unconsalidated capival adeguecy standard ratio foontinued)

Rizh Wieighis (*)

| Prior Period

TheBank

T e 2o s L e 160% | 150% ] 200%

l ha: Amount Subject Ly 'Ct"f:d!t R:Sk I 33475 | 396971 | 2,351, 3'27 = IAR315TS 41 &
Rigk Types : :

Contingeat and ngn-contingend claims on sovercizng P 3012457 1 5433 i -
Contingent and non-conlingent claims on rogional govemments | i

und local guthories S A . S SRS S
Contingent and non-contingent claims on administrative units and ‘ i '
non-commercial coterpeises ; - - ; 213 5 - -
Contingent and nen-conbingent claims an noubdalceal i i '
duvelopment banks N 813 o SO SO ) I N
Contingent and non-contingent claims an internatienal | . i
| crganizations - | - - ] - -
Contingent and nea-contingear claims on banks and capital ! } i

market intermediary. o ) -] 47773 | EM5RTC -: i -
Contingent and nen-contingent claims un compurates s -] 419098 '}36}46' " l 10530858 I___-__________
Conungzcnt and non- continzent claims included in the regulaory | : I

retail povtfolios : - - - Ny - - )
Conumgent and noa-contingent claims sceored by real estate :
| property o < 439328 | -1 - -

Past duc loans — P, __'_.i R —— -— - - - .
Higher-risk catcgorics defincd by the Board ' S NV R .z il 3
Seceritics secured by mortgage i -1 - - - - .
Securitization exposures ; _ L

Ehort-tema claims on banks and ||1tu::nwr.:u:lmr:.r msuluuon.s | - - - -

Undentakings for calleciive investracnls in trapsforablc scc:unt:cs |_ _ _;{ - - - -

Dther claimsa | gl -1 - 400,504

{* Flve Band has no credit risk reloted 1o W%, 25300 amd 12509 risk weight.

Senniary inforoiation related fo the unconsofidated capftal adequacy standard ratio

ol CovcentPeriod | Prior Periad

E’)I!ﬂl Requirement for Credin Risk {Amount subject le Credit Risk*0,08) {CRCRJ L.349.680 i 952676
Capitol Beguirement (o iarket Rigk {CRMR) 57924 | 27906
| Capital Requircment for Operational Risk (CROR) e I L1 s G5.609%
Sharcholders” Equity 2500255 | 2434434
Sharcholders” Equity {ICRCRAHCRMR CRORY * 12,51 100} 1348 | 1809
Principal Capital 4{ CRCR-CRMR+CROR) *12,51100) i _1253] 16,99
Core Capitali{ CRCE+CEMRHCROR) 712 59 100) 12,53 1 16,09
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM FERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPFTEMBER 2(15
[Ampunts are cxpressed in thonsands of Tuckish Liea (T1L) unless otherwise stated.}

SECTION FOUR (Continucd)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {(Continued}

L Explanations related to the unconsolidated capital adequacy standard ratio {continued}

Information reluted to the shareholders’ equity

Current Period | Prior Period |

TIER 1 CAPITAL !
Paid-in capital to boe entidled for compenzation after all ceedicors . 1.75(1374 1.500.374

Share premium e :

Share cancellaign profit : - -
Legal reserves : 353.598 306,491
Other comprehcnsive income ascordingtotas i 1046%9] 128,770 |
Profit E 292.01¢ 369.274
Me| current pesiod profit : 292.019 369.274
Priorperiod profe ; - -

Pravisions for possibly lusses
Bonus sharcs from asrocigtes, subsicdharics and joint-venlores not accounted in current H
poriod’s profit - -

[Yier [ Capital Before Deductions ... oo 2SODSBL L 2304909
__E_I_gj_l:t_c!mns Fror Tier [Lap:tn! :

Kourvant and prior pestods’ losses nol coversd by reserves, and losses accounted under ; :

keguity according Lo s (-} . 73,335 § 16,824

Leaschold improvements on operational leascs {-) : 3,204 ! 45

Cingdwill and intangible asscis and related deforred tax liobilities {-) o7 %0

Met deferred (ax asscts/|iabilities ) s e Y A -

Sharcs, obtained against article 36, pﬂmgmph 4 of the bun]».mg IawE o T N
[nvestmends in own common equity -} - -

Fotal of net long positions of the investiments in equity bems uf'unmnsu!ldated hanks and
financialingtituliong wheee the hank does not own 1092 0 Tess of the issued share capital
precoding the 10% threshold of above Tier L eapital () " -

Total of net long positions of the investments in cquily icms of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the hank s H]% ofless gl the issued share capital

‘-"[or!;,agcs serwcmgﬂghls cxcoeding tlm [ lhreshnl-:l ;}I’TJEr 1 capital {— - .
et defermed tax assets arising from temporary differenees exceeding thel 0% threshold of

[Tier I capital (-} i - -
[Aarioant excceding the 15% threshold of Tier § capital as per the article 2, clauge 2 of the !

rerulation on measuremen! and assesament of capital advguacy ratios of banks (-) i o -

The portion of nel g position of the mvestmenls in cquily items of uncensolidaied I:unl-:sl
and Ninancial institwions wiers the bank owns 18% of more of the issucd share capital not ;
pleducted from Tier | capitad £-) : - -

pongage servicing rights not dedugted (-) -

Excess amount anising from dufemed tax assets from temporary difforences <)
ther items e by defined by the BRSA (-) _
Deduciions from Tier 1 capital in eases vhers there are no adeguate additional Tier | of

§
i
i
i
|

Tier I capitals (-} - -
Total Regulatory Adjustments to Tier I Capital : 177.649 1 18.259
[Tier 1 Cupitul 2313832 2.286.550
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINAMA BANKASI 4.5,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERTOD [ JANUARY-30 SEFTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Tuckish Lira (TL)Y wnless otherwice stated )

SECTION FOUR {Contioued}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {Continued)

L

Information related ta the sharcholders® aquity fcantinued)

Explanations relzted to the nnconsolidated capital adequacy standard ratio {continued)

jCurrent Peried

. ADDITIONAL CORE CAPITAL

Frior Period

Preferred siock not mcluded uy Taer I eapital and the relaked share premioms

rebt instroments and the celated igsrance premivms dehined by the BRSA (issued of ubtmnt.d
fafier 1.1.2014)

Drcbt instruments and i related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA (issued of n'htamed'

before 1.1.2004)

dditignal care csp:tnl hl:l'nre dcd ueions

Dedueticns From AdditGona] Core Copitel

Direct and indircet invesimends of e bank on its own additional egee capital €3 |

Toral of nct long positions of the iInvestiments incguity nems of uaconsolidatcd banks and
financial institutions where the bank owne 10% of lees of the issued shace capital exeeeding
the 10% threshold of sbove Tier leppital Y
The total of net long position of the direel of indirect investments in addltmnal ﬁ-::r I cap:tai
ol wunconsolidaicd banks and financial institations where the bark owns more than 10% of the
issued share capital (-3

Kther items 1o be defined by the BR3A () T
Creductions from additional core cagital in casey whers there are no adequate Tier 10 capital {-
y

Total deductions from additional cove capital =~

Tetal Additional Core Capital

Dreductions From Tore Capiinl

Cinodwill and orher intzngible assets and related defesred taxes non dedosted Jrom Tier T !
capital az per the temporany antcle 2, clawse 1 of e regolation on mcasercment and i
assessment of capital adequacy ratios of banks (<)

et deferred tax assct/liability not deducted from Tier | capital as per the lemporary ariicle 2, |
clause 1 af the regulation on measueernent and assessment of capital adoguacy ratios ul’banks.

(-}

2.323.932

1.286.650

T‘oml Core anztnl i '
_TIER U CAPITAL :

Cebt instrnents and the related issoance peemivms defined by the BREA {issucd of 1::|I:.-'lz'1u'nazu:lj
frer 1.1.2014)

1

Dobr insirumcats and the related issuance peemiuvms defined by the BRSA {issved of obtained:
cfore 1.1, 2014) _

20,7143

Pledged asscis of the sharcholdurs to be used for the bark’s capital increases |

Ficneral provisions 155.973

123134

Tier IT Canital Before Deductions 176.718

143.244

Deductions From Tier [[ Captial
Direet ard ndircct investments of the bank on s own Tier 1T capiai {-)

Tatal of net long posnions of the nvesiments i cquily items of vnconsolidated banks and
financial institetions where the bank cwns 0% of less of the issued share capital exceeding
ch 10% threshold of above Tier IF capital {-)

The toral of net long posibon of the direct of indirect investmenis in additional core capiral
and Tier [T capital of uneonselidated banks and financial institutions where the bank owns
10% of more of the issucd share capital cxecediog the 1% threshold of Tier 1 capital {-)

Cther ilems 1o be delined by the BRSA (-)
[Total Deductions From Tier II Capiral

[Total Tier [I Capital I 76,718
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish fira (TLY enless othenvise stated )

SECTION FOUR {Continued}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK

MANAGEMENT {Continuecd)

L Explanations related fo the nueonsolidated capital adequacy standard vatic {continwed)

Information related to the shaveholders’ equity fcontinned)

Currenat ' Prior Period

CAPITAL

2.500.650

1.43438%4

Loans granted apaiast the anticles 30 and 51 of the banking law (-)

et boeok values of mevables and immovables excesding the limit defined in the article 57,
clavse 1 of the banking law and the asscis acquired against overdue receivables and held for
kale bl redained mors than five years (-]

395

60

Laans to bandks, (inancial institutions (doncsticforcign) of gualificd sharcholders in the fomm
ol subordinated debts or debt instnoments purchased from such parties and qualified as
subordinated debts ()

Deductions as per the acicle 20, clause 2 of the regulation on measurement and assessment of
capital adequacy ratios of banks {-)

her itoms o be defined by the BREA ()

The pertion of 1otal of ned long positions of the investnents in eguity items of eaconsolidaled
hanks and financial instutions where the bank owns 10% or less of the issucil sharc capital
crececding the 109 threshold of above Tier | capital not deducted from Tier § capital,
pdditivnal vore capital or Tier 1 capilal a3 por the teinporany anticle 2, claose | ofhe

regulation (-} e

I'he poetion of 1otal of net long positions of the investments i cquity ilems of wnconsolidated
banks and financial instiwtions whers the bank owns more than 108 of the isswed share
vapital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier T capital not deducted from additional core
Capial o Tiee I capital as por the lemporary acticle 2, claose 1 of e regulation {-)

The pertion of net long pesition of the investments tm equity ems of unconsolidaled banks
nd financial msticwtions where the bank owns 10% or more of (he 1ssued sharc capital, of the
el deferredd (ax assels arising from wopovary differences and of e mongage servicing rights

1ot deducted from Tier B capitad as per the wnporne anticle 2, clause 2, paragragh (1) and {2}:

and temporary article 2, clause 1 ol the regulation -3

EQUITY

2.500.2155

2434434

Ameuars Lower Than Excesses As Per Deductien Rules

emaining total of net long positiens of the investments in equity ems of unconsclidated
bamks and Gnancial institotions where the bank owns V095 or bess ¢f the issucd share capital

i

]

22,597

19.363

tcmaining tatal of nct long positions of the investments in Tier 1 capital of uncensolidated
banks and Grancial institotions wheee the ank owns mares than 19% or less of ihe Ticr |

gapial o
ERcmaining morlgags servicing rizlts

. leda]

... 402463 |

'i.\h:t deferred tax assers anging (vom winporary differences

316038

The tables of “Summary of Capital adequacy standard ratic”, “Insiglus of Owner’s cquity components™
and “Insights of Conrsclidated Owner's cquity components” stated in second paragraph of the article no.7
of the Communigué on Financial Statements 1o be Poblicly Announced and the Related Policies and
Dhisclosures published i Cfficial Gazette No. 28337 dated 28 June 2012 have been amended by the

Communigué published in Official Gazette No. 28983 dated 26 Apnl 2014,

The Bank has been calcolating its unconsclidated and consolidated equity within the framework of
“Regulation on Equity of Banks™ published in Official Gazette No. 28756 dated 5 September 2013 since
1 Janwary 2014; unconsolidated and consclidated capital adequacy standard caticos are calculated also

within this context.
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{Amounts are cxpressed in thousinds of Terkish Lici (TLY nnless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FOUR {(Continued}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

I. Explanzaticns related to the unconsclidated capital adequacy standard ratic {continued)

Informatian velated to the sharvehalders’ equity (continued)

Components af items of shareholders' equity subject to temparary applications

The Bank

Amount considered in
the calculation of equity |
of current period

Teatsl Amgunt

Goodwill and Intangible Assers and Related Deferred Tax Liabilites (-)

Net Deferred Tax Assct/Liability

v

Teal of Mea Long Positions of the Investments in Equity Items of
Unconsolidated Banks and Financial Institutions whers the Bank Cwas
10% or leas of the [ssoed Share Capital Exceeding the 10%: Threshold of
above Tier | Capital (-}

The Total of Mel Long Pasition of e Dieeel or indiccer Invesimenls in
Additional Core Capital and Ticr 11 Capital of Unconsolidated Banks and
Fenancial nglitaions where the Bank Owns 10% or more of the Tesued
Sharc Capital Excecding the 10% Threshold of Tier | Capital ()

Dbt instruments and the Relaled (ssemce Premicems Beline] by the

BRSA {lssucd before 1.1.200143

20745 |

L5000

The Bank

T

Amount considered in
the caleulation of equity
of prior period |

Tokal Ampunl

Goeedwill and Inlangible Assets and Belated Deforred Tax Liahilitics (-}

‘Nt Deferred Tax Asset/Liability

Total of Nea Long Positions of the Invesimends in Equity Items of
Unconsalidated Banks and Financial Institutions where the Bark Owns
10% or leas of the [ssued Share Capital Exceeding the (0% Threshold of
above Tier | Capital (-3

The Total of Met Long Positian of the Direed or Indirect Investments in
Additional Core Capital and "Ticr 1L Capital of Unconsolidated Eanks and
Fimancial Ingtitutions where the Bank Owas 10% o more af the Bssucd
Sharc Capital Exceeding the 10% Threshold of Tier T Capital (-}

Chebt Instruments and the Related Isswance Prempams Defimed by the
BRSA (lssucd befare 1.1.2004)

230540

113.250

Information about the debt instraments tnelieded in the equity colealation

The subordinated bormmowing, which the Bank used from the Intemational Finance Corporation (TFC)
through direet [inancmg, has the approval of BRSA and considercd under the temporary Adicle 4 even
not having the conditions stated in Article 7 and Article 8 of the “Regulation on Equities of Banks™. As of
30 September 2015, 20% of the subordimated borrowing amounting TL 150.000 (50 million US Dollar) is
included in caloulation of additional Tier 1 Capital (31 December 2014 TL 115.250).
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FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD I JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

[Amounts are expressed in thowsands of Toekish Lies {T1) unless othe nvise staled, b

SECTION FOUR {Continued)}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE ANID RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

L.

Explanations related to the unconsolidated capital edequacy standard ratio {continued)
Tnformarion related to the shareholders' equity {continued}

The approwches used for internal capital adeqiiacy assessment in tevins af current and futiive
activitics

Mot prepared in accordance with the Arpicle No25 of the Comomuniqeé on the Financial

Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes 1o be Announced 1o Public by Banks,

1L

I11.

Explanations related to credit risk

Mot preparcd in accordance with the Article Mo.25 of the Communiqué on the Finarcial
Statemtents and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks.

Explanations related to the market rigk

In order 1o avoid the markel risk and restrict the risks camied, the Board of Directors determines
the liamils on market risk. Risk, notional and propoitional basis linitation systems arc vsed and
the inlormalive reporls regarding market risk position of the bank are presented 1o Board of
Directors, relevant committess and top managenent.

The pguidelines prepared by the Risk Management Departnent regarding  orzanization,
responsibility and belds of activity were are approved by the Board of Dircetors, Risk
management policies are determined and announteed throughout the Bank.

Lepally, (he standard meltkod s used to calculate the consclidated and unconsobidated market
risk. In addition 1o the standard method, the Bank applies Monte Carlo simulation which is
intermal modsl to securities podtfolio, foreign currercy posilion on a daily or monthly basis 1o
detect the market risks, The success of these models is tested retrospectively. The Bank also
makes VaRk calculations, scenario analyses and stress tests to detect the risks not caught by using
internal models. Market risk is measured on a daily basis and reported to top management, Audit
Conunittes and the Board of Directors weekly and monthly.

Information related to ehe marlet risk:

Current Period Prior Period
{1} Capital Reguirement 10 bt Employed for General Murket Risk - Standard 21083 1 T 12030
kii} Capital Requirement o be Emploved for Speeific Risk - Standand 3 elhad L 3' oy
Capital Requirement foe Specilic Risk Belating te Scouritization Pesitions —
Standard bcthed "
Fily Capital Requurement iy bes Employed fur Carmency Risk - Standard Method 10.250 733%
#I"-.-’} Capital Requirement to be Employed for Commodity thk Stdndnrd - .
{V'} Cupital Requirement 1o be Employed for Setdement Risk - Standard "-"[clhod = =
Vi) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed for Markel Bisk Besuliing From
Gptions — Standard Meshod o ) e 675 2
¢V Counterparty credit risk capital T-::qun-:mcnt - Standard 1oethod 19213 G543
k\-’il!} Toial Capital Requiremeal 1o be Employed for Market Risk in Banks Using
[Risk ¥leasurement Model o -
(1) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed for Markes 57924 27906
X Amount Subject to Market Bisk (12,5 x Y11 or (12,5 x YI : Ti4.050 348,825
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SECTION FOUR {Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

1.

1b

iy.

Explanztions related to the market risl {continued)
Average market risk table ay of the month ends during the period:

Mot prepared in accordance with the Aricle No.25 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks,

Explanation related to counter party risk

Not prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Communiqué on the Fimancial
Statcmenis and Related Disclosures and Footnotes (0 be Announced to Public by Banks,

Required disclosures in case the capitzl requirement of the Banok is calculated by a risk
mceasurement model permitted by BRSA

Mot prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Commuwniqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Dasclosuzes and Footnotes (o be Announced to Poblic by Banks.

Explanations related to cperational risk

Wot prepared in accordance with the Article No.23 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Foptnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks.

Explanaticos refated to currency risk

No long or shert position is taken due to the uncertainties and changes in the markets therefore: no
exposure Lo foreign currency risk is expected. However, possible foreign currency risks arc
calenlated on a rmonthly basis under the standard tnethod in the foreign currency risk table and
their results are reported to the official authorities and the Bank’s top management. Thus, foreign
currency risk is closely monitored. Foretgn currency risk, as a pant of general market risk, 15 also
taken into consideration in the calculation of Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio.

No short posilion is taken regarding foreign cumrency risk, whereas, counter position is taken for
any forsign curmency risks arsing from customer transactions as to avoid foreign currency risk.

Antounced eurrent foreign exchange buying rates of the Bank as at reporting date and the
previous five working days in US Dollar and Evro are as follows:

e e AUSDollar 1 Eure

The Bank's “Foreign Exchange Valuation Rate™ ! e
30 September 2015 3,0000 33714
Prior Five Workdays: N N S
2% September 2015 3,0350 AL ER
28 Seprember2015 o AMse]  aawn
23 September 2015 3,000 .. 3aaTR
22 September 2015 2,9730 3.3274
21 September 2015 29700 33570

Simple arithmetic thirty-day averages of the US Dollar and Euro buying rales of the Rank before
the reporting date are full TL 2, 9798 and 3,3476; respeclively.
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SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK

MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Y. Explanations related to curreacy risk {continued}

Information on the Bank's foreign cuvrency visk :

NN —ioBere i USDoffar | Other 8C_ | Total
Courrend Perind : !
Asgels . U RORRTPR S
Caash {Cash in Vauh, Foreign Cumrency Cash, ioney in i
Transi, Checks Pawchased, Peecioos Melals) and Balamoes !
silh the Centea| Bank of Turkey C 162905 437.203 DEOG8  GUE23R
Banks ) 2,731 | 34.430 628 | 58790 |
Financial Assets al Fair Yalue Throwgh Profit and Loss (%) 0. 507 401670 G873 54.009
rdoncy Markel Placements - - - ——
Available-For-Sale Financial Assels ______________L____E_{i_.i!i__i___’______S_\EE_.E_.___E_?? o 01672
Lodeansity [5.163.557 | §350.518 - | 13.514.075
Subsidiaries, Associatcs and Enfities Under Corunon : :
Comtrol (Joinl Yent) - - - -
Held-Fo-Malniny Invesiments ik 164,595 - s, 160596
Dovivative Fisangial Assers for Hedging Purposes ______;______ ... 3Bo2R| - 35628
CTagibledssess : o : - -
__. Imongible Asscts :! - - - -
Qilier Assots (7%*) 4 22370 11 223 7158
Total Assuls L :! 5473120 | I0A7IA0L 186,532 ISH30043
Liabifilics
Bank Depasing i % e e - =
... Forcign Currency Deposits ! - - - -
Money Markel Boomowings | 28284 19.137 ; ... 37421
Funds Provided From Qihcy Financial Instilusions 15,534,588 3,083,787 !F - i . 13.618.375
Markewblo Seeuniies Issved o) 2169.930 - 2.169.930
- Miscellimenus Payables (7274 316 30.402 | - 38.563
Drerivative Firancial Linkilitics for Hedging Purpascs ' - - S
Onleer Linbilitics +%***) 7783 00,339 : 5,776 I 104,395
Total Liabiities o :5.578.816 | 10.304.895 ! 5.776 | 15.978.687
Met Balance Sheet Pasilion . : (206.696) {222.764) | 100.756 5 (328.644)
Mot Df-Balanee Sheet Position 1 197,758 2I8.651 E________{Qﬁ._i_}lﬂjf_l-}_;______3&3@_
Financiol Deviative Assrs o 905050 | C18s335E 1 1411491 2899657
Financial Denvative Liabitiies . (7073627 | (1.624.707) . (239199 {  {2.571.263)
Non-Cash Logms (45245 827.340 | 8247870 12706 __1.664:833
Friar Feriod . i ]
Tal Assets 3Falgqz 7.250.6M THETE ' 1059430
Teial Linbilivies 4.260.541 ! 4.850.330 - A1.1104871
Net Balence Sheet Position {498.669) | 404364 | TSATA (21432)
Net Off -Halance Sheet Fosition 301,868 | {287.450) 2., lagm0
Finaneizl Deavative Asscts 793,853 | 99,758 62,998 ' 1357604
Financiyl Denivative Liabilities (205946 1 {1.043.824) | (13B.675) | (1.473.445)
Mon-Cash Loans {******) 00421 G40.324 10,756 1.021.232

%) Exchange rate diffrrences grising feom forivativg mansoctions anieding v TL M48.832 is dedwecrad from “Futancial Assets ar

Fair Falwe Through Profit and Lass ™.
o) L oens exicnded frcinde TL L SN2 foreipr civvoncy indexed loans.

*% Prepaid expemscs amoeling fo TL 300 and forwernd ficeten exclionge percfigse fransaciion Fedifcounis qimmnng ig 1L 247

frare nal fpaw inclisdod i "Eeler Assors

™% % Forvard fareipe exclange purelase trausaesion rediseoumts anauuiing fo L 285 hag wor boan ingiuded I “Adiscelloneats

Pavables ™

fretent Markeeodle secwcires vafuation decrewse fivd gmenwating fo TL 1842 and exchange rate diffcrences aviging feam
derivaifey frangachons amopreing e TL F45.600 have mot feen dncfuded in “Other Liobilities . Barvawer finds omounting 15,

88 732 hared on forelgn corvencies frave been incfuded in “Odher Linifitics ™,
(=" Hus ao effect o sel off-bafanace shieer position.
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TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amopunts are cxprossed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TLY unbess athenyise stated )

SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {Cantinued}

V1.

Explzoations related to interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity of the asscis, liabilities and off-balance sheet #tems are nieasured by the
Bank. General and spectfic inerest rale risk tables in the standard method, by including assets and
liabilities, are taken into account in determimatton of Capilal Adequacy Standard Ratic and (o
caleulaie the overall interest rate risk of the Bank,

Forecast results, which have been formed using estimation-simulation reports are preparcd amd
then the effects of fAuctuantons in imtercst sates are evaluated with sensitivity and scenario
analysis. Cash requiternent for every maturity period are determimed based on maturily
distribution amnaiysis (Gap). In addition, a positive spread between the vield on assets and the cost
of liabilities is kept while delermuining interest rates.

The amound of local bomowings is very low considering the total liabilities of the Bank. As the
Bank 15 a developmient and inveshment bank, il obtains most of the funding from albroad.

‘The fluctuations in interest rates are controlled with interest rate risk iables, gap analysis, sconario
analysis and stress tests, its effect in azsets and liabilities and the probable changes in cash flows
are being sereened. The Bank screens wmany risk conirol ratios including the warkets risk ratio to
the sum of risk weiglied assets and the ratio of the value at risk calentated as per (he inlemal
model to the equity.

Under the scope of sk policies, conlinuous controls are made to prevent assets or sharcholders'
cquily {rom adverse clfcols becawse of luctuations in interest rates or liquidity difficulties and
top managemet, Hhie Board of Directors and the Audit Cormmittes are informed of these risks.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIDD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2815

{Amounts are cxpressed in thousands of Turkish Lir (TLY unless othenyvise stated .}

SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued}

V1. Explanations related to interest rate risk {eontinned)

Information related to the interest vate sensitivity of assets, labifities and aff-balance sheet
items (bused on repricing datey)

. SYears | Non-
Current Period Uptol 1-3 3-12 I-5 Coand 1 interest |
Month ivonths | #wonihs Years Dwer ' bearing {*V:  Total
Asggets .
o (G Vit Boraian S e i -
Cumrency Cash, WMoncy in Transit, ; .
Checks Purchaged) and Balances i ;

. with the Central Bank of Tuckey | 4654841 =~ -1 - - -1 260983 | 726467
Banks 301401 - - - - 23,089 I 59.000 |
Financial Assels ol Fair Value '

Thrgugh Prodit and Logs 110,901 102,524 £1.904 ER ] b 26,040 -]

_ Money Market Placements | |046.485 | 70005 - - - -1 1116490

B e IEs SRR LEc o R o ) (AP E L
Available-for-Sale Financial Assers 478338 TIZ 0G| 3GATe0 T 4040 [ STIRGH IGA1Ty 2904741 |
Loans 1.547.567 |5.546.996 |5.278.362 | 1.584.592 | 312,305 - 1..14.270.322 |
Held-to-hMaberity Invesiments - ; 37339 | Ga3EIG: - 160ESG | -1 252035
Other Assets I ¥ -1 3g62s ! . | 6232171 661905

i H '
Total Assets ! 3379966 : 6.469.363 IﬁAIE,{FSﬂi T 2364760 1 1.071.107 949,668 | 20.851.018
: - : . . sl
Liahilities : , ! !
Bank Deposils - - - . ? - I -
Oither Deposits L - - : -] - -] . _
| Money Market Borrowings | 1.966.623 60 ! : - - - j 1966633
Miscollaneous Payables - - - | S5 123600 123600
hiarketable Securitics Iggued - -i _—_: 2.169.930 i - %_________ | 2169930
Funds Provided from Oiher Financiad ! i 1 1
 Imstiwions | 1.513.067 15.077.949 14,565 000 395423 1I.Glﬁ.613 i - | 13696057 |
{Hher Liakilitics (*9) 057841 100679 ] T4 4217 I - | 573322 [ 2 R9G.648
Tatal Liabilittes B 3.581.474 i 5.187.668 14.661.646 | 3.108.570 '1.616.618 ] 2.695.922 | 20.852.218
Balance Sheet Long Position - 1.281.675 1,756,408 -G _ =] 3033083
... Balange Shect Short Position 1 (1508 - - | (7438100 [{345.511) | (1.747.254) | (3.033.083)
Of-Balance Sheet Long Position - - - 1,100 - - 1100 |
CHI-Balance Shoet Short Pozition {20.5643) (16.524) 0 {4.033) - - - (4120
Totel Position £22.151) 1,265,151 1?523?5‘_(142'110} {545.511) | {1.7T47.254} {40.100; |

{7} Artoeenrs frr fRvestrroents e osgociafes il sebsidinnies, entines wider commrme conteal, deferved tay assel, fnecsinens propecdy, tongilile and
frtorrgidle aisers. efer asers and shaveloddors ' ciquidy. previtiens aed fay Neddfit ore presented e woe-tterest bearing colme, in order 1o
recancile the tonaf asiets o labitities o the balenee shecr,

(%2 Borvower fimds omeouniing o FL 89 204 are presented i VOoher Liabilities " within §-srosth maecity eahan,



TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKAST A.S.

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERTM PERIOD 1 JANUARY 30 SEPTEMEBER 2015
{Amouns are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lica (TLY wnless othenwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR {Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

¥ Explanations related to intcrest rate risk (continued)

Average interest rates applied to monetary finarcial instruntents: %

Eare | US Dallar Yen 5 TL
Current Period i I o
Assets . .
Cash {Cash in Vault, Forcign Cumency Cash, :
dWoney in Transit, Checks Purchased) and 3
. Balances with the Cenral Bawk of Turkey = o 820 233
Banks - L35 ' - -
Financial Assets at Fair Value Theough Profit ! !
___and Loss ; =8 IS SRS I 877
| Money Market Placements % - - - 12,90
Available-for-Sale Financial Assels } 3,60 4,72 - R
Held-te-Maturity Investments i - 5,30 - 10,07
_____ Liabilitics f I T
Bank Deposilts : - - 1 . -
Cvher Deposils . _ - - | [
__ Moncy MarketBorowings 050 0,50 9,79
Miscellancous Payahles i - - - E -
.. Madkewble Seewritiesdsswed Lo saaf o ob -
Baorrowar Furds 0,50 I 0,50 A 6,04
Funds Provided Froom Cher Finaneial Instidutions 0,22 i i.50 - Ll B




TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKAST A.5.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTEREM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMEBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed in thowsands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION Oix UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRIUUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT ¢Continued)

¥

Explanaticns related to interest rate risk {continued)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivity of assets, Habilities und off-Balance sheer
items of prior period (based on vepricing dates)

i 5 Years Nem-
Prior Period Uptotl 1-3 312 1-3 and inferest
hanth Months [ Months | Years Over | bearing [*3 Total
Asiets I ;

Cach [Cash in Vault, Foreign i :

Currency Cash, Monoy in Trangil, ; : i

Checks Purchased) and Balances :

wilh the Eenteal Bank of Turkey 311528 - - - - 476160 ;507788

Banks 94854 | 202003 -l of-l 7263 122312

Financial Asscis at Fair Valuc : .

Theaugh Profit and Loss | 4. 985 13.620 53.326 - - - 71931
. Money Market Placcinenls | esay g semei ol ool o] 0asis
i _ﬁa@@_—ﬁ{r_—_§§1§h_i:}_pgl_p_g:_'|_s_l__l__;ﬁ.§s_<_:§___IJ_____?D].‘:?"Q}__ 33038 7 K869 S06.103 [ 321014 33047 | 3314308

Loans 2.109.855 | 3.596.176 | 3.911,384 |1.163.684 | 199521 | _-.110,980.620 |

... Held-to-Marurity Investments | -5 oo -d o en e -] - -

Other Assets - - - - -1 398247 303347
Total Assets 3.009.146 | 4.402.217 | 4.483.400 [1.769.787 | 721437 } SL4.717 | I5.700.713
Liowtities Lo IO IS S B _

Bank Deposis - - - - - -l -
___ Ewhur Deposits _ - o ', s ; . " _= ,

Miancy Markot Borrowings TOTLIS0 L 00749 - -1 - - 216240

: ! ] i

Miugcellanegus Payables - - - - i - 545471 84547

Marketable Securities lssued - - .. B13.824 | - -1 813,824

Funds Provided from Other : ; :

Financiai instiwtions 2873602 | 3.309.332 | 2.226.483 | 406,083 ;919,70 -l 8995683 |

Other Liabilities (%) 53,463 4.577 43289 i 2583 | 2540053 ] 2644165

4 i
Total Liabilitics A.995.815 ; 3.605.153 | 2.269.77% |1.279.889 | 922284 | 2.624.500 :15.700.713 |
: . ! ;
Balance Sheet Long Posilion - 797064 ; 2.613.637 | 489.398 - J 3.000.50% |
_ Balance Shoct Shant Position | (19896691 -l ., - 1{200.847) | 1.710.083) |(3.900.599)

HT-Balance Shect Long Posilion 6347 L1043 ! - | 504.062 - -i s

OHf-Balance Shect Short Position - | - 1 {562.581) - (1655181 - (725089
Total Position , {1.933.322) | 308.167 § 2.051.656 $93.960 (366365} | {1.710.053) {156.587)

£ Antounls i Svesimens v azrocioies and subsidimrics, earitcs tRder commmcy caitref, deferred TaX BEREr, fvcEement gragerty, foupibfo aod
fitangifrle aisels, other assels amd sharehalders” equity, provisions and tax loilin are presended fu egn-Dnieeest bearing coftean, o ordler tg
reconcilc the tolal assets and fabilities o Mie balornce sheet
£*93 Barvorver frds anancieg i TL 39087 are presented a0 "Other Liabifities within I-month malvily colimr.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD I JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

CAmounts are expreased in thowsands of Toekish Liea (TLY unless olnerwise siated. )

SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {Continued)

¥I.  Explanations related to interest rate risk {continued}

Average interest vates applied 1o smenetaly finencial instrumemis b prior peviod: %

— JEwro | USDelar | Yen | TL

Agsets 1 i I

Cash (Cash in Vaulr, Foreign Curency Cash, ! : :

wfoney in Trangit, Choecks Purchaged) and i
... Balances with the Contral Bank of Tarkey | o - SR SO ..
Baaks - 0,36 | - 9,96

Financial Aszets ot Fair Value Through Profit : i
...And Loss O OO i S -
Money Market Placcinents - - - .00
Available-for-Sale Financial Assels 5,60 ! 588 - | sn
Loans 3851 433 - 1006
Teld-lp-Maturity Investicats - - - _ ”' ﬁ—
___Linbilities S S O
Bank Depusids e e e T e
... ther Duposils PP S e -
. Moncy Market Borrowings IS I 995
 Miscellanvous Fayables T o - -
... Marketable Scourities lssued | - -
| BomowerFunds 0.50 6,50 : .00
Funds Provided From Other Financial Inslilutions] 01,492 1,24 - 7,29

The interest rate visk of the banking boolk items

inlerest rate risk causcd by banking book accounts inciudes, Receivables from Central Bank,
Receivables from Money Markets, Receivable from Banks, Available for Sale Tinancial Assels,
Receivables from Reverse Repurchase Agreement, Reccivables from Loans, Held to Maturity
Investments and Other Receivables, which are monitored in banking book, in asscis and includes
Payabies to Central Tiank in banking accounts, Pavables 0 Money Markets, Payables to Banks,
Funds Provided from Eepurchase Agrecment, Securities Issued by the Bank, Payables to Loans,
Subordinated Diebis and Other Debts, ail Derivatives Instruments except recorded in trading book
accounts, In this natwre, FRA00AS in the mandatory report list of BRSA is prepared and reponed
monthly,

in accordance with the communigué on “Standard Shock Measurement and Gvaluation Method of
the interest Rate Risk in Banking Accounts”, economic vahiation differences of the Bank ansing
from flucluations on interest rates, in different currencies are presested in the table below,

Current Period Applicd Shock Revenus! Logs Revenue!Sharetolders” Equily —
Currency : {+- x basis pointj Luss ! Sharcholders' Equity
L i +500/{400) basis point | {304 667)/97.371 (364,19) / %3,59
Eura { +200 / (200} basis point 15.103 {15315} 072 {0610
U3 Daollar i +200 4 {200) basis point {29.0651/17.304 ¢ (31,163 / %0.70
Tuotal (for Negative Shocks) | ) 99450 : EER T
Total (for Positive Shockis) ] ) {tise2%y o (%de3)
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE TNTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-2] SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts arc cxprossed in thousands of Turkish Lita (TY unless othenyise stated. )

SECTION FOUR {Continued}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {Continued)

VI.  Explanstions related fo interest rate visk (continmued}

Thie fnterest rate risk of the banking ook itemy fcontinned)

Frior Period ﬁppliedLShu?Ii Revenue! Loss i Revenuc/Shareholders® Equity -
Currency | f+H- x bosis point) i Lossf Shnreholdcr.ﬁ_’. Equilyh__
s 1500 WO bz puan | (138.136); (34,135 | (%5670 %53)
Euro | +2007(200) buz puan 14,765 / (6.743) %061/ (%0.28)
US Dollar | 200/ (200)baz puan | 26,818 /(43.013) | %1,10/(%1.77)
Tolzl {for Megative Shacks) | 84,370 i el df
Totel for Postive Shoeks) | . eesy | (%399

VII. Explanations related to sfock position risk

The Bank 15 exposed (o equity sharcs risk arising from investmerts ca finns traded in Borsa
Istanbul (BIST). Share certificate myestments are almost used for frading puipose. However,
these investmoms are nol actively bought/scld by the Bank, The Bank classified its share
cerlificale mvestments bath as available for sale and as trading securities and net profitfloss of
the Bank is not allected unless the Bank sell share centificates in ponifolio of available for sale.

Eguity shares are recognized at fair value in accordance with “TAS 39- Financial Instruments;
Recognition and Measurement”. Equity shares, whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are
foliowed at their cost of acquisition and these assers are shown in the financial statcrnents with
their cost of values after the deduction of impairment provisions, il any.

Eguity sharey risk due from banking book

Below is the comparison table of the Bank’s share certificate instruments’ book valee, fair value
and markel value.

Current Period : __ Comparison R
Ehare Certilicate Investments Book Valwe | Foir¥aiwe | wiarket Yoloe
Yhvestment in Shares:Grade A | 14237 - 142,871
.t_QED_tEd ________________ _ 142,871 - L4271
Jpvestment in Shares-Grade B 64,573 - &4.575
€ Quoted §4.375 - 44575

Prior Period Corrparisen

Share Certificate Investments | Baok Value Fair Value___ | Miarket Valug
Investmtent in Shares-Grade A | 230.212 - _ 239212
, : 239212
Qunted | 239.212 - 230212

Basis of the foliowing table, private equity investments in sufficiently diversified portfolios, type
and amount of other risks, cummlative realized zains and losses arising from selling and
liguidaticn in the cureint period, total unrealized gains and losses, 1o1al revaleation increases of
trading posttions on stock market and (heir amount that inchided to core capital and
supplementary capital are shown,
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TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM FERIOD 1 JANTIARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015
{Amounts are exprossed in thousands of Turkish iira (TLY waless otherwise stated )

SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {Continued)

¥II. Explanations related to stock position risk {continued)

Eguity shaves visk due from banking book (continued)

Current Perind i Healized | Revaluation Value [ncreases Unrealized Gains and Losses
| Revenues U Inchuded in : [nchuded in ' Included in
Partfalio i znd Losses Total Supplenwentary | Taotal Core Capitai | Supplementar
OO .3 ... S Capital ___ | e ¢y Capitat
Private Equity : i
Investments | - - - - - -
Share Comificates Quoted :
.on a Siock Exchange E e L ATLRI 71919) -
Other Share ; :
Certificates E - | 4.543 4543 % - - -
Total | Zasai _ 43a] e[ (1o :
Frior Period : Realized | Revaluation Value Increases | Unrealized Gaing and Losses N
i Revenues | Included in [ncluded in | Included in
Portfolio . and Lesges : Total Supplementary Total Core | Supplementary
i a Period | Capital Capital | Capital
Trivate Equity | :
Investments ! - - SN PSS (SNt
Share Certificates Quated : !
onaStock Exchange | - - -1 (18.055)]  (18.053) -
Oither Share : i i
Crotificales : 4027 | - - - - -
Total ] o 9522 | - | - {181055) {15.655) | -

VIII. Explanations related to the liquidity risk

The Bamdc's fture cash [lows and cumment positions are taken into consideration for managing the
market and Liguidity r2sks. The Bank doss net iovest into illiguid markets and instromenis. The
ligquidity raltos arc followed up and the matunily match and the coverage of liquidity nced are
targeled in (he context of asset-liability management. Alihough the Bank statted to perform tests
to caloulate liguidity risk with internal riwodels, the risk i1z still followed up basically by amanging
the risks will: respect to (holding pericd) data,

For the purpose of meeting the liquidity requirement, the Bank chooses one of the three or more
of the following,; disposing liquid assets, increasing short-lermy borrowing, decreasing illiquid
agsers of increasing capital. The Bank’™s liquidity management is implemented by meeting all the
abligations on time conswdering the Bank’s reputation. The cash flow projections and the fund
requireinent predictions are made by using adverse scenarios o delermins liguidity sk under
urgent and unexpected circumstances,

As seen on interest rate risk tables, the difference in interest rates of assets and liabilitics 15 in
favour of the assets. Such musmatch positively affects the profitability and is checked by the Bank
Management with regular repors. The difference in interest rates of assets and labilitics are on
behalf of assets as can be seen frown the table of interest rate risk. The inconsistency positively
affecis the profitability and is controlled by the management with regular reports. The Bank
meets its short ferm liquidity requirements with repurchase agreements and inter-bank money
market operations. The Bank may also vse 115 available [or sale portfolio [or wrgent hquidity
requireiment. The Bank meets its long term liguidity needs from (he international institutions
through borrowings. The liquidity position 15 asscssed and managed under a varicly of scenarios,
giving dus consideration 1o stress Bactors relating to both the markel i general and specifically to
the Bank. For the purposes of moniloring and assessing (he iquidity position of the Bank’s assers
and liabilities, the liquidity rate is weekly caleulated.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Anounts are expressed in thousands: of Turkish Lira (TLY nnbess othorwise slaled )

SECTION FOUR {Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RESK
MANAGEMENT (Continued}

VIII. Explanations related to the liquidity risk {conéinned)
Preseatation af assets and Habifitiex according fo their remaining maturities
i Hptoi : 13 31z 1-5 I % Yoars and EUndis{rihutnd;
! Deotend Blanth ¢ Months Mlonths Years ¢ Over ("} ' Torad
Current Period : : ________E i
Cash (Cash in Yault, Forcign} : :
Cuerency Cash, Money in : '
Transit, Checks Porchased) | ;
and Balances with the ! ; ; :
Genleal Bank of Turkey I2605683 | 465484 - - - - L
Ronks | 280891 30,001} - - i - i 50090
Financial Assees af Fair i i i
Walue Through Profit and ! i 5' i
Liss : - 94551 2500 73,302 50.54_’.-’__1 07 954 o1 6163
Meoney Market Placements | -0 104pagst 70,008 - - -3 116,490
Financial Assets Available- | i : ' 1|
for-Salc ' - 46238 49134 325494 1 1,146,006 ' 1.242.160 3419 2904741
Loans i - 5779141 6609820 2,745.856] 7.251.794] 3033776 -1a270322
Held-to-Waturily ’ i ; ; :
__ievesnenss | - . | 2607) 826018 - 852035
Gther Assets : - - -1 AR628 - - 623.2771  661.905
. Tota} Assets 1289.972: 2.234.067] 808.627] 3.185.280] 8.475.364 | 5.199.912]  659.606 20.852.918|
Lisbilities ______ | A B SO A
Bank Deposits - | - N - - - -
Orther Deposils - -3 - - -i - =
Funds Frovided feom Orher : ' i '
Financial Institulions - 3BE4ER: 180330 : LBRGOEL: 5361680 S87EATR - 13696057
__._Money Market Borrowings | - 1966623 60} - : -| 1966683
... Scouritics bsswed : . _12169.930 - - 2.169.930
Miscelkineous Payables - . - -1 - -3 123,600 [23.600
Cther Liahilitics (**) . 80484, 123300 1074l1)  74023]  4p97s]  2573.322] 2.396.648
Tatal Liubilities - 2435595, 193.721) 1.993.402] 7.605.733| 5.027.455] 2606922 | 20.852.013
Liquidity Gap 289.972 . {201.528); 614.9661 1191788 | 869631 (727.543)] ¢2.037.226) -
i . ! i i
Prior Period ~ : ; : - : -
Total Assets 41.883; 1.405.700| 625.950! 2.048.184° 7.017.509; 4.130.103 . 431.294[15.700.713
Total Legbilitics -1 2IO0ENT | F83633| 962737 4838821 i 459909101 2.624.800| 15.700.713
Liquidity Gap $1.883 1 [985.111%) 342317 1.085.447 | 2118118 {469.808) | {2.193.506) -

% Ouler assety ond sharchplders” equity, proviyious amd wx fabiffly, which sre necessary and oot be comveried g casl 10 tre near funre for
ther fank's megoing activities, such ar fangifife and fmtargible azsees, Divesimenes in sedsidiaeios and asgociodes. erities muder commen corral, office
sepply inveirtony, prepaid expenses and agi-perfaraing feans are clossified uder “Undisoftuted ™ cafunn.

**} Borvewer fimds aprcuniing so TL 69204 are presented in "t Ciafifities ™ within {-month manmity cofwme,
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SECTION FOUR {Continucd}

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMEMNT (Continoed)

X, Explanations related to securitization positions
Mone.
X Explanations related to eredit risk mitigation techniques

Offsetting is nol used as a credit risk mitigation technigue. Tn assessments within the scope of
credit sk mitigation techniques, wvsing methods in regard to valuation and management of
collaterals are realized in parallel with communiqué relating to Credit Risk Mitigation
Techniques, Fiancial collaterals are evaluated on a daily basis in the Bank, Depending on the
comprehensive financial collateral approach, risk mitigating effects of the collaterals are
considered through the standard volatility adjustments. Value of the real estates subject io the
collateral is determined at least once a year for commercial real estates and determined at least
wicnnially for residential real estates. In the cases that significant changes in market conditions
appear, the review is carried cut al more frequent intervals. Within the conumuniqueé, as a mattey
of credit nisk mitigation techniques, only residences and commercial real estates {Warehouse,
Scheol, Fospital, Office and Store} which are not used for production purposes and can provide
vental inceme are 1aken intg consideration. In addition, land, field and orehard lands are also
considered within same concept. Value of the real estates is assessed by the real estate appraisal
companies, which are included in the list to provide valuation service by the CMB. Within the
credit visk mitigation techniques, major collaterals that can be vsed by the Bank arc financial
collaterals {Treasury Bills, Government Bonds, Cash, Deposit Pledges, Gold, Stock Pledges),
miarantees and mortgages, As of 30 Seplemtber 2015, while guaranices and modgages are used as
crodit risk mitigation technique, credil derivalives are not used, As of 30 Scptember 2005 and 31
December 2014, risk amounds which credit risk mutiganen techrigues arg used are showin below

the lable according (o nsk types.

Collaterals According to Risk Classifications

Current Perigd

Rigk Types

‘Contingent and Mon-Continpent Clading on Sovercigns 1

4390 ':io

1
|
H
|
I
i

Fhsatcial I
Tollaternls i
I

loz 340

Cher/Physical

Collaterals

- mndd ercdit

! Gurarantees

derivadives

Connnpent and Mop-Comingest Claims on Remional Goverranents and
Local Autllignities

Eﬂhhﬁg&ﬁt and Mon-Contingeal Clains on Administrative Unitg and
Mon-conuncecial Enlerprise .
Connngeal 2nd Mon- Cnmmgml Clnims on wubtilatoral Dev elupmenl
Bunks

4503

I
]

_178]

Contingent and Moa-Contingeal Chims oo [nwemational Greani zations

Contingenl and Won-Contingenl Claims on Banks and Capital fdarkael
[ntennediary o

Continzent dnd. ‘\!un Contingent Clangs on Curp-um[x:s

220 3T

18.325.235

20340 |

2304757]

Cﬂnlmgcnl and Mon-Contingent Claims [ncluded inthe Regolavary
 Reta] Portfolios

819938

Cnnlu:g,cm ahd ‘\!nn Cnntmgcm Clmms Sccured h'-' Rca] Emlc Fm;:eny
Past Due Luans H

ngjl:r—RHL Cavegones Defined by Agency

Sﬂ:unllm Sccu.n.d l:l].r Mnrl.gilm..

Secunilizadion Expusun:s

Shon-Term Claiing on Banks and Corporle .

Undedakings for Collective [nvesunents in Teansfershle Soourities

Other Claims

479,533 |

3032

Total

. 29.350.450 |

2.451.7136

{ ¥ fnludes risk augenls beﬁrre r!:e eﬁeﬂ af crodit visk mitigation
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SECTION FOUR. {Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)
X.

Cellaterals Which are Grouped According to Risk Types fcontinted)

Explanations related to eredit risk mitigation techniques {continued)

BriorPeried ___
Eisk Types

Finencial
Crilzterals '

GEhcn"Fh ysical

Colliterals

Guarantess
wnd credit
derivatives

Contingent and Mon-Contingenl Claaims on Suvcrr:igns

Conungcnt and Mon-Contingent Claims on Rc:glonal
Governments and Local Autharitics

. |
3 Amount {*) |

i ..ﬁ;.‘?!?.‘!:???? b 2

Contingent and MNon-Contingent Claims on Administrative
Units and tNon-Comimercial Frieprises

Contingent and Men-Contingent Cliims on tulilateral
Devetopment Banks

3.063!

ose|

Contingent and Man- Conungcm Claims on Internaticnal :
OrEanizalions i

Contingent and Nen-Conungent Claims on Banks and Capital I
| harket Intcncdiary

3312714}

2,130,644

Contingent and Mon- Conlmgﬂ.nt Claims on Comporatus

15623

Contingent and MKon-Contingeat Claims Ineluded in the
Bupulatory Beal Estae Ponttolios
Contingent and Non- Cnntlngcnt Claims Sccurcd I:r:.r

14.395.427 ]
1

2

I

Residential Peoparty

439,428 | . -

Pasp Due Loans _ - ok

nghcr-RHk Calcgorlcs Dcfncd Iy Agency

| Securities Secured by ‘ninrtgam; . - -

Securitizalion Exposurcs .

Shon-Tem Clzims on Banks and Corporale - - -
[ Undertakings for Colleciive Investments in i
Transfurable Securilics - - - -

Cither Claims

407,971 6.G38 - .

Tatal

22.114.537 2270830 -4

™ Inclwdes the fetal aaowrs before censideriag the effecis af credit rish mitigaion.

XL

Explanations related te risk management ohicetive and policies

The purpose of the risk management system is to prowvide identifying, measuring, reporting,
monttoning and comtrolling (he nsk exposure on both unconsclidaled and consclidated basis,
through the policics delemuined related 1o confrolling the rsk-retum structure of {uture cash flows
of the Bank and obscrving, controlling, changing if needed, application procedures, limits and
policies of Bank and detennine the objectives to be aclieved through the internal capital
adeguacy asscssment process. In this context, “TSKB Risk Management Policies™ and “T5KB
Capital Adequacy Policies™ are prepared and Las becomae effective following the approval of the
Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors of the Bank deternine and regularly review the risk level that the Bank is
willing to bear to achieve its gbjectives, considering the risk capacity of the Bank.

Fisk management process organized within the framework of dsk management regulations and
served to create 4 comimon risk culture throughout the Bank, is in a structure that these rigks are
described in line with the international reguiations and are measuring, analyzing, following,
momtoring and vepodting within this framework. Within the framework of the mentioned
structure, the Bank's Hisk Managerient Department, continucs its activitics reporting to the Audit
Comuinittes, which is established to help the audit and moniloring activitics of the Board of
Directors in accordance with Banking Law No: 5411 and “Regulation on Internal Systems of
Banks” comnmunigué of Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.
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SECTION FOUR {Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT {Continued}

XL

Explanations related to risk managerment objective and policies {continued}

Risk Management Deparmend is responsible for preparing risk management stratepies and
policies followed by the Bank, implementation, identification, measurement, monitoring,
analysis, evaluation and reporting of risk managemcnt sysiem activilies.

Risk Management Deparimient moniiors the compliance of the risks in line with the Bank's
policies and standards and Jirmits, and delormines viclations, analyzes the size of the rsk by
developing various scenacios, develops and inlegraics systems providing measuring, wmonitering
and reporting (he dsks.

Within the scope of “TSKEB Risk Management Policies™; the Bank is mainly exposcd to credit
risk, market risk, operaticnal risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk,

Cradit risk managenient policy

Credit risk is the possibility of incurring losses due to the credit customer or the counterparty,
with whom the Bank has made an agreement with, does not fulfil its obligations appropriately or
15 nal able 1o mecl these obligations, Al the Baok, the purpose of credil nsk mmnagement is to
maximize the risk adjusted return of the Bank by managing the risks that the Bank may cxposc in
line with the right parameters 1n a proaclive approach. Although the largest and most visible
source for credit nisk is the losns that the Bank grants, othoer banking services regarding the
counterparty risk also bear credit righe. In this context, all of the banking activities arc asscssed
within the scope of credit risk.

Credut risk is measured and managed considering the maturity stracture of Lthe credit, contractual
provisions of the credit and financial conditions, the risk profile structure umil the end of the
maturity parallel with the possible market conditions, gearantess and collaterals, internal risk
ralings and the possible changes in the process of risk exposure, the concentrations (a single
company, associzled group of companies, industry, coumry, etc.} and compliance with limils
detenmined by the Board of Directors in order to prevent these concentrattons. For measuring
credit nisk, Internal Rating-Bascd Madel is wsed in order to momitor, control and provide early
warning for crodit risk of the Bank.

Maximum clfort 15 expended Gor the Fact that the linits and policies of the exiemal and interal
agrecments are ot 3¢ far from (he limits and policics of the Bank, The articles in the agreements
are compelling even if 1hay are different froin existing the Bank policies.

In ceedit risk mitigation policies and procedunss, it 1 considered whether the total amount of
credil risk mutigation tool should be taken into accound 15 appropriale or oo, also it is controlled
whether the protection provided by the credit risk mingation insiruments is 1o compliance with
the capital adequacy level. The Bank™s Risk Management actively involved in the measurement,
analysis and monitoring process of creditl cisk and regelar reporing is provided (o the Board of
Directors, Audit Corminitiee, top management and other departments related with credit tisk by
the Bank’s Risk Management.

Market risk mamengenrent poficy and curverney risk nronagement policy

Market risk is the possibility of loss that the Bank may face, in the trading book porifoiio and in
its on-and oll-balance shect positions arising from movements in market piices. Interesl rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and comanodity prices are the main market risk factors, The
purpose of market risk management iz to maximize the risk adjusted return of the Bank by
managing the risks that the Bank may expose in line with the right parameters in a proactive
approach. Market gk 15 managed by using consistent risk measurement ¢rileria such as
fluctuation level of interest rate and/or price fluctuations and Value-at-Risk (VaR) Methads
calculations, by cstablishaing proper procedures for perfonming such controls and observing
compliance with detenmined risk limits, by investigating sources of nigk, learning sk and
providing consistent information related with markel sk to level of organizations within
OTEAMIZALIGN StOucture.,
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SECTION FOUR (Confinued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

XL

Explanations related fo risk management ghjeetive and policies {continued)

Market visk management policy and currency risk managenent policy (cointivued)

Interest rates, forcign exchange rates, equity and commodity prices are the main markel risk
factors and in order to control these risks vigorously and il is csscatial thal money and capital
market transactions should be “well-diversitied” consideriag the level of risk created i tenas of
parameters such as matugity, currency, interest rate and other sirmlar parametcrs. In addition,
credit worthiness of issvers of financial instrumicnts creating market risk is sirongly taken into
account. In the caleulation of the market risk, the Bank uses two basic approaches, BRSA
Standard Method and Value at Eisk {(Vall) approach. The accuracy of the VaR model is
sustained by applying the retrospective 1esis (back testing).

The test mentioned is based on the comparisen of calcuiated Value ar Risk and actoal losses. In
addition stress tests ate applied to determine the effects of the events whose probebility of
ocewrence is low; however, loss level is high on Value at Risk. Currency risk management is
rmeasured and monitored by vsing the VaR model. The Bank’s Risk Matagement Depariment is
actively involved in measurement, analysis and monitoring process of market risk and currency
risk and regular reporting is provided to the Board of Dircctors, Audil Commitiee, top
manzgernent and ofher departments related with market risk by the Bank’s Risk Managenient,

Opcratiomnad risk munagement pelicy

Operationsl risk 1z defined as the risk of loss due to the insufficiency of the processes, the people
and the systems or defects or errors on them and external events, and compliance with laws and
gthical standards are also included v this definition. These risks are managed by fulfilling
special controls of the basic functional areas of the Bank's opcrations, ¢slablishing mechanism
distributing appropriate internal audit system and anthorization required by this system within
the Bank and by applying detailed testing and conteol of the Bank's all operating systems and by
providing full harmony betwesn iternal and extemal systems and opporiunity of independent
data backup facility.

The Bank applies (he principles of separation of duties and distribution of functions in order 1o
reduce the risk of deliberate actions, manipulations or errors. The minimum functions that have
to be separated are identified as (i) staning the process {ii) authorisation and approviag, (1)
recording the process {iv) confimming the process, {v) safe custody serviees, {vi) monitoring and
auditing, {vii) developing IT systems and activities for daily operations. The {ransaction
information has to be recorded (o the system by using IT applications at once the (ransactions
have been compleled. Measuremem of operational risks carried out by the implementation of
Basel 1l “Basic Indicator Approach™ method. The Bank's Risk Managemenl Department is
actively involved in the measurement, analysis and monitoring process of operational risk and
regular reporting is provided to the Board of Dhrectors, Audil Commiltes, lop management and
other depariments related with operational sk by (e Bank's Risk Management,

Structural interest vate risk managenient palicy

Structural interest rate risk is the risk of possible changes in interest rates affecting the capital of
bank due to re-pricing period of interest bearing assets and liabilities banking books of the Bank
and the differences at interest structuring, Struchural mierest rale nisk is managed by providing
consistent informmation related to structural interest rale nisk 1o all the organization stages by
using the risk measurement and cnteda like the level of fluctuation n interest rates, interest
shock and stress test ealcnlations.
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SECTION FOUR (Continued)

INFORMATION ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRIICTURE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)}

X1

XIT.

XIII.

Explanations related to risk management objective and policies {continued)
Striectuval interest rate risk management pelicy (continued)

waturity mismatches concerning the repricing in predetermined buckets and cummency
mismatches of assel and liabilities are monitored and measured. The Bank manages the interest
rate risk by being aware of that it theeats the mcome, capial, liguidity and ceputation of the Bank
and it comprises of repricing risk, vield curve risk, basis risk, spread nisk and option risk.

The Bank's Risk Management Department is actively involved in the measurement, analysis and
monitoning process of structugal interest rate risk and regular reporling is provided to the Board
of DHrectors, Audit Commitice, top management and other depantments related with inierest rate
risk by the Risk Management.

The Bank vses TRS or other derivative instroments in order to hedee Axed/oating interest risks
or other marvket price rigks. The Rank applies hedge accovnting in accordance wilh (e decisions
of Asset Liability iManagement Committee to prevent volatility in the financial stalementsof
having different measuremaent and valuation mclhods and accounting periods, The Bank could
prefer one of the appropriate methads permatied by (he accountling standacds under {inance hedge
accovnning. In case of deciding to apply hedee accounting, the Bank oversees the detennination
af hedging relationship, hedpimg sk, hedging instnunents also regular efficiency (est and
documentation with respeel 10 accounting standards, In this regard, efficiency iest and
documentation are perfonned by e Committes to be established for this purpose and the
custody of dosumentation fuifil by Financial Control Department.

Liguidity visk management pelicy

Liguidity risk is the risk of not mesting the balance sheet and off-balance sheat liabilitics on
time. Liquidity risk is also the possibility of loss that the Bank may face, when theére is not
sufficient cash or cash inflow to meet the cash outflow in full and in time. There are two risks as
funding liquidity risk in capital markets and purchase/ sales operattons and market liquadity risk
in which funding liquidity risk is the risk that investment and [unding requircmcnts cannot be
met on e or at a reasonable cost duc o the dncompatibilitics in cash flows. The market
lrquidlity risk is that no long posilion can be (aken on time or at a reasonable cost due io the
rmarkets are oot 50 deep, disruption and (he bank cannol enter the markets easily.

It is essential to evaluate the diversification of opportunities on the basis of maturitics with
maximum extent in order to ensure the cfliciency of liquidity management and maimain a
sustainable situation. In liguidity risk management, a portfolio strzeture matched with the
functions of gencrating prafit from portfolio and market risk management and risk-retum trade-
off is constantly monitored without compromising of liquidity requirements. The Bank’s Risk
ianagement actively involved in the measorement, analysis and monitoring process of liquidity
risk and regular reporting is provided to the Board of Dircctors, the Audil Comunittes, top
wmanagement and other departments related with liquidity risk by the Risk Management.

Explanatinos related to presentation of financial assets and liabilities at fair valne.

Not prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Communique on the Financial
Staternents and Related Thsclosures and Foolnotes to be Announced o Public by Banks.

Explanaticns related to transzctions made on behalf of others and fiduciary transaetions

The Bank performs trading transactions on hehalf of its customers, and gives custody,
administration and consultancy services. The Bank does not deal with fideciary transactions.
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SECTION FIVE
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSTRES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets
l.a Information on cash and balances with the Central Bank of Turkey:
i Current Perlod Prior Perind o
e Mo FCf LG FC
Cash in TL/Forcign Currency ] ! - g i o
Balanecs with the Central Bank of Tuekey 28,220 I £98. 235 E 11,628 476152
P S poei oottt S NN 1233 (0 RPN L1 S} B SN L - =
Onhur - - - i -
Total 28229 | esszIs] 3Le3 | 476052

Lb Information related to the account of the Central Bank of Turley:

- Curren? Period : Prior Period
R - oo Tl EE T FE
Uinrestricted demand deposits 28220 30660 3628 2,934
Unrestrivted ime deposily - ____-__:_____ S .
Restricred ime deposils : - - - -
Other (%) ' - 94,573 - 473168
Total f 28.220 £94.238 31.628 .. 476.152]

£ Depasits af Contral Bonk of Thekey held 05 reserve requirenend,

As per the Comnmeniqué numbered 2005/1 “Reserve Deposits” of the CBRT, banks keep reserve
depasits at the CBRT for their TL and FC liabilities mentioned in the communiqué. Reserves are
caleulated and set aside every two weeks on Fridays for 14 days periods.

The CBET has started to pay interest 1o the Fequired Rescrves held i Turkish Lira according to
regulation released al 5 Movember 2014,

In zccerdance with the regulation issued at 27 January 2013, CBRT haz began to collect wonthly
comandssions over daily balances of Twa Days Notice Deposit Accounts and Required Reserves held in
tiwe foreign currencies, to be valid from 1 February 2015,

The CBRT has started (o pay interest o the Bequired rescerves, reserve oplions and unoestricted account
held in US dollars according 1o regulaton released al 2 May 2015,

As per the “Comnmunigqué on Aniendments to be Made on Communiqué on Required Regerves™ of
Central Bank of Turkey, numbered 2011/11 and 2011/13, required reserves for Turkish Lira and
Foreign cumrency liabilities are set at Central Bank of Turkey based on rates mentioned below, Reserve
rates prevailing at 30 September 2015 are presented in table helow:

Reserve Hates for FC Lisbilities (50)

&}thcr liabilities uniil | year matarity (1 year include) T o ____2_1:;,5_
Octer il ol 2 yewr maluity (2 yearnode)
Other labilitics unkl 3 yoar matancy (3 year includc) : 30
Chther liabililics until 5 year maturity (S year include) : o ?rﬁ
Other lighilities rove than 5 ygar matrity a0

Heserve Rates for TL Liakb#itios (54)
Ciher liabihies until 1 year maturity {1 vear includeg)

| TE:
Cher liabililies i 3 year matority (3 year inchrde) ! )
oher liabilines more than 5 year maturicy S )
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SECTION FIVE (Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES O UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued}

L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets {continued}

2.a  Information on financizal asseés at fair value through profit and loss:
2.al  Trading securities:

2.a.1.a Trading securities given as collaterzl or blockage:

As of the reporting date, the Bank has no trading securiics given as collateral or blockage (31
December 2014 None).

2.a.1.b Trading securities subject to repurchase agreements:

As of the reporting date, the Bank has no trading securities subject to repurchase agreements (31
December 2014 None).

a2 Ioformatioo an financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss:

2.3.2.5 Information on financial assels designated at fair value through profit and loss given as
collateral or blockage:

As of the reporting date, the Rank has no financial assets designated at fair value throvgh profil
and loss given as collateral or blockage (31 Decernber 2014 Mone),

2.2.2.Ir Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss subject to repurchase
Agreentents:

As of the reporting date, the Bank has no financial assets designated at fair value through profit
and loss subject to repurchase agreements (31 December 2014: None).

2.b Positive differences table related to derivative finaacial assets held-for-trading:

Held For Trading Financial Derivative i Current Period Prior Peripd
Insiruments : TL ' Fo TL | T
Forward Transsetions ! 1,383 | 344 M 9w
_ SwopToomsagtions i 3604 BSO00 | 18366 35307
Fulures Transacliong ' - l - . el
| ORGONS e o MeSOTL sl 2156
Other | -l - . - -
Towt oo bomeml o amse] sl sedst
3. Information ot banks and foreign banks account
da Informatico oo banks:
.. CoreentPecied i Prior Period
R Y et T
Banks | | _ e
Domestic 300 1.689 22052 44,555
Foreign 57,108 R B il
Branches and head office abroad - | - -
Fotal el 58790 22052 100.266 |
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SECTION FIVE {Confinued)
EXPLANATIONS AND DHSCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)
L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets {(continued)
3 Information on hanks and foreign banks account {continued)
3b Information on foreign banks:
Not prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Comwmuniqué on the Financial
Statements and Related DHsclosures and Foolnetes 1o be Announced to Public by Banks.
EN Information on availabte-for-sale finpncial assets
4.a.1 Available-for-sale financial assets subject to repurchuse agreements:
Current Peripd Prigr Perigd
TL . rc__ [ TL . FC__
... Sovemment boads - 1354732 | o3 2016726 -
Treasury bills - - -
Cther dobi scouritics 79043 07313
Bank bonds and bank guarantecd bonds - : o
Assbacked securities : ]
Other - - - -
Total _ 1.354.732 79.043| 2016726 367,313 |
4.a.2 [Information on available-for-sale finaneial assets given as cellateral or blockage:
All available for sale financial asscls given as collaleral compnise of linancial asscls 1ssued by the
TR, Undersecreterial of Treaswy, The cammying value of those assels s TL 737.925 (31
December 2014: TL 251.539).
Current Feriod Prior Period
L} FC w1 FC
Bond, ireasuy bill and sirilar investment | i
serurilics 255772 432,153 153.982] &7.557
Chher _ - i -
Total 55.772] 432153 1¥3.982 | 67.557
4.1 Major types of available for sale financial asscts:

Available for sale financial assets comprise government bonds 57,39%, Fwrobonds 29,18% and
shares and other securities 13,43% {31 December 2014: government bonds 70,87%, Eurcbonds

15,08% and shaces and other securities 14,05%),
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SECTION FIVE {Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)
1L Explanations and disclosures related to the asscts (continued)
4. Information on availzble-far-sale financial assets {continued)
4.¢ Foformation on avaitable for sale financial asscts portfolic:
o _ Current Period Prior Fericd
IDcht securitics 2.926.216 3.482,152
Cuoted on g stovk exchanee . oo heesesdy o 283025
| Unguoted 930.234 353027
Share comificates 49.668 43,553
Guoted un 3 Sock exchune: B L 0 o 24634
Unquoted 33.212 [8.66%
tber Timpainmeal peovision(-} 71.143) {10.809)
[Total DU AT -0 L. 502 % I 3.314.895
The net book value of unguoted available for sale sharc cerficates is TL 14.510 (31 December
2014: TL 10.267).
5. Explanations cn loans
5a Information on all types of Ioens and advances given to shareholders and employees of the

Banls:

Current Peried

_... Lrior Period

i Cash Leany Nen-Cash Loans| Cash Loans [Non-Cash Loans

Dircet loans zrasted to sharcholdors 108.214 | 117412 34174 _ﬁ_l_ 17412
Carporate sharchalders 22140 | 11742 Ad.174 117412

| Real person sharcholders 3 - :
Indircet loans grntd toshareholders b el e -
Louns granted (o sinployees : 177 i - 131 -
Total 108.387 | 117.412 | sa305]  1imanz
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-3¢ SEPTEMBER 2015

[Anwunts are expressed in thouzands of Tuekish Lira (FLY unless athorise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Continued}

I. Explanations and disclosures related fo the assets (continued)
3. Explanations on loans (continued}
S lnformation oo the first and second group loans and other receivables inclhuding

restructured or rescheduled loans:

Standard Loans 2nd Other Loong and Other Recelvables Gnder
Receivalles Close Meonitoring
Current FPeriod !
Amendments on i Amendntents on
Conditions of Contract i Cenditicos of Contract
Lozns and ! Loansand | i
Ufher Amendiments : rec{::f'l:;.'res : Amendments :
Cact Lons Revfnfuxablcs Related To The (Total) iReiated To The'
(Total} Extenston OFf | I Extension OF |
The Paystent : 1 The Peyveent |
Flan ! Other | Flan ! Other
i i
Non-spesialized toans 14430504\ Me3TO0M - 14001, 38559 65777
Comporation loans 4.257.038 -] - 077 18177 -
Export inans 36,406 i _ - 2 T
linport loans - - - - B - -
i
__Loans given 1o financial sector 1.543 H20) - -i - - -
:
Comumertons |l
Credit cards - - - - i -
_Other , T6A2E63| 163700l o 129841 0 48382 65777
Spoctalized loans - - - ' - - -
Gther recrivablas - - - - - -
Total . }4.130304|  163700) . -l 00018 53559l 657

53



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are cxprossed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TLY unless othenvise stated )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

I. Explenations and diselosures related to the assets {continned}

5. Explanaticns oo loians (continued)

5.b lnformation on the first and secend greup loans and other reccivables ineluding

restructured or rescheduled loans (continued}):

Standard Loans and Citlwer

Loans angd Other Receivables Under Cloge

i
: I
5_ . Receivihles ! Monitering
Frior Period i ' !
' Amendments an | Amendments on
Conditions of Cantfract Cenditdons of Contract
B e ey Tooang gnd . i . Loans and g ]
! Orher Amendntents | ; Oiher Amendments:
. Receivables  Related To The | . receivables Retated To
Cash Lozns 5 {Total} . Extension Of ! (Total) ‘The Extension!
' i The Payment : i OfThe |
Plan Oter Payment Plan!  Ganer
Nom-specialized loans - 108 lE-.'??ﬁ.Zi o la3sey - 163 568 98901 35849
Corporation loans : 3737157 - - I{I.463! 5.__3_3;-‘{___M_____ A
CExportloans L 68340 : : 4 :
Impon loans - - - 'I ‘:-__ ]
\ : ] |
. _Loaas given to financial scctor | LR N IROTOPTE S S 1
Consumer loans 131 - . - -:
Credit cards IS O T ORI SAPUT: R
Chiver N _ S627.627 143 563 - 153, III]II.'!! 93.56’95 35549
Specialized loans - S S S
Other recuivables - - o - —: 1
i I
Toatal __19.817.051 143.563 163,568, 25.901| 35,840
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIIE INTERINM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed in thousinds of Turkish Lira (TLY wnlcss otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued}

L Explanations and disclosurcs related fo the asscts {continued}
5. Explanations on loans (continued)

5b

Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including

Cursent Period

Mumler of amendments related to the extension of l
_the payrnent plan i

restructured or rescheduled logns (continued);

Stapdard Loans and
Other Regeivables

Loans and Cther
Receivabies Under Clase
wenitoring

Extendedfor LorZumes
Extended for 34 or 5 times,
Extended for more than 5 times

U L-X 1YL R

Prior Period

Mamber of amendments related to the extension of
| the pryment plan

1
Stendard Loans and
{1ther Receivables

Extended for 1 or 2 lim;:s.-“-m-

143567 |

Loans and Other
Reeeivebles Under Close
Maonitaring

Extended for 3-2 o 5 times

Extended for more than 5 times

Current Period

The time extended via the amendment on payment

Srandard Lozns and

Loans and Chiher
Reecivables Under Close

Cther Receivaldles |
_plan bMonitoring |
O-6Momths i -
4 Months 12 Morths L - o
A Xuaes ST SR JO O SOOI 2L L.
25 Yeats ; _E1821 -
5 Years 51,879 | 1544

Prior Period

The time extennded via the emendment on payment

S1andard Loans and

Louans and Cither
Recobvebles Under Close

Cther Receivables : -
_plan USRS NS - : Monftoring
06 Months B} 3 B -
6 Manths -1} Months - T
13 Years e R 54237
2-5 Yecars 59889 | ;
3 Years ! 73.674 14.664

In relation to the disclosure of changing the conditions of the pavinent plans of loans, which are
followed under standard loans and other receivables and loans and receivables under close
monitoring subsequent to the change in the reguiation on “Change in the Methods and Principles
for the Dretermination of Loans and Giher Receivables 1o be Reserved for and Allocation ol
Reserves” published in the Offcial Gazeite No. 27947 dated 28 May 2011; the Bank has
provided general loan loss provision at a rate of 5% for one loan customer which is followed
under standard loans and other receivables and for four loan customers which are followed under
Loans and Ohber Receivables Under Close Monitoring and which have been extended more than
1 year and also provided general loan loss provision at a rate of 2,5% for one loan customer
which is followed wder standard loans which have been extended more than 1 year,
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015
{Amounts are expressed i Hoosand s of Turkish Tiea (T1.) unless othenvise stared .}

SECTION FIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)}

L

5, Explanations on loans (continued}
5.c

Loans according te their maturity structure:

Explanations and disclosures related to the assets (continued)

Standard Loans and

Cther Recervables

Laozns and Other Recelvables
Dnder Close Monitoring

Specialized loans

1

Cnher receivables

| i
H 1
|
| Lowns and Other | Loans and Other
Current Period i Repeivabies estrectured or | [eceivalbles Restructtred or
; { Tatsl) Reseheduled : { Tatal) Eescheduled
Short-twon Joans and other receivables i 02T = - -
Non-specialized foans ! 310277 N ) i
Speaialioed lpang | - - - -
__._Othervcccivables - RS AU OURRNN) U SO . -
[Wicdium and Loag-term loans 13820027 165700 130,018 | 24336
oNenspecializedbowns | 130027l leae0l 190018 | .. 124336

Srandard Loans and

Loans and Otiver Receivables
Under Close Mlonilering

{ifer Receivaliles

Speciabized loans

Laans and Other : Laans and CHher

Prior Period Heceivablos Restructured or | Receivables Restructured or
e e fTetel) 4 Reschoduled G (Totel) | Reseheduled
Short-temmn loans and ether receivab|oy 1327792 -3 - ) -
__Mon-speclalizedloans o bRrFeRl N -

Sproalieed gang 5 - l ol IR -
L Stherveccivables -
wiedum and Long-tern loans 489260 143,563 ; 163,568 124,750
. Mon-specialized loans Lo9aR9260| o 143563: 1633681 134750

Onhcr reeeivablos
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

MNOTES TQO THE FINANCIAL STATE

MENTS

FOR THE INTERTM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-3¢ SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounls are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lica {TL) unless olhenwise stated. }

SECTION TFIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued}

1.

5 Explanations on loans (continued)
sd

given to personnel:

Explanations and disclosures related to the assets {continued)

Information ot eensumer loans, individual eredit cards, personnel loans and credit cards

!Curr\ent Perigd Short Term  :Medium and Long Term Total
Consumer Loans-TL -3 - ~ _' -
______ Housing Loans _ - ‘ . ) S .
Larlaans - - N
" General Purposc Loans B B
Other - - _
Consumner Loans —Indexed o TC i _ i
Housing Loans . - ) -
Car Loans . S N N .
. Geneal Parpose Loans ] et '"7
R it . : - T e -
Consumer Leans-FC . i -
Housing Loans - - -
Car Loang - - _— -
General Purpose Loans - . - -
. Other T A ] U o
Individual Credit Cards-TL G ) N
D S e T e S R : et
Without instalments B : - - _
Imdiividual Credil Cards-FOC - _ R
With Instabmonts o - - — z
Without Instalments , e o _-_| .
Porsoancl LoansTL 54 123 | 177
il Housmngns e e e i —
Car Loans - - -
CGoneral Pumpose Loang i 54 173 177
Cnher - - -
Personna] Loans- Indexed wo FC -3 - i -
... .Housing Loans S S - 1 ; -
Carboans ] : -
R I’urpum i -
Chher - - -
Fersonne] Loans-FC - - -
Housing Luans - - » .
... Ear Loans — S S '. en D i -
General Purposc Loans e - B
Porsonne] Credit Cards-TL . -3 -
Witk Instainents - -] -
Without Inslalments - e I
Fersonne] Credit Cards-FC - L S -
~__With Instalmcnts I - R - N
. Witoutlostabents e S ]
[overdraft Accounts-TL {Real Persons) -~ - -
[Cverdeatt Accounts<FC {Real Petsons) - - -
Total 1 4] 123 177
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TURKIYE SINAL KALKINMA BANKAST A5,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are exnressed in hewisnds of Turkish Liva (TLY unless othenvisc statcd.)

SECTION FIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND IMSCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued}

L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets {continned)
5. Explanations ox loxns (coutittued)

5.d Infoermation on consumer loans, individual credit cards, personnel loans 2nd ercedit cards
given to persennel (continued):

If!.IP}.'_ Period Short Teren | Mrdinm 2ed Long Term Total

) .‘I.-iausing:hj:.gaﬁs.h - - -
Car Loans - _i -
General Pompese Loans - . -
Other -] O

fConsumcr Loans —Indexed o FC —_— i e e x._:i -

Rt - ) -

Ciher - - I
Consumer Lomns-FC - .
Huoussing Loans -
Car Loans S ._

... General Pupose oans -

Cither o ; R o -
In¢ividual Credit Cards-TL : - - -
With Instahmynis : -1 - -

Without Instulmunts : - - -
Individual Credit Cards-FC S O+ SO -
With Instalments, e : -

" Without Instalments : . _ _
Personnc] Loans-TL h T
Hnusing Loans —
Car Loans : N T e
Cenural Pumpose Loans _ - e -

personnd] Loans: Indexedt@PC 4 A :

Housing Loans : - - -
LCar Loans 1 - - -
Ceneral Purpose Loans l - - o -

Oher ) ___' - :_ ::____£
Personnel Loans-FC_ et e
_. HowingLeans - - -

Cur Loans . -t .0 _

Cioncral Purpose Laans : - i -
Ciher ' - S I -
Personnel Credit Cards-TL - S

With Instalnunts __________-_E___ i _ - v______________
___WihoutInstalwoepts | Lb - -
Personne] Credit Carde FC 3 -

With Instalments . - -
Withou Instaliments - - .

Chverdraft Aceouns-TL (Real Persong) - - -
verdraft Avcounts-FC (Real Persons} - - -
(Cotal | R T 1 O 7}
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TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKAST A.5.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEFTEMBER 2015

(Amounts are capresied in thowsncds of Terkish Lica (TLY unless othenvise stated. )

SECTION FIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND IMSCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continned)
L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets (continued)
5. IExplanations on logns (continued)

S.e Information on eommercizl Ioans with instalments and corporate credit cards:

The Bank has nol granted any cormmercial loans with instalments and coporate credit cards as of

the reporting date (31 December 2014; None).

5.fF Lnans according fo horrowers:
o Current Period | Prior Peried
__Public 34.989 32.621
Private : 14.235.333 10,927,999
[Latal - AL mamean) | 16680620

S.g Domestic ard foreign loans:

Current Period

Prior Periad

5.h Loans granted to subsidiaries and asscciztes:

Domeglic lpans 14,176,298 10927175
Forcign loans . 024 33.445
Total v ok, MEZTOSZZ] L 10.980.620]

Curent Period

Prior Periad

" Direct loans granted 1o subsidiarics and associates 15.715 5672
[ndirect loans gronted to subsidiaries and associates - -
[Total . 315,715 305,972
5.4 Specitic provisions provided against [oans:

Current Period |

o i._lua;ns and receivables with .Iimjf&d.c.:;il;;::fﬁ?:il!it.y.l o 4.123 |- _____ER
Loang anl receivables with doubiful eollectability 43334 } -
Lincallectible loans and reccivaliles 12,503 i 12,480

[Tatal 59.960 | 16.935

The Bank allocates 100% provision for all non-perforning ioans regardless of the collaterals,
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMEER 2015

{Amounts an¢ expressed in hoesand: of Tuckish Lira {TLY unless ofherwise statcd,)

SECTION FIVE (Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

1. Explanations and disclosures related to the assets (continwed}
5. Explanations on lozas (continued)
5. Information on non-performing loans {ret}:

£..1 Information on leans and other receivables restructured or rescheduled from non-

performing loans:
| I.Growp | IV.Growp . V.Grow
; Loans and : .
Leans and : , oy Uneollectible
Receivables With | Rcce]:l;::}';::fsu:’n’nlh ' Leans and
______ Himed Collecabiliyy ollagubitiy | Receivables
: i
Curyent Period S U S !
[Cienss amauns beforg provisiong) -1 L
Hestruetured loans and ather recetvaliles - i L
“escheduled loans and other receivables - :_
Frior Period N e i s e
[Crosz amounis before provisionsy e e m ! . i 31.433
Resuwactured loans and other eoceivables - -i -
Rescheduled loans and olher receivables ! - 5 3433
L2 Movement of pon-performing loans:
. MLGreup 1 3V.Grouwp | V.Group

i_oang and i

Reccivables Wil | ncelleatible

!
‘Luans and Rccuivablcs!
!
|

With Limlitled Douhuful i I.oa:_-ls ansk
e ront Petiod Collectabibity | Collectility ! Reecivables
Prior period end Balance 4.450 | - o 124;3}}
additions (+} 433350 ol M
Tranzfers fram ather categorics of non-performning .
Laams (50, o e e ! 43.334 .
Transfers to other cabcgorics of non-pedforming loans (-} | (43 334} i - o -
Collections {-) SR -1 X H PR S _{an
Wrire-ofls {-) e e e e e -
| Corporute and Commercialbogns | - -
Retail Loans - - L -
Credit Cards - It '
Otlser O u :
Current period end balange 4.123 43334 12.503
pooilic provision (-} 4.123) {43.334) {[2.503)
Met Balances oo Balonee Sheet T - - -
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are expressed in thousandzs of Turkish Lira (TL) vnless othervise stated )

SECTION IFIVE {Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DHSCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

L Explanations and disclosures related to the asscts (continned)
5. Explanations en loans (continued)
5.j Information on non-performing loans (net) (continued):

5.j.2 Movement of non-performing [oans {continmed):

11I. Group IV, Group T ¥, Group
Loans ?nd Rccfcivablcs Rm:;i?:?;;n‘i’ith Uncallectble
With Lisnited . Loans and
Collectalality . Dﬂub“".'l, Recaivables
Priar Perfod ollectability L
Prior period end baiance A 6378 12548
Additions (=) 9.891 102 3¢
Transfers Fom other calegovies of non-perfoming .
Loans [+ o 203933 e B3T7H
[Tranglers to olber categonies of non-pedenning loans {-) - {20._‘33_‘}_}_5 . = 2 -
Collustions (-} SRRSO SRR (1 7% NS €11 -1 R 27 )
Writeoffe =) - (13
Corporate and Commercial Loans - E - A
Retdail Loans e _ 1 ____
_Credit Lards e e
B U - .1 -
[Curcemd peripd end balance 4.456 - ! L AZARE
Specilic provision (-} {4.436] 3 {12.480)
Net Balances on Balunce Shest DS WO R

{7t The amound af FL 12932 onsferred o 2. growp aocgund receivales is sireeded i the fue of “Codlecton

2.3  Information on fercign currency non-performing loans and other receivables:

. L Growp V. Group V. Group
Lnan.s qnd Reccivablqs_wllh Lnu::;iz::dDi':ﬁ;}::Ez;b]cs Uncollecuble Losns and
i Limitd Collestbilly | Cotlooabitity Receivable
Current Period — oo ]
Peripd End Balanca 1.719 - L k¥
ESpeeific Proviston {4} {1719 - {38
Met Balaned on EJ]_!S]_EI_.I:_E_‘SVI_!_ ot I - e ]
[Brivor Pertogd e
Period End Balance ! 1.991 - e 3B
Specific Provision {-} : {1.901) | - (4483
Net Balance on Dalance Sheet j o = i -

&1




TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKAST A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lita {TL} unlcss othenvise statcd. )

SECTION FIVE {Continucd)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continted)

1L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets {continued)
5. Explanations on leans {continued}
5. Information on non-performing loans (net) {continued}:

5j.4 Information regarding gross and net amounts of non-performing loans with respect to user

Sroups:
| M-Growp i O.Growp i V.Grewp
Lmnf,:;:;:ﬁ Ef:::éables R e{:léﬁilrll;;:ﬂ.’ilh ;Unr:ﬂltecliizlrlﬁ Luans and)

L Collectabiliey | Doubthn § Reewables
Current Period {Met) :
L_oans o Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) 4123 43334 L 12.503

Speoific Provision Amowne () Lo wnEml o psdc (12.509)
Loans to Real Pursons and Legal Eneities (MNer) | - - -
Banks {Cross) i . - -

Specific Provision Amount [-) . - , . . -
Other Loans and Receivables (Gross) - - .

Epccific Provision Aanount (+} I .| - -
Other Loans and Receirrables (Mat) - - - -
[Prior Period (Net) ' :
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) ! 4 456 -_E_ _____ 17 450
__ Specific Provision Amewnt (). (4856) | - 12480
|Lwans te RBeal Persons and Legal Eotities {fot) ! - - ) -
Banks {Gross) ] ] )

Specific Trovision Alpuunt_{-_:]_l_ [, _.;__.___ o
Chher Loons and Receivables (Gross) - - -

Epecific Provision Amount (-} - - | -
Ciher Loans and Receivablos (ivct) - I - | -

5k  Main principles of liquidating loans and receivables:

Mot prepared in accordance with the Asticle No.25 of the Communiqus cn the Financial
Statements and Related DHsclosures and Foolnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2915

{Amounts are exprezsed in thowsands of Tukish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued}

L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets (continued)
5. Explanations on loans {continued}
&1 Explanations about the write-off policies from the assets:

Not preparcd in accordance with the Arnicle No23 of the Comununiqué on the Tinancial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes 1o be Announced (o Public by Baaks,

gm  Other explanations and disclosures:

Not prepared in accordaoce with the Article No.25 of the Comamniqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnoes to be Announced to Public by Banks.

A, Information on held-to-matority investments
a.1 The informafion was subjected to repo transactions and given as collateralfblocked amount
of investments
Lurrent Period ' Frior Periud L
TL FC f~ TL FC
Collawuraliswd/Blocked Investments | 6900530 -l sl .
Subject wo Repurchase  Apreciments ] -; -1 - -
[Tatal - - - o -
6.2 Information on public sector debt investments held-to-maturity
— T Current Peringd Frior Period
Govemment Bondyg 852035 -
Treasury Bills . - -
Orher Public Sector Debr Securilies - -
Total #52.005 | -
6.3 Information on held-to-maturity invesiments
Current Period | Pricr Period
DebeSecurities e e e
{Chucted on 3 Stock Exchange G91.130 -
Mot Quoted 160,856 |
[mpairment provision (-} - -
Tota) , 852035 L. e
6.4 Movement of held to maturity investments withio the year
i Current Perlod 5 Prier Period
Balances at Beginning of Period : - el
Fercipn Curmency Dilferences on Monetrs Assets : o Asa: o * |
Purchases During The Periad (%) ! B51.289 -
Chisposals Through Sales And Redemptions : (5.583) - =
Impaioment Peovision €)ool e 2
Inecrest Tncome Accruals : 1.517 -
Bzlances at End of Peripd 852,035 | -

) Thee Bank seclassilied "Coverrunant Bomd wilh CPL Iades”™ with 2 noeminal valoe of TL 333626 and "Euroboend”™ with nominal value of
LIS 34,577 (rom aveitable-for-sale to held-1o- waterity pont folic in the cwrment penod,
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.5.
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOR 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMEER 2015
Amounts are expressed in thovsands of Turkish Lira (TL)Y unlbess otharwize stated )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)
EXPLANATIONS AND INISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued}

L Explanations and disclesures related fo the assets (continued}
7. Information on associates {oet)

7.2.] Information on associates:

1

Bank's share

Eankts visk groun

) Tithe . Address | percentage-1f share pereentue
H ' (ityf Countryd | different voting | I (%)
i i percentage (%) | ﬂ
1 ils Faktoring A.5. (is Faksoring) IstanbulTurkey : 21,75 P opn
2 lig Finansal Kiralama A $. (is Finangal) : IslanbulTurkay i 24,56 i 5733
3 iy Girisim Sermayesi Yatinm Onakhfy AS. (is Girisim) 2 IstanbubTurkey i 16,67 i 6873
4 i'l'erme ivfetal Sanayvi ve Ticaret A% {Terme) * Istanbu b Turkey | 17,53 i 1876
) :Ege Tanm Uriinleri Lisansh Depocoluk AS. (Exe Tarim) i Iz Tuckey : 10,115 : 20,10
: i lucome !
i :
i Mrom :
i Total telarketaile Carreng Frior
© Total I Fived Interest l Seocurities Period Profit Period | Jair
] Assets | Egquity | Assets | Income | Portfolia | /Loss Prafit/loss ;. Value
B e iAgr SRR L ea0sy 1S ) R e T T g | 500 | -
2/ s Finansal | 3889413 | 660406 | 16679 701387 43 50407 53728 110562 |
3 Is Girisim 260897 | 2579350 | 273 40 | 4.940 3.023 ¢ 13.075 0 20405
4| Terme (%) L4.561 3.595 ¢ 303 321 - 56 | i15) !
5| Eae Tarim L1427 11.389 ¢ 3.388 91.3%4 - (173) | (946) -

{™) Reqreseois Tor the peniod ended 30 June 2013 Minanzial sawnenis. Prar yeor profivioss is obisined fom 30 lune 2004 Mnancial saconents,

7.a.2

Information on associates:

! Corrent Periad Crioy Poyiod

__Eglance gt the Beginning ofthe Perdpd 161038 | 152,328

- Movcmcnls Cluring the I"c:rm-d o I C {ie63) ing

Purchases ; - 200}

Bonus Shares Chiained ; 24761 11.540

Current Year Share of Profit ; - -

Sales | - -
Revaluation Increase i -

Peavision for Impainnent ! {41.395) ; _ 13 430}

Balance at the End uf the Period 14404 | 161 EES

Copital Commilmenls ) . - -

share Pereentage gt the End of the Period (30 i - Tl

Infarmation on associates seld in the current period

In the corrent perigd the Bank has not disposed any associates,

Infarmation on associates purchased in the current period

in the current period, the Bank has obtained bonus shares amounting TE 5011 with a share
capital increase of Iy Factoring A S. amounting to TL 23.500.

Besides, I3 Leasing A.%. capitai was increased from TL 461.503 to TL 530.303 in the corrent
pertod. The Bank has obtained bonus shares amounis (0 TL 19650 as a result of bonus shares

LBCPease.
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FOR THE INTERIM PERTOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015
{Amounts are capeessed in thoosinds of Terkish Lira (TLY onless otherwise stated,)

SECTION FIVE {Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continncd)

E Explanaticns and disclosures velated to the assets {contioued)
7. Information on associates {nct) (continucd)

T.a.3  Sectoral information of associates subject to consalidation and the related carrying amounts
in the legal books:

| Current Periad Frior Perigg
LEEE_ET;__:_::_____:::____ ] _....._._.___.___...__.__-__-___.__
Ingug:lrlm Cumpanie_:‘. ......... 1 --------------------------- . iy -
Facroring Companies o _ i - :__jI:ISEE_E__ ______ 6771
Leasing Companies 110562 § 125.215
Financial Service Companies - :
Oiher Financial Assoeiates _ 20.405 27.497

7.2.4 Information on associates subject to consplidation quoted on stock market:

Current Period ] Prior Period

Associates guoted on domestic steck cxchanges 130,967 EI 15 Mz

Aszsociales quotcd on foreign stock cxchanges
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{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Tukish Lira (TLY unless otherwise stated )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

I. Explanations and disclosures related to the assefs (continued}

3. Information on subsidixries {net}

8.a.1 Information related to equity component of subsidizries:
Current Perlod : e e e et pt e ammred v
— e et em et o SEAS 1 TSKB GYOQ{) |
CORE CAPITAL i i
Paid-in Capital SA2IS] o 150.000]
Share Premigm R | 3 593
| Legal Reserves 4,730 l; 5.6
Ohther Comprehensive Income according to TAS i .....{?!l.g_ oot s e 2]
Current and Prior Yoars” PeofitLoss 4012 i T.678
Leasehold Emprovements () N (A1) B
Intargible Assets (=) _ {3ad) [24)
Tetal Core Canital T1.464 183,943
Swpplementary Capitat ] - -
Capiial , - -
et Availzble Capital : - TL464 133,943

¥ The fnfovaagion s obtained froo fanciof sateenens s1:bicet lo consofidaian o3 of 30 Septearber 204 5,

PriorPeried T ] SR F
__ : JYBAS(M 1 TSKBGYOD(Y)
CORE CAPITAL ]
Paid-in Cupity] _ o 642751 !._51'-‘-_0_'321
| Share Premium i | 593
Legal Reserves 4,750 : ':T’G%
Qther Comprehensive Ingome according W0 TAS : (396) ; 3
Currant and Prioe Years' MrofitLoss &0 555,;}3_I
Lenschold tmprovemenus ¢} b gwel
Tntangible Assels {-) | {463} {13
Total Core Capital 1o OURCH T RSO 1 8 2'L il
Supplementary Copital - -
Capitsl o e
et Available Capital 11756 271.937

) The igfirerasion is oberined from finaueial stafements sulject o comialidation as of 31 December 2004,

Paid in capital has been indicated as Turkish Lira in articles of meorporation and regstered in
trade repistry. Tffect of inflation adjustments on paid in capital is the difference caused by the
inflation adjustment on shareholders' equity items. Extraordinary reserves are the stalus reserves
which have been transferred with the General Assembly decision afier distributable profit have
been (ransferred 1o legal ceserves. Legal resorves are the stalus reserves which have been
transferred from distributable profit m accordance with the Arsticle 519 of the Turkish
Commercial Code nuimbered 6102,

The Bank's internal capital adequacy assessmenl process is made annually on a consolidated
basis. Consolidated subsidiaries and associates are included in the operation.



TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKAST A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD I JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounts are capresoed in thousincds of Tudkish Lica (TLY wnless otherwise stated. )
SECTION FIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON IINCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

L Explanations and disclosures related to the asscts (continucd)
3. Information on subsidiaries (net} {continued)}

8.a.2  As per Communiqué on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Banks and
Turkish Acconnting Standards unconsolidated subsidizries and reason of unconsclidating
and needed capital if they are subject to capital requirement:

TSKB Gayrimenkui Degerleme A% is valued at cost and is not consolidated sinee it is not a
financial subsidiarics. Unconsolidated subsidiary of the Bank is not subject 10 minimum capilal
requiremenl.

8.b.1 Information oo subsidiaries:

! Bank's share i :
vt Bk kg
i X voling percentuge (%) | s
1 TEKE Gayrimenkul Degerleme A3, (TSKB G Istarbl Markey 9909 ! 49,09
2 Vabiewn Finansman ienkul Degerier A5 {YFAS) Islarthul fTorkey 45,74 ; _9ES
3 USKB Gayrimenkul Yaunm Ortaklgs A S (FSKI GYO)  IstanbulMurkey | 59,00 : s e
i i Toal Income fromm Cureaar |
Tatal !. Sharcholdoes" i Fixed | inlcrest Markctabls Perigd | Prior Period
] Assee | Dguily 1 Assels ! lneome Securitics ProfiiLoss | Profitloss | Fair Walue
TSKBGMD | | 130171 1364 i 114 435 - 1.394 2.267 | -
YFAS. (%} 430,704 § J2.926 : 3230 0 17w 230 (LO37 1.924 ;
TEKB GYO (%} 159.544 ¢ 133.967 7 373446 ¢ 358 - | (27end) 2376 ; S4.870

(™) The consodidfated faamcial data af e sidesidiseies ave pregaved in ecoordance wish BRES regufarimrs.

£b.2 Information on subsidiaries:

Prior Period

Balance ot the beginning of the period e 134695 |
Movements in the period N B (494)
Purchases .. e I - -
o Bonusshaces obtained I 2.394
| Curmcnt year sharcof profit ’ . -
[ Sales . : i : (233)
Revaluation increasc . : - -
Provision for impairment ! {4.850 L {2@522:
Halenee af the cod of the perigd 1 125354 | 134,204
Capital commiiments i - o -
Share percenlage at the cnd of the peried (%) ; - o N
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{Amourts are sxpressed in honsands of Turkish Tirg (71 unless othensise sgated

SECTION FIVE (Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued}

L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets (continued)
5. Ioformastion an subsidiaries {nef) (continned}
8£.0.2 Ioformaticu oo subsidiaries {continwed):
Subsidiaries disposed in the curvent period
In the current period, the Bank has not disposed any subsidianics,
Subsidiarics purchased in the current period
In the curent pericd, the Bank has oot purchased any subsidiaries,

8.b.3 Sectoral ioformation on subsidiaries subject to consclidation and the related carrying
amounts in the legal hooks:

Corrent Period Prior Perigd

g - e e B
Inzurance Conpanics ! - -
Fuctoring Companies - -
, Luasing Companies : -

_ Financial Service Companics - ]
Other Financial Sebsidiarics 124 975 133,335

8.b.4 Subsidiaries subject to consolidation quoted on stock market:

! Current Period | Frior Period e
Subsidiaries quoted on domeslic stock xchanges . 34 870 | 63,720
Subsidiaries guoted on loreign stock exchanges : - -
b Information on entities under common control
The Bank has no entitics under commmeon control as of the repocting date (31 December 2014
Mone).
10, Information on finance lease receivables (net)

Iha  Maturities of investrments on finance leases:

Cuorrent Perind Prigr Pecied |

O I < 1 - M Net Gross Net
._LEK_S_[-I.'I_H-I'—I-_]-}"E31' ; s | - &7 -
Between Ldyears E T e T ]

More than 4 years - - - - -
Total D A0S e o BT -

16.b The information on et investments in finance leasas:

Current Period Prior Preriod

Gross investments in finance iegses L= I - 87 |

Unearned reverue from finance leases (-} {105)

|,
[==]
|
[’

Cangulled finanee s (-) - -
et invesionents in fnanes eoases - o -
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SECTION FIVE (Continred}
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued}

| Explanations and disclosures related to the asscts {continued)

1. Lnformation on finance lease receivables {uet} (continued)

10.c  Explanaticn with respect to finance lease agreements, the criteria used in determination of
contingent rents, conditions for revisions or purchase ¢ptions, updates of lessing amounts
and the restrictions imposed by lease arrangemcnts, whether arrays in repayment occur,
whether the terms of the contract are renewed, if renewed, the renewal conditions, whether
the remewal resolis any restrictions, and other important conditions of the leasing
agreement:

Finance lease agreements are made in accordance with (he relaled articles of Financial Leasing,
Factoring and Financing Company Law No 636), There are no restructuring or resiriclions;
which has material effect on financial statements.

11. Information oo derivative financial assets held for hedging purposes

11.a  Positive differences on derivative financial instruments held for hedging purposes

Current Perigd i Prigr Period
- TL FC TL 5 FC
FairValeHedee | L. - i 36,6238 - -
CashFlowHedge . S - - -
Hedee of net invesiment in foreipn operations - - , - o
Total I i w68 | - :
A5 of 3¢ Septermber 2015, the face values and the nct fair valucs, recognised in the balance sheet,
of the derivative financial instroments held for risk management purposes, arc swmmarized
below:
Current Period i Frigr Period
Face Value Asset Liability | Foce Valoe ] Agset Liabikity
| Interest Rate Swaps 4.860.000 | 38.628 ' —_ 1 -
rC 4,860,000 : e8| I e -
L L ] | i N )
11.a.1 Information on fair value hedge necounting
Current Perlod I Ineame
: Fair Value Staterment Effect
I ) . . (ProfitfLoss
. Hedged ltem | Type of Change of Fair Value of Hedging Through
Hedging Risgk MNedged Instromen{{*) .
Item Hem(*) Drerivative
. | Financial
U URRRPI & Instruments)
: |
S SR e ASSES ..‘...!:'.E.?i.‘?.i.i..i!.i.ﬁéw i ]
: i
Interest Rale Swap  : Fixed Rate intercan 5
Transacliong | [ggued Furgbond | Rate Risk [(27.340): 23191 2l 4155
Interest Rate Swap  § Tixed Rote Interest : : :
Transaciions i Loans Uscd Rate Risk {5.671)3 4.721 | -, (250 |

™) e fair value of hedsed itens and hedging inslroment are presented as nel market value excluding credit risk and

wecwme | ated interest,
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TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY -0 SEPTEMBER 2015

{Amounds are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {TT.y unless otherwise siaicd. )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)
EXPLANATIONS ANE DISCLOSURES ON UNCOMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)
L Explanations and disclosures related to the assets {continued}
I2. Informaticn oo taogible assets {net)
Since the third quarter of the current period, the Bank changed its accounting policy and adopted
revaluation method under scope of TAS 16 with respect to valuation of real estates included in
tangible fixed assets. As a resuit of the expertise reparts perfomed by experts whe is authorized
by CMEB and BRSA, revaluation differences amount of TL 32013 is accounted under the
shareholders’ equity. As of 30 September 2015, the net book value of real cstates included in
tangible Hixed assets were amnound of TL 4247 betore valpation.
13. Information on intangible assets
Nt prepared m accordance with e Article Ne25 of the Communigué on the Financial
Stalernets and Related Disclosures and Footnotes (o be Annovnced to Public by Banks.
14. Information on investment property
The Bank has no mvestment propeny {31 December 201 4: None).
15. Information on deferred tax assets
15.2a  Temporary differcnces, fax losses, exemptions and deduetions reflected to balance sheet as
deferred fzx assct:
The Bank has compuied deferred {ax asset or liability on 1emporary differences anising from
carrying values of assels and liabilites in the accompanying Mnancial statements and tHheir tax
bases.
Delerred tax asset: ] Current Period i Prior Period
_ Loan commissiens sccrual adiwstment o | isas2 | 12365
Qther provizions i 12.000 ¢ 15640
______ darketably seourtics L - L 4489 ) .
Empleyes bonefit provision 1.349 I.547
~ Maluation of derivakive instruments L N . i R |- 1.
Oiher i.457 569
Total Deferred Tax Asset 36.947 11.568
Deferred fay Tinkidiy:
darketable socuritics - (11253
... Valuaton of derivative instruments S SAen -
Loam eomnmizsons accrual adjughnent {7.32%) [5.3400
_. Useful life differencc of fixed assets SRR | -7 N S L~ | B
Other (1.290) | (23
[Total Deferred Tax Liakility {10.558) | (16.748)
Met Deferred Tax Asgset 26,389 14.920
I5.h Temporary differences over which deferred tax assct are not computed and recorded in éhe

balance sheet in prior periods, if so, their expiry date, losses and tzx deductions and

exceptions:

The Bank has no deductible tetmporary differences that are not inchuded in calenlation of defered
tax asset and not reflected to Hinancial statements in prior periods (31 December 2014: Nong).
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(Amounts arg cxprossed in thousands of Turkish Lira (T wnless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UTNCOMNSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

1. Explanations and disclosmres related to the assets {continued)

15.¢  Allowanee for deferred tax and deferred tax assets from reversal of allowance:
As of the reporting date, the Bank has no allowance for deferred tax and deferred tax liability
from reversal of allowance {31 December 2014: WNone).

16, Explanations an assets held for sale
In the current period, the Bank has no asscls held for sale (31 Decamber 2014: None).

17. Informaeticn about other assets

17.a  Other assets which exceed 10% of the balance sheet total and breakdown of these which
constitute at least 20% of grand total:
Other assets do not exceed 10% of total assets, excluding oft-balance sheet commitments (31
Decomber 2014 None).

IL Explanations and disclosures related to the liahilities

1. Information of maturity structure of deposits

l.a.l  Matarity structure of deposits:
The Bank is oot aulliorized to accept deposits.

1.a.2 Information on seving deposits under the guarantee of saving deposit insurance fund and
exceeding the limit of deposit insurance fund;
The Banl: 15 not authorized 1o aceept deposits.

1.6 Information on the scope whether the Bank with a foreign head office suits saving deposit
insurance of the related country:
The Bank is not authorized 1o accent deposils.

1.t Saving depasits whichk are not under the guarantee of deposit insurance fund:
The Bank is nol authorized to accept deposits.

2 Megzative differences table related to derivative finzncial Habilities held-for-trading

Decivativie Financial Liabilines Held! {or Trading ; e Current P_criod Prigr Pl}lri'ﬂ'd
i TL : FC 1L e FE
Forward Transactions i) sl a0 2
Swap Transactions 71494 1 62.557 2061 .__331@_
Fulres Transactions e m e TM! D . - —
CBpuens f f 118.494 ; - 20,935
Chher : - - - -
[Totel o 5 72.816 | 181.306 | 53701 50460
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{Amounis are expressed in thoussnds of Terkish Lirs (11} unless atherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE {Continucd)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
IL. Explanations and disclosures related to the Habilities (continued)
3. [nformaticn on funds barrowed
3.a Information on banks and ofher financial institutions:
o . Current Periad Priar Perisd
T RS T FC
Loans from Central Bank of Tarkey ; - - - ‘ -
From Dronwestie Banks ard Institolions Iﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ_:____________3_’.5‘2._?91}_ - _§ﬂ6§_| o 18%aag
From Forcign Banks, Institations and Funds ! 676821 13.086.292 - | G .587.0091
[Tosaf | 77682 13.465.902 3.068|  9.876.550
3. Matority analysis of funds borrowed:
Current Period Prior Period
L FC L FC
Short-term e o B000 Y 3896960 3068 367.148
wiedium and long-term i 67.642 ! 13.076.208 - 0509, 402
Tetal 176821 13465992 3068 | _ 0.876.550
LN Information on marketable securities issued
Current Feried Pricr Pericd
: TL FC T. i FC
| Nominal i - 1.872.500 - 806.750
Cost ] - 1.567.978 -4 806,153
] 3
Book Valee i - 2168930 -3 313824
As of 27 Cetober 2014, sales transactions on the issuance of bonds or similar securities
amounting to maximum USD 750 millicn in abroad is completed and the debt instruments having
nominal value of USD 350 million are determined with maturity of 30 October 2019 with {ixcd
interast rate, frve year maturily and scouannual coupon payment with an mierest rate of 5,375%.
Accordingly, as of 22 April 2015, the issvance of second Gurohond with nominal value of USD
350 million has been realized. The debt instruments are determined with a matuzity of 22 April
2020 with fixed interest rate, five year maturity and seriannual coupon paymenl with an interest
rate of 3,125%.
3.d Additionzl information about the concentrated areas of lizbilities:
Mot prepared in accordance with the Asticle No.25 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related MHsclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Baoks.
4. Qther liabilities which exceed 10%% of the halance sheet total and the brezkdown of these
which constitute at least 20% of grand total
There are no other liabilities, which exceed 10% of the balance sheet total {31 December 2014:
None).
5. Explanations on financizl lease abligations {net}
S.a Explanations on finxnce lease payables:

The Bank has no financial ieaze payables {31 December 2014: Nonej.
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TIURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-3( SEPTEMBER 2015
{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TEY unless athenwvise stated.)

SECTION FIVE {Continued}
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)}
1L Explanations and disclosures related to the liahilities (continued)
5. Explznations on financial lease oblgations {net) {(continued)
5.b Explanséions regarding operational leases:
As of the repording date, the Bank’s 2 ead offics bulldings, | branclh, 11 cars and 100 computers
are subject 1o operational leasing. The Bank has no liability for operational leases in the current
period {31 December 2014: 2 head office buildings, 1 branch, 11 cars under operational leasing).
S5.c Explanations on the lessor and lessee in sales and lease back transactions, agreement
conditions, and major sgreement terms:
The Bank has no sale and lease back tmnsactiocns as of the reporting dale {31 December 2014:
Mone),
. Information on derivative financial liabilities held for risk management
The Bank has no derivative financial hiabilities held for risk management as of 1he reporling date
(31 December 2014; None}
7. Information nn provisions
T.a Information on general provisicons:
SO, M. %L1 £:0 4,131 Prior Period
General Frovisions 135.973 125.194
Provigions for Fivst Growpy Loaas and Reccivaldes : 134.565 | 103337
- Adclitioned previsions fin- the loainy with ecipaded poyenr plva . 998 1 . hirs
Provagiond for Second Group Loang and Receivables 4,557 . 1
- Addlitipnal provisions for flie leons with exviended papment plan 2028 e 4RdS
Provisions for Non-Cash Loans 3041 ¢ N A v
Cnher 13790 | 10,900
T Forcign cxchange losses en the foreign curreney indexed Ieans and finance lease receivables:
The forcign exchange losses on the foraigm currency mndexed loans amount 1o TL 42 (31
December 2014 TL 9.776). The foreign exchange losses on the loreign cumency indexed loans
aré nel off [rom the loans line m the financial statements.,
T.c The specific provisicns provided for unindemnified non cash loans:
As of the reporting date, the Bank's specific provisions provided for vnindemnified noa cash
loans amounts (o TL 583 {31 December 2014: Monch.
7.d Information related to other provisions:
7.4.1  Provision for possible losses:

The Bank has no provision for possible provisions (31 December 2014; Nane),
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY-30 SEPTEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprossed in thowsands of Turkish Lici (TLY unless otherwise stated, )

SECTION FIVE {(Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continned)

1I.

7.
74
T2

8.
3.a
R.al

8.2

8a3

RB.I

Explanations and diselosures related te the liabilities (continued)

Information on provisions {continued)

Infprmaticn velated to other provisions {continued):

If other provisions exceed 10%% of total provisicns, the name and amount of sub-accounts:

" Current Period

Prior Perviod

G”'I.IL‘I“PI‘{T'-'ISIGHE- *)

0,588

53.000

| Total

60.588

B3.000

=) Urﬁm provigigns balewos fecfudes onosns e FL &K e the risks mﬁ'.r:ed i J’crm: povifulia, SiRom fo ?L 383 far
sindgumifiod nonu-cash loans oad aand to TL 5 for valvation differences bused o parehasirg feran seoweities (T Decenber

2054 TL 83000 pravision ).
Information on taxes paysble
Information on current taxes payable:

Information on faxes payzble:

Corporate Taxes and Doleered Taxcs

Cu rrent Period

TL

Frior Posigd

1 FC

TL

15,152 | -

32,360 ]

" Deforred tax I1nl.'r||!t}r

Lll".f!.!a_i

il - [

Inforimation on taxes payable:

Taxatmn ﬂf ‘\'.DCI.IHILE";

Current Period

Prior Period

! 15.182

34.390

Proprorly lax

Banking and lnsurance Vransaction Tax (BITT)

EEZ N

Fureign Exchange Transacieen Tax

Walue Added Tax Payable

70

onlhwr

1.147

Total

Informatich on preminms:

19.803 |

Social Security F‘ﬂ.rnlurns Empluycﬂ.

...I. Current Perigd

' Scu::lal Scurity Fremiums-Employer

Banl@ Sacial Aid Pensien [und Premivm-Emgloyes

B . nd Premium-Employer

Pension Fund Mcml‘.ﬂ:i‘s

e and Provisions Employes

Uremployment msurance-EmpI_qy:gg_

Uremployment insurance-Employer

Fension Fund | Mcmbacrshlp Fees and | Provisions-Employer

Cher

Tgtal .

Explansaticns on deferred taxes Eabilities:

As at the reporting date, the Bank has no deferved tax liability (31 December 2014: None).
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERICGD 1 JARUARY-30 SEFTEMBER 2015
{Amours are expressed 1o thousands of Turkish Lica (TE) unless otherwige slaled )

SECTION FIVE {Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

IL
9.

10.

11.
1l.2

11.b

If.c

11.d

1l.e

Explanations and disclosures related to the liabilities (econtinned}

Information on [Iabilities regarding assets held for sale

Not prepared in accordance with the Article No23 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footadgles 1o be Announced (o Public by Banks.

Explanaticns on the nuntber of subordinated loans the Bank used, maturity, interest rate,
institution that the loan was borrowed from, and conversion option, if any:

Not prepared in accordance with the Article MNo.25 of the Communigué on the Financial
Statzments and Related Disclosures and Faotnotes to be Antounced to Public by Banks.

Informaticn on shareholders® equity

Presentation of paid-in capital:

Cuorrent Perind Priogr Perivd
1,750,000 ... 1,500,000

Prefomed stock I - |

Clonmmnaon stock

Paid-in capifal amount, explanation 25 t¢ whether the registered share capital system ceiling
is applicable at banl, if s0, amount of registered share capital:

Capital System Pald-in capital Ceiling
Repistered Capital Syslem L 750,000 2.500 040

Information on share capital increases and thelr sources; other information on inereased
capital shares in current period:

In the weeting of the General Assembly held on 26 March 2015, it has been resolved that, paid-in
capital of the Bandk will be increased from TL 1,500,000 10 TL 1,756,000 by adding TL 250.000.
In respect of the resclution of the General Assembly, TL 234,000 of this increase will be
incorporated from the proft of the year 2014, TL 16.000 of this increase will be incorporaled
from extraordinary reserves provided for gain on subsidiary and real estate based on anicle of
CTL-5{1Ve The increase in paid-in capital was approved by the BRSA on 15 May 2015

In the meating of the General Assembly held o 27 March 2014, il has been resalved that, paid-in
capital of the Bank will be increased fromn TL 1.300.000 to TL 1500000 by TL 200000, In
respect of the resolution of the Gencral Assembly, (his increase will be incorporated from the
profit of the year 2013, The increase in paid-in capital was approved by the BRSA on 16 April
2014 and, has been published  the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette No: 5573 on 21 May 2014,

Information on share capital increases from capital reserves:

In the cument period, the extracrdinary reserve amount of TL 16.000 provided from gain on sale
of subsidiary and real estate added to paid-in-capital based on anicle of CTL-3{1¥e {31
December 2014; None).

Capital commitments in the last fiseal year and at the end of the following period, the
general purpose of these commitments and projected resources required to meet these
commitments:

The Bank hias no capital commitments for its associates in the last fiscal year and at the end of the
following pedod.
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SECTION FIVE {Continued}

EXPLANMATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Il Explanations and disclosures related to the liabilities {continued)
11. Information on sharekolders® equity {continued)

11.f  Indicaters of the Bank’s income, profitabiliey and liguidity for the previous periods and
passible effeces of these fufure assumptions on the Bank's equity due to the uncertainty of
these indicators:

The prior period lncoms, profitability and liquidity of the Bank and their trends in the successive
periods are [llowed by Budge! Planning and Investor Relations Department by considerning the
cutcomes of the potential changes in the foreign exchange rate, nterest rate and maturily
alterations on profitability and liquidity under various scenario analyses.

The Bank operations are profitable, and the Bank retaing the major part of its profit by capital
increases or capital reserves within the shareholders equity.

1l.g Ioformation oo preferrved shares:
The Bank has no preferred shares (31 December 2014 None).

II.h  Iaformation on marketable securities value inerease fund:

Current Period | Prior Period
From Associates, Subsidiarics, and Entitics Under | ; I a
Cormon Contral : {67008 § - {16.524) -
__Valuation Differences {35-6701}1 o f1B4dy| 68538 | 30912
Foreian Exchange Difference 2004 | - - -
Total i goran | q.8an siy14| 50912

I11.  Explanations related to the off-balance sheet items

1. Information on off-bazlunce sheet liabilities
1.2 MNaturc and amount of irrevocable loan cemmitments:

i e e CuTrent Period | Prior Feriod
Cormitinents for Forward Porclase and Sales of Assets : 324138 _33.635
Comymitments for Use Guarantesd Credit Allocation : - 30.930

__Commitmunts for Stack Brokersge Purchascand Sales i 483wl 1346
Commitments for Letter of Credul 19,515 15275
Commitiments from Fooward Short Tenn Borrowing and Transfers - ‘ 19.674

__ Commiteents for option forward premiems .o .i .
Crher 165.975 | 1063

Total 558425) 152913
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SECTION FIVIE {Continned)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

III. Explanaticos related to the ofi-balance sheet items (continucd)

Information on off-halance sheet lisbilities {continned}

1. Passible losses and commitments rvelated to off-balance sheet items including items listed

helosy:

Lhl MNon-cash leans includiog guarantees, surety and acceptances, financial collaterzls and other

fetters of credits:

As of the reporting date, total letters of credin, surety and acceptances amount to TL 825201 (31

December 20014 TL 496.097).

1.h.2  Certain puarantees, tentative guarantees, surety ships and similar transactions:

As of the reporting date, total letters of guarantce given by Lhe Bank is TU 1.282.897 (31

December 2014 TL 956.972).

I.e.1 Total amount of non-cash loans:

Current Peviod

Prioy Peviad

Mon-cash loans eiven against ohiaining cash loans o i Toddad,
With malurity of one year g loss 1han one year 45874 _
o ;-T'-"uh-malunt}'ul;n;_r: t;mn GNE YUar 632570 _
Other non-cash loans 1.403 654 . ]-JS--S_UE?_
Total 2.108.09% - 1.453.069

I.c.2 Information on sectotal risk brezkdown of non-cash loans:

Mot prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Foolnates to be Announced to Poblic by Banks.

1.c3 Information on Ist and Ilnd group non-cash loans:

Mot prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Communigque on the Financial
Staterments and Related Disclosures and Foolngles to be Announced o Public by Banks.

z. Infarmation related to derivative financial instruments

Mot prepared in accordance with the Amicle No.25 of the Copwnuniqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Diselosures and Footnotes 1o be Announced 10 Public by Banks.

3 Explanations on loan derivatives and risk exposures

Mot prepared in accordance with the Article No.25 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks.
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SECTION FIVE (Continued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued}

III.

4.

Explanations related to the off-halance sheet items {continued}
Explanations on contingent [fabilitics and asscts

There are 30 legal cases against the Bank which are amounting TL 1.073 as of the reporting date
{31 December 2014: TL 1.067 - 25 legal cases).

Tax Audit Committes inspectors wade an investigation for the years 2008-2011 about 1he
paymerits made by the Bank and employees to “Tiirkive 3wnai Kalkinma Bankass A5, Mensuplan
Munzain Sosyal Giivenlik ve Yardimiasina Vak{i” (Foundation) established in accordance with
the decizions of Turkish Commearcial Law and Civil Law as made to all Foundations in the seetor,
According to this investigation it has been communicated that the amount Bank is obliged to pay
15 a benefit in the nature of fee for the members of Foundation worked at the time of payment, the
amounl Foundation members are obliged to pay should not been deducted from the basis of fee;
accordingly tax audit report was issped with the claim that it should be taken penalized income
tax surchange / penalized stump duty deducted froam allowance and total amount of T 17,325 tax
penalty nolice relaning to period in question to Bank relying on this report. The Bank assesscs that
the T3ank’s practice i3 in compliance with the legislation and there is no legal basis for the tax
administration’s suspended assessments, therefore, lawsuits have been filed against the subjecled
asscssiments in varions tax courts in [stanbul, Ankara and fzmir.

Some of the lawsuits are decided favourable, remaining of lawsuits are decided unfavourable by
the tax courts of first instance. On the other hand, appeal and objection have been requested by
the Bank agamnst the decision of the Court with respect to the Bank and by the administration
against the decision of the Court with respect to the administratien and completion of appeal
process 15 waited. The tax and penalty notices rclated o the decision of the lax court of first
instance against the Bank arc accrued by administration depending on legal process and as of 31
July 2014 the Bank has made tofal payrents ameunting to TL 22.001.

A sinular case bas been submitted 1o the Constitutional Cournt (AYM) in the [omn of individual
remedics by e main sharcholder of the parent Bank in relation to the parent Bauk’s liabilites to
pay, the Constituional Coud gave the decision with court file qumber 2014/6192. According to
courl decision published in the OfGcial Gazette dated 21 February 2015 and numbered 29274, the
assessmieiits against the parent Bank was contrary to the principle of legality and the Parent
Bank's property rights has been viclated. This decision is considered to be a precedent for the
parent Bank and an amowst of TL 12.750 comesponding to the porlion that the parenl Bank was
cbliged to pay for the related pericd is recognised as income in ihe current period.

Custodian and intermediary services:

Mot prepared in accordance with the Article Mo.25 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks.
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(Amounts ara expressed in thowsands of Turkish Liva {TL] unlese atherwise stated )

SECTION FIVE (Continued}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued}

IV, Explanations and disclosures related to the incoms staternent

1. Information on interest income
1.z Inforntation on interest on logns:
' Corrent Period : Prior Period
TL FC TL _j:__ N FC ]
Interest gn loans (%) f ! N
Short term loang i 208461 dadd | 16355 15095
MMedivm and leng term loans i P3040 | 30597 ¥
. Interest on now-performing loans G 1900 ILE 3 5.
Fremiums received from Resource Utilization '
Suppont Fund i - - - -
Totai US| 312359 107265 2s9mes
) Contanigsion income frowe foans fiare feen included fo the interest o Jomes,
1.b Information on interest received from banks:
T
. __CurremPerid | _ PriorPeried
O S 1 Fc_ | TL FC
The Central Bank of Turkey (%) : 643 - . -
Domesiic banks 2613 o7 3x4 10
_ Foreign banks 140 109 | 188 -
Branches and head nffice abroad - - " - -
Yotol _oade] nesi sl e

2} forevests givewr o e Toekfsl Liva ood US Dalior portion of the CERT Required Bescrves, reserve opiions aad waresiricred
asconntr hare oo preserded mader UThe Centrad Benk of Tuekey ™ hiee In My finaacial sfatetnents.

I.c Informaticn on interest received from marketable scenvities:
Currend Periagd Prior Periud
TL FC TL i FC
Trading Suouritics N N 117> % W2 N X 19
Financial Assers at Fair Value Threugh Profit and ;
Leorss - - - -
Availablc for Sale Financial Asscts 183,903 ¢ 37022 | 189373 I 19777
Investoiends Held to Maturity | 276 884 - -
1Tatal e 156,301 37943 lE?.ﬁ?li . 19796
1.4 Informaticn on interest income received front assoctates and subsidiaries:
Current Pariod ! Prior Pericd
Interest receivedd from associates and subsidianics - 3.667 | 8,535
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SECTION FIVE (Continued}
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued}
IV, Explanations and disclosures related to the income statement (continued)
2. Information on interest expensss
2.a Information on interest on funds borrowed:
oo CuyrEDt Periad oo BriorPeried
TL FC TL i FC
[Banks 4,900 12,851 Ll I 5455
The Cenical Bank ol Turkeay . - - -
Domestic banks 1.832 | 280 585 _ 433
| Foreignbanks | 3.068 ; e | e 4.966
Branches and head offics abroad - - - -
Diher financial instilutions - 111.561 - 71813
I N
Qotai¢y | _asei  upaanzl o sss| 77412
{F Conmizzions givet b ofier SInogciad Insditanons fove oo Jcfded fo inierest expeide g ftands foreowed,
2.b Information on interest expense to associates and subsidiaries:
The Bank has no interest expense 1o 115 associales and subsicdharics (30 September 2014 None)
2.c Information on interest expenss to securities issued:
Current Pariod Prior Periad
OO T L. S S . NN SO £ S N .
Interest on Securities Vsecd (%) ) i 66905 ' i _
{2 Commissions gives to issuonce e feen inclided to inferest exponse o flimds Brorvowed.
3. Infernation on dividend incomse
Mot prepared in accordance with the Aricle No25 of the Conununiqué on ihe Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes 1o be Announced to Public by Banks.
4, Information on net trading income {net)

Currenl Prriod

Frivy Perigd

Brofic I 1130892 .. 361454
Oains on capital warket operalions LA 2,034
Gains on derivative finaneial ingtrumenis (%) 609,193 | . i
Foreign exchange gains $11.025 | 214248
Losses {-} (1.140.284) ‘ L 349344
Losses on capital marketoporations ot apel  a»3n
i!_.ussfes on derivative financial mgloamenes (*) ! {669.297) | (1586814
IFurcign cxechange losscs {463 267) I (159199

(¥ The foreige excltenige pate fFonr derivarfre frarsaciions amourting o TL 283 819 (s presewted in "Girdns on derfvative_financial
frrstriemeends T R Seotapttoe 2014 TE 46120 foreige excharnge loss frome devivanve ansactiont amcuerting o TL (2632200 i<

peesentpd i CLosies on derivative fingeclal ingnnmands " (30 Sepieerhee 20 S0 L (FI0 6880,
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FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD I JANUARY-3{ SEPFTEMBER 2815

SECTION FIVE (Coentinuzed}

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continned}
Iv. Explanations and disclosures related to the income statement {continued}
5. Information related to other operziing income
Corrent Periad ,l Priar Prrigd
Provisions Releascd 23.345 | 25.782
GainsonSaleofassets et 3410807
From Assortiate ond Subsiciary Sales (*) -, 0927
From Immovablc Fixed Asset Sales 53, 1
Frotw Property Sales [ 574
From Other Asset Sales - -
Other (*¥) 17.319 | 1.588
Tota) 40.118 | 38um
{4 As of 31 Samuaey 2004, the Pavewr Boik s soid aoff Takasband-fotonbuf Tadas ve Soklava Bankasi A5 thovrer represcating
Fo o ity shares, which was beled in available for sale parifodio, widh nonrinal oagead of T3 21 (00 mod wirh @ cosr of L 23,468 ia
Borsa Istanfnd A5 ar o peice of TL 33300 and the sofe ammuert was collociad witlifn the same day.
%) Fncludes inconte goortie! in the aneunting T T2 750 in accovdance with flie subjects memtionad in Secrion Five in disefotive
e f-d I the errvend poeiod.
b Provision cxpenses related to loans and ather receivables of the Bank

e e o Current Period [ Prior Period
... Spesific provisions for founs and other eeccivables ., #B9S2L 320
HL. Group i I 3,145
IV. Group L : 43.917 -
Ceneral provision expenses _ ___i — 303718 14743
Provision cxpenses For possilile bnsses - -
tarkeiable scouritics impainnen! expenses 7144 3.E83
LooWnading seeunitves L . R A -
Investment Securilics available For sale A CL 3843
Impa_in_'nf:iltprqvisifzﬂs - Yol
B L DU SUROTPRUURSUN NUSUUOIMNIOUeS) S <4
Subsidiarics i :
Enditics under common contrer (joint vend ) -4 __- e
Investment securities held o mataeity - -
O (%) ; - 24 2350
Tatal £1.875 $6.407

(4 Othverr prowision confaies grmbing fo TE 200N ia the priar period alfocated fer the risks reloted fo the fosr porifolia.
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SECTION FIVE {Continued)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Ceontinued}
IV, Explanations and disclosures related to the income statement {continued)
7. Information related to other cperating expenses
... Courrent Period 3 Prior Peried
Personhcl Cxponses 46,084 i 41239
Reserve for employee tenmination benefits 1.045 | 413
Bank social oid fund deficit provision - -
Impaioment expenses of fixed assets 3 -
Depreciation expunses of fixcd assats . 1412 | 782
lwpaitrient cxpeases of inlangible assets - -
Impaitment expense of gondwill - -
Aumeitization cepunses of intangible asscts 228 229
mpairment on subsidiaries accounted for under equity methad - -
mpairment on ssets for resale S o e B 82
']Epmciatinn cxpenses of assews for resale 3] M
Impairment expenses of assets held forsabe =
(ther operating cxpenses L4548 12,830
Reon expenscs e075 | 5.542
WaRlehanse expehses | e 305
Advenisemen expenses o . i L. 438 284
Oehor erpenses o g 4 o @714
Loss on salcof asscts | - :
i ther ] F1.5%1 32,659
[Total ) - _ 76.191 £9.029
8. [nformaticn on net profit from continned and discontinued operations before tax:
As of 3 Scptember 20135, the Bank's profit before tax has increased by 0,48% compared 1o the
prior period {30 September 2014 19.05% incrcasc) Mel interest income of the Bank has
increased by 7,83% compared to the prior period (30 September 2014: 17 62% increase),
2 Information en tax provision for continned and discontinued eperations
%.a Information on current tax charge or benefit and deferred tzx charge or benefit:
The Bank's current tax charge for the period 15 'TL 34.766 (30 Scptember 2014: TL §7.809).
Deferred tax charge is TL 34.249 (30 September 2014: TL 16.481 deforrad tax meome).
9.6 Information related to deferred tax benefit or charge on temporary differences:

Dreferred tax charge calculated on temporary differences is TL 34.249 {30 September 2014: TL

16.481 deferred tax income).
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SECTION FIVE {Continued}
EXPLANATIONS AND NISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Contioued)

Iv. Explanstioas and disclosures related to the income statement {confinued)

9 Information on tax provisien for coutinued and discontinued operations (continued)

9.c Information related te deferred tax benefit / charge on temporary differences, losses, tax
deductions and exceptions:
As of 30 September 2015, the deferred tax charge was calculated based on (cnporary timing
differences, is TL 34.249 (30 September 2014: TL 16451 deferred tax income). There is no
deferred tax benefit or charge reflected in the income statement on carry forward tax losses, tax
deductions and exceptions (30 Scplember 2014: None}.
In addition, TL 45718 deferred tax income, which is calculated over the fair value differences on
available for sale securities, is offset against the available for sale securities value increase fond
itern under equity {30 September 2014: TL 14397 deferred tax expense).

). Information on net profit from continyed and discontinued operations:
As of 30 Scplember 2015, the curment net prafit of the Bank has increased by 1,41% compared to
the prior net profit (30 September 2014; 17,75%).

Il Infermation on net profitfloss

I[1.a  The nature and ameunt of certait income aod expense items front ordinary operations is
disclosed if the disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rate of such items is required
for the complete understandiog of the Bank's performance for the period:
The Bank has generated TL 779.250 of interest income, TL 333.12% of interest expenses and TL
5.059 of nct fee and commission income from banking operations {30 September 2014: TL
589.798 interest income, TL 176,086 interest expense, TL 7.206 net fee and comnission income).

1. The effect of the change in accounting estimates 10 the net profit/Ioss; including the effects
to the future peried, if any:
There has no change in the accounting cslimates and accordingly effect on the financial statcment
items.

11.c  Mincrity share of profit and loss:
There is no profit and loss attributable to minogity interest in tiie accompanying unconsolidaied
financial statemments {30 September 2014: None).

12 If the other items in the income statement exceed 10% of the income statement total,
accounts amounting to at least 20% of these itetns are shown below:
Mone other than other operating expense explained in note IV.7, exceeds 10% of the mcome
statement.

V. Explanations related to statement of changes in shareholders® equity

Mot preparcd in accordance with 1he Article ™o, 25 of the Communiqué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footuotes to be Announced to Public by Banks.
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SECTION FIVE {Confinued)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continned)

VL

Explanaticns related to statement of cash flows

Mot prepared in aceordance with the Article No.25 of the Cormunigque on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Uootngtes to be Annoonced to Public by Bandcs,

¥IL.  Explanatiens on the risk group of the Baok
1. Information on the volume of transactions related to the Bank's own risk group,
outstanding loan and deposit transactions 2nd Income and expenses of the pertod

) I Current Period:
lRisIc Groun of 1he Banic : Direct and Indirect Other Entities Included
R TS T | Subsidiaries and Associstes | Sharehaiders of the Bank In the Ritk Group

Cash Non-cash Lash Mon-cash Cash Mon-cash
Loans and Other Beceivables R N SR —— ]

Balance at Beminning of : :

Pariod 305972 264 - 72954 117412 ; THO03 -

Balancr: at End of Peri 313.713 3704483 741 100646 | -
atcrest and Commission i ‘ !
noONG g.663 4 | 12225 220 | 3238 -
Lh Prior Period:

isk Groun of the Bank Direct and [ndireet 1 Other Entities Included
o o e OATT | Subsigiaries and Associates | Sharcholders of the Bank | In the risk Group

Cash Maon-cash Lash i Nem-cash ] Cash ___Mon-cash
Loans and Other Reecivables SRS SUSRNS ISV SOt R

Balance at Beginning of : _ .

Period 61,703 262 112420 ] 117413 | 91.627 } i
| Balance at End of Perigd! 300.972 | A0 TRE4 l Lolpazo ey
Intcrest and Commission ! 1
Income (*) 8.530 3 1.687 ! 230 3.190 | -
% e information is velated o 3 Sepramber X4,

I Information on deposit held by Bank’s owo risk group
The Bank is not autherized to accept deposits.

2. Information on forward, optien and other similay agreements made with Bank®s own risk
BIOUp
The Bank has foreign currency swaps buy amounting to TL 28.828, foreign currency swaps sell
amounling (0 TL 86,399, forward forcign cxchange buy transactions amouating to TL 297 and
torward foreign exchange sell trapsactions amounting to TL 268 made with Bank's own risk
group (31 December 2014 : foreign cumency swaps buy TL 47.621, foreign curency swaps sell
TL 49393}, As of 30 Scptember 2015, gain or loss from these (ransactions is TL 2.897 and this
amount is associated with incomce statcnent (31 December 2014: TL {1 255)).

3 Total salaries and singilar benefits provided to the key management personnel
Benefits provided to the key management personnel in the current period amount to TL 6,853 {30
September 2014: TL 5.931),

¥1II.  Information and disclosures related fo the domaestic, foreign offshore branches and foreign

representations of the Bank:

Mot prepared in accordance with the Agicle Mo.25 of the Communigué on the Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Anncunced to Public by Banks.
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SECTION SIX
OTHER EXPLANATIONS
1. Other cxplanafions related to eperations of the Bank
la Brief information related to rating carried out by intergational rating firms:
EITCH RATINGS
Lnng -term ﬁaﬁi‘ﬁ??mmgn Currcncy {1ssucr) o '_'BBB-_ |
Long-term Maturity Foreign Currency Qutlogk [1sauer} ' Stable !
‘Shortterm Maturity Forcign Currency (ssuery | P3|
|
Long-term Maturily National Currency (issuer) | BBB
Long-term Maturity National Currency Outlook {issner) Stable
| Short-term Maturity National Currency (issuer) . T3
SwpportNew 0 2
_Support Note Base .. BBB-
~National Note U AAA
! National Note Outlook o . Stable
él__Prmlang Unsw;.ured Dsbt Ratmg Note BBEB-
Tntermauenal credil raung ageucy Fitch Raungs confinned the Bank's ralings and *stable™
prospectus withoul changing as of 15 Qctober 215 and determined Bank’s “'Privilaged
Unsecured Debt Noles' as BBB- for the Eurobonds matuiity with 30 October 2019 and 22 Ajpwril
2020.
MDDDY’S
Reference Fmar.icu.a.l Rallng Nme S
) Formgn CI.I.I'I'EIIC}" {issuer)
Long-term Maturity L Baa3
. G“ﬂ““k e _\.'egatw':: .
_Shmrt term Mamru}; ) i _ - k3
t Domestic Currency (:ssuer} o S )
i___Lang—t_f_:_nn daturity _ _ _ _ Baa3
Outlock _ Megative .
Shﬂrt term Maturity 3 :
Unsecured Debt-Foreing Currency (issuer) S '
LD“:‘:’»“E”“ Mamm}’ o S . Baal
Outlook : MNegalive
Fﬂrmgn Curr&ncnymnesﬂc Currcncy I\"IT\I Note - {PYBaa}
Informiation above represents updated infonwation as of 23 October 2015,
Intcraalional credit raung agency Moody's, assigned "Unsecured Debt - Foreign Currency” rating
note for the Parent Bank issuing Turobonds matarity with 30 October 2019 and 22 April 2020 and
this note has been appointed as Baal,
1.h Informations on corporate governance rating of the Bank:

SAEA Kurwmsal Yénetim ve Kredl Derecelendirme Hizmetleri AS. (SAHA Corporate
Govemmance and Credit Rating Services AS)), a corporate governance rating institution with
Capital Markets Board license, updated the Bank’s corporate governance rating of 95,19% (9,52
over 10) as of 20 Coteber 2015, Ratings under the main topics of weighted Shareholders, Public
Disclosure and Transparency, Stakeholders and Board of Directors arc declared as; 9,49 {(Weight:
25%3, 9,65 (Weight: 25%), 9,55 (Weight: 15%), 9,31 (Weight: 35%) over 10 respectively.
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SECTION 51X {Continued)
OTHER. EXPLAMNATIQONS {Continued)

IL Other explinations related to the events after the reporting date
Nonc.

SECTION SEVEN

AUDITORS® REVIEW REPORT

L. Explanations on ihe auditors® review report
The unconsolidated financial statements as of and for the nine-month period ended 30 September
2015 were reviewed by Akis Bagunsiz Deneting ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Milsavirlik AS {the
Turkish member fimm of KPMG Internaticnal Cooperative, a Swiss entity) and auditors’ review
report dated 28 October 2015 1s presented in the introduction of this report.

IL. Explanaticns and notes prepared by independent anditors

There are no other explanalions and noles nol expressed in sections above related with the Bank’s
opurations,
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